
 

 

 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
 

DATE & TIME:  Friday, April 28, 2017, 8:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m. 
       
LOCATION:   City of El Cerrito, Council Chambers 
                                        10890 San Pablo Avenue (at Manila Ave) 

               El Cerrito, California (Accessible by AC Transit #72, #72M and #72R) 

 

 
1. Call to Order and Self-Introductions.  (Janet Abelson – Vice Chair) 

 
2. Public Comment. The public is welcome to address the Board on any item that is 

not listed on the agenda.  Please fill out a speaker card and hand it to staff. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

3. Minutes of March 24, 2017 Board Meeting.  (Attachment; Recommended Action: 
Approve) 

 
4. Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities.  (Attachment; Information Only) 

 
5. Financial Reports.  The reports show the Agency’s revenues and expenses for 

February 2017.  (Attachment; Information Only) 
 

6. Payment of Invoices over $10,000.  None (No Attachment; Information Only) 
 
REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
            

7. West County High Capacity Transit Study:  Funding Strategies, Outreach 
Summary and Draft Final Report.  The study is quickly nearing its conclusion at 
the end of May.  Recent work to be presented to the Board at its April meeting 
includes funding strategy scenarios, summaries of the recent council 
presentations and informational online survey and a draft final report including a 
section on what would it take to implement the alternatives.  (Leah Greenblat-
WCCTAC and Rebecca Kohlstrand-WSB Parsons Brinkerhoff; Attachments: the 
draft outreach summary and draft final report are included with the agenda 
packet.  New Final drafts of Technical Memos containing previously discussed 
items are posted on the study’s website:  www.WestCountyTransitStudy.com; 
Recommended Action: Receive presentation and provide feedback.) 
 
 

 

 

El Cerrito 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Hercules 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pinole 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Richmond 
 
 
 
 
 
 

San Pablo 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contra Costa 
County 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AC Transit 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BART 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WestCAT 

http://www.westcountytransitstudy.com/


 
8. Measure J TLC - Grant Funding Recommendation Follow-up  

The WCCTAC Board made a recommendation for Measure J Transportation for 
Livable Communities (TLC) funding at its previous meeting.  The conclusion of the 
Measure J Pedestrian Bike and Trail Facility (PBTF) funding process, however, has 
freed up an additional $1,000,000.  The TAC developed a recommendation for the 
Board’s consideration on how to allocate these additional TLC funds.                 
(John Nemeth-WCCTAC Staff; Attachments; Recommended Action: Approve TAC  
draft recommendation and forward to CCTA staff) 

 
 
STANDING ITEMS 

 
9. Board and Staff Comments. 

a. Board Member Comments, Conference/Meeting Reports (AB 1234 
Requirement), and Announcements 

b. Report from CCTA Representatives (Directors Abelson & Butt) 
c. Executive Director’s Report 

 
10.  General Information Items. 

a. Letters to CCTA Executive Director with March 24, 2017 Summary of Board 
Actions 

b. Acronym List 
 

11. Adjourn.   Next meeting is:  May 26, 2017 @ 8:00 a.m.  
                                                      in the El Cerrito City Hall Council Chambers, located   
                                                      at 10890 San Pablo Avenue, El Cerrito                                                                                              
0                                                                                 

 
 In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need special assistance to 

participate in the WCCTAC Board meeting, or if you need a copy of the agenda and/or agenda 
packet materials in an alternative format, please contact Valerie Jenkins at 510.210.5930 prior 
to the meeting. 

 If you have special transportation requirements and would like to attend the meeting, please 
call the phone number above at least 48 hours in advance to make arrangements. 

 Handouts provided at the meeting are available upon request and may also be viewed at 
WCCTAC’s offices. 

 Please refrain from wearing scented products to the meeting, as there may be attendees 
susceptible to environmental illnesses. Please also put cellular phones on silent mode during 
the meeting. 

 A meeting sign-in sheet will be circulated at the meeting.  Sign-in is optional. 

 

 



West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Meeting Minutes:   
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Janet Abelson, Chair (El Cerrito); Tom Butt, (Richmond); Gayle 
McLaughlin (Richmond); Roy Swearingen (Pinole); Chris Peeples (AC Transit); Lateefa Simon 
(BART); Ben Choi (Richmond); Chris Kelly (Hercules); Rich Kinney (San Pablo) 
 
STAFF PRESENT: John Nemeth, Joanna Pallock, Valerie Jenkins, Leah Greenblat, Danelle 
Carey, Kris Kokotaylo (Legal Counsel) 
 
ACTIONS LISTED BY: Valerie Jenkins 
 
Meeting Called to Order:  8:04am 
Meeting Adjourned: 9:27am 
 
Public Comment: n/a 
Consent Calendar: Motion to move items 3, 4,6, & 7 by Director Peeples, seconded by 
Director Butt; motion passed unanimously. 
 
3. Minutes of the February 24, 2017 Board Meeting 
4. Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities.   
6. Payment of Invoices over $10,000. WCCTAC paid invoices in the amounts of $45,632  
    and $65,351 to WSB-Parsons Brinkerhoff as part of the High Capacity Transit Study. 
7. Resolution Establishing the Process for Allocation of Measure J Program 21b Funds  
    between WCCTAC and John Swett Unified School District and Authorizing the Executive  
    Director to Execute a Memorandum of Understanding.  

ITEM/DISCUSSION ACTION 
 

Item #5 Consent Calendar 
Financial Reports 
 
 
Item #8 Consent Calendar 
Resolution Authorizing Staff to Award a 
Contract to Fehr and Peers to update the 
STMP Nexus Study and Develop a Strategic 
Plan 

Board members asked questions about the 
details of Items #5, including a clarification for 
a term used in the financial reports, and about 
item #8, the process for procuring 
consultants.  These questions were answered 
by staff. 
 
Motion by Director McLaughlin; seconded by 
Director Swearingen to support items 5 & 8.  
Motion passed unanimously 
Yes -  J. Abelson, G. McLaughlin, R. 
Swearingen, C. Peeples, L. Simon, B. Choi, C. 
Kelly, R. Kinney, T. Butt 
No – none 
Abstention – none 

3-1



 
 
 
 
 

Item #9  
Status Report on Interstate 80 

Information Only 
David Mann-Caltrans Corridor Manager, 
provided a status update regarding the Smart 
Corridor I-80 project. 
 

Item #10 
Measure J TLC and Safe Routes to School-
Grant Funding Recommendations 

Motion by Director Simon; seconded by 
Director Swearingen to approve the 
recommendations for the Measure J TLC and 
Safe Routes to School grant programs and 
forward draft to CCTA. 
Motion passed. 
Yes - J. Abelson, G. McLaughlin, R. Swearingen, 
C. Peeples, L. Simon, B. Choi, C. Kelly, R. 
Kinney 
No – T. Butt 
 

3-2



 

 

TO: 

 

WCCTAC Board 

 

DATE:  April 28, 2017 

FR: John Nemeth, Executive Director 

RE: Update on WCCTAC Activities  

 

State Passes New Funding Bill: Road Repair and Accountability Act SB1 

On March 28th, Governor Jerry Brown, state legislators, and other officials came to Concord to 
announce their intent to pass new transportation funding legislation.  A short while later, on 
April 6th, the State legislature approved Senate Bill 1 which will provide $52.4 billion in funding 
over the next 10 years.  The bill contains money for state highway and bridge maintenance, 
local road maintenance, transit improvements and operations, and bicycle and pedestrian 
projects.   
 
The new funding will be paid for with a tax increase on gasoline and diesel fuel, a new vehicle 
registration fee, and a new annual fee on zero emissions vehicles.  The gas tax will take effect 
November 1, 2017 and the vehicle registration fees will begin on January 1, 2018.   Fees on zero 
emission vehicles will not take effect until July 2020.  Governor Brown said the language of the 
bill had been in the works for years.  It passed narrowly in both the House and Senate, before 
being signed by the Governor.  Cities in Contra Costa are collectively projected to receive 
around $28 million dollars annually to repair local streets and roads.   



 

Plan Bay Area 2040 Draft 
The Association of Bay Area 
Governments (ABAG) and the 
Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) released the 
Draft Plan Bay Area 2040 on April 
3, 2017 and released the Draft 
Environment Impact Report 
(DEIR) for the plan shortly 
thereafter.   
 
The documents are on the MTC website at http://www.2040.planbayarea.org/ 
 
MTC and ABAG will be hosting open houses around the Bay Area to answer questions and 
accept comments on the Draft.  The information for the open house in Contra Costa County is 
as follows: 
 
Location:                                      Date/Time: 
Embassy Suites Hotel                 Thursday, May 4 
Contra Costa Ballroom               6:30pm to 8:30pm 
1345 Treat Blvd. 
Walnut Creek 
  
The comment period for all documents will close on Thursday, June 1, 2017, at 4 p.m. 
 

 
West County High Capacity Transit Study – Draft Final Report 
 

The end of the West County High Capacity 
Transit Study is fast approaching.  This past 
month’s activities have focused on closing 
out the online survey and reviewing the 
feedback we received, as well as developing 
a draft final report and sharing it with the 
Study Management Group and TAC.   
 
The report wraps up over 18 months of 
work evaluating new transit options that 
could improve the network in West County 
and address the congestion in the I-80 
corridor.  Staff is excited to present the 
draft report at the April Board meeting.   

 

http://www.2040.planbayarea.org/


 

West County Cities and Transit Agencies Receive Travel Training Certification 
 

In 2015, a $105,000 grant from the 
Caltrans 5310 program (supporting 
mobility for seniors and the disabled) was 
awarded to the Center for Independent 
Living (CIL).  The goal of the grant was to 
train local west county representatives on 
travel training techniques, with the aim of 
providing every city and paratransit 
provider with a trained trainer who would 
then find volunteers in the community to 
offer travel training to local residents.   
 
Staff from CIL spent 10 months training 
staff from the cities of El Cerrito, 

Richmond, San Pablo, and WestCAT on how to ease the anxieties of new senior and disabled 
transit users.  The training included extensive coaching how to work with people with multiple 
challenges.  The group led several training trips to locations like Emeryville and San Francisco.  
Overall, receptivity and interest in the community for travel training (or travel coaching as it is 
becoming known) is high.  All the cities involved hope to see additional financial support in a 
future 5310 grant cycle to continue these efforts. 
 
 

May 11, 2017: The 23rd Annual Bike to Work Day 
 
Bike to Work Day (BTWD) is coming soon and 
will be held on May 11, 2017.  On BTWD there 
will be energizer stations located along Bay 
Area commute routes where bicyclists can stop 
for refreshments, giveaways, and bicycling 
information.  In West County, we currently 
have (15) energizer stations registered.  You 
can find energizer stations by visiting our 
interactive map at: 
https://511contracosta.org/bike-to-work-day-
2017-thursday-may-11/#energizer.  
 
To build momentum for BTWD, employers, friends and neighbors can form a Bike Team.  By 
pedaling as a team, you can win prizes, and enjoy companionship on your ride to work or 
school.  You can participate through the website at (www.teambikechallenge.com) or via an 
app on from your smart phone.  The 2017 registration is open now, and the challenge begins on 
May 1st.  



 

West County Family Justice Center E-Locker Ribbon Cutting  
On Friday, May 14th, elected 
officials, and local agencies such as 
WCCTAC, the City of Richmond, Rich 
City RIDES, and the Richmond Police 
Department came together to 
celebrate the official opening of the 
bicycle racks, e-bicycle lockers, and 
electric vehicle charging stations at 
the West County Family Justice 
Center.  WCCTAC supported the 
event by providing a commuter 
information display to the center, 
and twenty reusable bags that 
included commute alternative 

information and bikelink cards for the ribbon cutting raffle.  Mayor Tom Butt was in attendance 
and said that the new infrastructure at the Justice Center will help to make Richmond a more 
mobile and healthy place. 
 

 
San Pablo Avenue Complete Streets Draft Study 
Contra Costa Public Works staff has released a Draft Feasibility Report for the San Pablo Avenue 
Complete Streets Study, which focuses on the Rodeo and Crockett portion of San Pablo Avenue.  
The study can be accessed at http://www.contracosta.ca.gov/6006/San-Pablo-Avenue-
Complete-Streets-Project. 
 
This effort was funded by an MTC grant called the Community Based Transportation Program 
(CBTF) which allows for Communities of Concern to analyze transportation enhancements that 
improve access.  At the Board’s direction, WCCTAC forwarded $60K of these funds to the 
County in 2015 to help fund the effort. The study looks at alternatives for implementing a 
complete street with bicycle and pedestrian and transit facilities along the three mile segment 
of San Pablo Avenue between Lone Tree Point and the Alfred Zampa Bridge (formerly known as 
the Carquinez Bridge).  

 
 
New Pinole Business and WCCTAC TDM 
A new Starbucks, located at 1314 Pinole Valley Road, is open for 
business.  Starbucks reached out to the WCCTAC TDM Program 
as required by the City of Pinole’s new business check list.  TDM 
staff conducted a site visit and provided relevant transportation 
information for employees and visitors of the new store.  There 
are bicycle racks available outside of the store for those who 
prefer to use active transportation to grab a cup of coffee. 

http://www.contracosta.ca.gov/6006/San-Pablo-Avenue-Complete-Streets-Project
http://www.contracosta.ca.gov/6006/San-Pablo-Avenue-Complete-Streets-Project


G
en

er
al

 L
ed

g
er

M
o

n
th

ly
 B

u
d

g
et

 R
ep

o
rt

U
se

r:
 K

el
ly

S

P
ri

n
te

d
: 

 0
4

/1
3

/1
7

 0
8

:3
2

:0
4

P
er

io
d

  
0

1
 -

 0
9

F
is

ca
l 

Y
ea

r 
2

0
1

7

A
cc

o
u

n
t 

N
u

m
b

er
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

B
u

d
g

et
Y

T
D

 A
ct

u
a

l
V

a
ri

a
n

ce
E

n
cu

m
b

er
e
d

A
v

a
il

a
b

le
%

 A
v

a
il

7
7

0
0

W
C

C
T

A
C

 O
p

er
a
ti

o
n

s

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

1
0

0
0

S
al

ar
y

3
7

5
,6

4
3

.0
0

$
  

  
  

 
1

9
9

,2
0

3
.6

2
$

  
  

  
1

7
6

,4
3

9
.3

8
$

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

7
6

,4
3

9
.3

8
$

  
  

  
 

4
6

.9
7

%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

1
0

0
2

B
u

y
 B

ac
k
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
2

2
.3

9
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(2

2
2

.3
9

)
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(2
2

2
.3

9
)

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

0
.0

0
%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

1
2

0
0

P
E

R
S

 R
et

ir
em

en
t

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
9

,1
7

0
.4

7
$

  
  

  
  

(3
9

,1
7

0
.4

7
)

$
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(3
9

,1
7

0
.4

7
)

$
  

  
  

  
0

.0
0

%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

1
3

1
0

M
ed

ic
al

 I
n

su
ra

n
ce

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
7

,6
7

4
.3

6
$

  
  

  
  

(3
7

,6
7

4
.3

6
)

$
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(3
7

,6
7

4
.3

6
)

$
  

  
  

  
0

.0
0

%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

1
3

1
1

R
et

ir
ee

 H
ea

lt
h

ca
re

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,4

1
3

.3
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,4

1
3

.3
5

)
$

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(1
,4

1
3

.3
5

)
$

  
  

  
  

  
0

.0
0

%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

1
4

0
0

D
en

ta
l

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
,9

4
8

.1
2

$
  

  
  

  
  

(4
,9

4
8

.1
2

)
$

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(4
,9

4
8

.1
2

)
$

  
  

  
  

  
0

.0
0

%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

1
8

0
0

L
T

D
 I

n
su

ra
n

ce
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

,8
3

7
.2

5
$

  
  

  
  

  
(1

,8
3

7
.2

5
)

$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(1

,8
3

7
.2

5
)

$
  

  
  

  
  

0
.0

0
%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

1
9

0
0

M
ed

ic
ar

e
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

,8
5

2
.9

7
$

  
  

  
  

  
(2

,8
5

2
.9

7
)

$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(2

,8
5

2
.9

7
)

$
  

  
  

  
  

0
.0

0
%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

1
9

0
4

L
if

e 
In

su
ra

n
ce

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
2

8
.5

7
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(5

2
8

.5
7

)
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(5
2

8
.5

7
)

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

0
.0

0
%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

1
9

1
1

L
ia

b
il

it
y
 I

n
su

ra
n

ce
3

,9
4

4
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

7
,6

6
0

.0
9

$
  

  
  

  
  

(3
,7

1
6

.0
9

)
$

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(3
,7

1
6

.0
9

)
$

  
  

  
  

  
-9

4
.2

2
%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

1
9

1
2

U
n

em
p

lo
y
m

en
t 

In
su

ra
n

ce
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

5
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(3
5

0
.0

0
)

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(3

5
0

.0
0

)
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
0

.0
0

%

S
a

la
ry

 a
n

d
 B

en
ef

it
s

3
7

9
,5

8
7

.0
0

$
  

  
  

2
9

5
,8

6
1

.1
9

$
  

  
 

8
3

,7
2

5
.8

1
$

  
  

  
  

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
3

,7
2

5
.8

1
$

  
  

  
  

2
2

.0
6

%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

3
5

0
0

O
ff

ic
e 

S
u

p
p

li
es

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
2

,8
1

1
.8

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
1

,1
8

8
.2

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

,1
8

8
.2

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
9

.7
1

%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

3
5

0
1

P
o

st
ag

e
7

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,5

8
2

.7
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

(8
8

2
.7

5
)

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(8

8
2

.7
5

)
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-1

2
6

.1
1

%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

3
5

2
0

C
o

p
ie

s/
P

ri
n

ti
n

g
/S

h
ip

p
in

g
/X

er
o

x
3

,7
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,4

4
7

.5
2

$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,2

5
2

.4
8

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,2

5
2

.4
8

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
3

3
.8

5
%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

3
5

3
0

O
ff

ic
e 

F
u

rn
 &

 E
q

u
ip

m
t 

<
$

5
0

0
0

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
8

2
1

.7
9

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,6

7
8

.2
1

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,6

7
8

.2
1

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
6

7
.1

3
%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

3
6

0
0

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 S

er
v
ic

es
5

6
,6

3
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
 

4
0

,2
1

4
.9

2
$

  
  

  
  

1
6

,4
1

5
.0

8
$

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
6

,4
1

5
.0

8
$

  
  

  
  

 
2

8
.9

9
%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

3
9

0
0

R
en

t/
B

u
il

d
in

g
1

7
,3

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
 

1
3

,3
5

5
.6

3
$

  
  

  
  

3
,9

4
4

.3
7

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
,9

4
4

.3
7

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
2

2
.8

0
%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

4
0

0
0

S
p

ec
ia

l 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
E

x
p

en
se

s
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
 

5
,8

6
6

.6
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
,1

3
3

.3
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
,1

3
3

.3
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
4

1
.3

3
%

7
7

0
-7

7
0

0
-4

4
3

2
0

T
ra

v
el

/T
ra

in
in

g
 S

ta
ff

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
4

,7
7

4
.8

6
$

  
  

  
  

  
1

,2
2

5
.1

4
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

,2
2

5
.1

4
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
0

.4
2

%

S
er

vi
ce

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
li

es
1

0
0

,8
3

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
7

1
,8

7
5

.9
2

$
  

  
  

 
2

8
,9

5
4

.0
8

$
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

8
,9

5
4

.0
8

$
  

  
  

  
2

8
.7

2
%

E
x

p
en

se
4

8
0

,4
1

7
.0

0
$

  
  

  
 

3
6

7
,7

3
7

.1
1

$
  

  
  

1
1

2
,6

7
9

.8
9

$
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
1

2
,6

7
9

.8
9

$
  

  
  

 
2

3
.4

5
%

7
7

0
0

W
C

C
T

A
C

 O
p

er
a
ti

o
n

s
4

8
0

,4
1

7
.0

0
$

  
  

  
 

3
6

7
,7

3
7

.1
1

$
  

  
  

1
1

2
,6

7
9

.8
9

$
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
1

2
,6

7
9

.8
9

$
  

  
  

 
2

3
.4

5
%

4
/1

3
/2

0
1

7
   

  9
:5

0
 A

M

1
 o

f 
3

C
:\

U
se

rs
\K

e
lly

S\
A

p
p

D
at

a\
Lo

ca
l\

Te
m

p
\2

0
1

7
.0

4
.1

3
-3

0
7

2
3

4
6

4
-B

u
d

ge
t 

R
e

p
o

rt
 M

o
n

th
ly

.x
m

l

6
4

-B
u

d
ge

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

 M
o

n
th

ly
.x

m
l

5-
1



G
en

er
al

 L
ed

g
er

M
o

n
th

ly
 B

u
d

g
et

 R
ep

o
rt

U
se

r:
 K

el
ly

S

P
ri

n
te

d
: 

 0
4

/1
3

/1
7

 0
8

:3
2

:0
4

P
er

io
d

  
0

1
 -

 0
9

F
is

ca
l 

Y
ea

r 
2

0
1

7

A
cc

o
u

n
t 

N
u

m
b

er
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

B
u

d
g

et
Y

T
D

 A
ct

u
a

l
V

a
ri

a
n

ce
E

n
cu

m
b

er
e
d

A
v

a
il

a
b

le
%

 A
v

a
il

7
7

2
0

W
C

C
T

A
C

 T
D

M

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

1
0

0
0

S
al

ar
y

3
7

8
,2

6
4

.0
0

$
 

  
1

6
9

,9
3

6
.7

2
$

  
  

  
2

0
8

,3
2

7
.2

8
$

 
  

-
$

 
  

2
0

8
,3

2
7

.2
8

$
 

  
5

5
.0

7
%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

1
0

0
2

B
u

y
 B

ac
k
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

-
$

 
  

7
0

4
.2

1
$

 
  

(7
0

4
.2

1
)

$
 

  
-

$
 

  
(7

0
4

.2
1

)
$

 
  

0
.0

0
%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

1
2

0
0

P
E

R
S

 R
et

ir
em

en
t

-
$

 
  

3
6

,0
0

8
.8

1
$

 
  

(3
6

,0
0

8
.8

1
)

$
 

  
-

$
 

  
(3

6
,0

0
8

.8
1

)
$

 
  

0
.0

0
%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

1
3

1
0

M
ed

ic
al

 I
n

su
ra

n
ce

-
$

 
  

3
9

,1
4

4
.5

3
$

 
  

(3
9

,1
4

4
.5

3
)

$
 

  
-

$
 

  
(3

9
,1

4
4

.5
3

)
$

 
  

0
.0

0
%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

1
4

0
0

D
en

ta
l 

In
su

ra
n

ce
-

$
 

  
3

,3
0

1
.9

6
$

 
  

(3
,3

0
1

.9
6

)
$

 
  

-
$

 
  

(3
,3

0
1

.9
6

)
$

 
  

0
.0

0
%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

1
8

0
0

L
T

D
 I

n
su

ra
n

ce
-

$
 

  
1

,0
3

5
.5

2
$

 
  

(1
,0

3
5

.5
2

)
$

 
  

-
$

 
  

(1
,0

3
5

.5
2

)
$

 
  

0
.0

0
%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

1
9

0
0

M
ed

ic
ar

e
-

$
 

  
2

,4
2

1
.0

1
$

 
  

(2
,4

2
1

.0
1

)
$

 
  

-
$

 
  

(2
,4

2
1

.0
1

)
$

 
  

0
.0

0
%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

1
9

0
2

F
IC

A
-

$
 

  
7

3
5

.6
4

$
 

  
(7

3
5

.6
4

)
$

 
  

-
$

 
  

(7
3

5
.6

4
)

$
 

  
0

.0
0

%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

1
9

0
4

L
if

e 
In

su
ra

n
ce

-
$

 
  

3
0

4
.0

9
$

 
  

(3
0

4
.0

9
)

$
 

  
-

$
 

  
(3

0
4

.0
9

)
$

 
  

0
.0

0
%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

1
9

1
1

L
ia

b
il

it
y
 I

n
su

ra
n

ce
3

,9
4

4
.0

0
$

 
  

7
,6

6
0

.1
1

$
 

  
(3

,7
1

6
.1

1
)

$
 

  
-

$
 

  
(3

,7
1

6
.1

1
)

$
 

  
-9

4
.2

2
%

S
a

la
ry

 a
n

d
 B

en
ef

it
s

3
8

2
,2

0
8

.0
0

$
 

 
2

6
1

,2
5

2
.6

0
$

  
  

 
1

2
0

,9
5

5
.4

0
$

 
 

-
$

 
 

1
2

0
,9

5
5

.4
0

$
 

 
3

1
.6

5
%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

3
5

0
0

5
0

0
.0

0
$

 
  

2
,9

2
5

.3
8

$
 

  
(2

,4
2

5
.3

8
)

$
 

  
-

$
 

  
(2

,4
2

5
.3

8
)

$
 

  
-4

8
5

.0
8

%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

3
5

0
1

-
$

 
  

2
,7

1
4

.2
5

$
 

  
(2

,7
1

4
.2

5
)

$
 

  
-

$
 

  
(2

,7
1

4
.2

5
)

$
 

  
0

.0
0

%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

3
5

0
2

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
 

  
4

4
4

.6
1

$
 

  
1

,5
5

5
.3

9
$

 
  

-
$

 
  

1
,5

5
5

.3
9

$
 

  
7

7
.7

7
%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

3
5

2
0

4
,9

0
0

.0
0

$
 

  
2

,2
9

8
.4

0
$

 
  

2
,6

0
1

.6
0

$
 

  
-

$
 

  
2

,6
0

1
.6

0
$

 
  

5
3

.0
9

%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

3
6

0
0

3
1

,6
3

0
.0

0
$

 
  

3
0

,7
2

8
.4

8
$

 
  

9
0

1
.5

2
$

 
  

-
$

 
  

9
0

1
.5

2
$

 
  

2
.8

5
%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

3
9

0
0

2
0

,8
0

0
.0

0
$

 
  

1
7

,9
8

3
.4

6
$

 
  

2
,8

1
6

.5
4

$
 

  
-

$
 

  
2

,8
1

6
.5

4
$

 
  

1
3

.5
4

%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

4
0

0
0

1
7

9
,3

7
1

.0
0

$
 

  
8

9
,6

0
0

.8
4

$
 

  
8

9
,7

7
0

.1
6

$
 

  
-

$
 

  
8

9
,7

7
0

.1
6

$
 

  
5

0
.0

5
%

7
7

2
-7

7
2

0
-4

4
3

2
0

3
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
 

  
2

,4
5

6
.7

5
$

 
  

1
,0

4
3

.2
5

$
 

  
-

$
 

  
1

,0
4

3
.2

5
$

 
  

2
9

.8
1

%

O
ff

ic
e 

S
u

p
p

li
es

T
D

M
 P

o
st

ag
e

T
D

M
 P

o
st

ag
e

C
o

p
ie

s/
P

ri
n

ti
n

g
/S

h
ip

p
in

g
/X

er
o

x
 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 S

er
v
ic

es

R
en

t/
B

u
il

d
in

g

Pr
og

ra
m

 F
un

ds
T

ra
v
el

/T
ra

in
in

g
 S

ta
ff

S
er

vi
ce

 a
n

d
 S

u
p
p
li

es
2

4
2

,7
0

1
.0

0
$

 
 

1
4

9
,1

5
2

.1
7

$
  

  
 

9
3

,5
4

8
.8

3
$

 
 

-
$

 
 

9
3

,5
4

8
.8

3
$

 
 

3
8

.5
4

%

E
x

p
en

se
6

2
4

,9
0

9
.0

0
$

 
  

4
1

0
,4

0
4

.7
7

$
  

  
  

2
1

4
,5

0
4

.2
3

$
 

  
-

$
 

  
2

1
4

,5
0

4
.2

3
$

 
  

3
4

.3
3

%

7
7

2
0

W
C

C
T

A
C

 T
D

M
6

2
4

,9
0

9
.0

0
$

 
  

4
1

0
,4

0
4

.7
7

$
  

  
  

2
1

4
,5

0
4

.2
3

$
 

  
-

$
 

  
2

1
4

,5
0

4
.2

3
$

 
  

3
4

.3
3

%

7
7

3
0

S
T

M
P

4
/1

3
/2

0
1

7
   

  9
:5

0
 A

M

2
 o

f 
3

C
:\

U
se

rs
\K

e
lly

S\
A

p
p

D
at

a\
Lo

ca
l\

Te
m

p
\2

0
1

7
.0

4
.1

3
-3

0
7

2
3

4
6

4
-B

u
d

ge
t 

R
e

p
o

rt
 M

o
n

th
ly

.x
m

l

6
4

-B
u

d
ge

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

 M
o

n
th

ly
.x

m
l

5-
2



G
en

er
al

 L
ed

g
er

M
o

n
th

ly
 B

u
d

g
et

 R
ep

o
rt

U
se

r:
 K

el
ly

S

P
ri

n
te

d
: 

 0
4

/1
3

/1
7

 0
8

:3
2

:0
4

P
er

io
d

  
0

1
 -

 0
9

F
is

ca
l 

Y
ea

r 
2

0
1

7

A
cc

o
u

n
t 

N
u

m
b

er
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

B
u

d
g

et
Y

T
D

 A
ct

u
a

l
V

a
ri

a
n

ce
E

n
cu

m
b

er
e
d

A
v

a
il

a
b

le
%

 A
v

a
il

7
7

3
-7

7
3

0
-4

1
0

0
0

S
al

ar
y

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

 
1

0
0

.0
0

%

S
a

la
ry

 a
n

d
 B

en
ef

it
s

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

  
1

0
0

.0
0

%

7
7

3
-7

7
3

0
-4

3
6

0
0

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 S

er
v
ic

es
2

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
 

1
0

0
.0

0
%

7
7

3
-7

7
3

0
-4

4
0

0
0

S
p

ec
ia

l 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
E

x
p

en
se

2
,8

2
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

5
2

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

2
,3

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2

,3
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
8

1
.3

6
%

S
er

vi
ce

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
li

es
3

,0
7

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

 
5

2
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

 
2

,5
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

,5
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

 
8

2
.8

7
%

E
x

p
en

se
3

,1
1

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
5

2
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  
2

,5
9

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,5

9
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

8
3

.0
9

%

7
7

3
0

S
T

M
P

3
,1

1
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

5
2

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
  

2
,5

9
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2

,5
9

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  

  
8

3
.0

9
%

7
7

4
0

W
C

C
T

A
C

 S
p

ec
ia

l 
P

ro
je

ct
s

7
7

4
-7

7
4

0
-4

3
6

0
0

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 S

er
v
ic

es
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(4

2
,3

4
3

.7
5

)
$

  
  

  
4

2
,3

4
3

.7
5

$
  

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
4

2
,3

4
3

.7
5

$
  

  
  

  
 

0
.0

0
%

7
7

4
-7

7
4

0
-4

4
0

0
0

S
p

ec
ia

l 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
E

x
p

en
se

4
8

3
,5

8
1

.0
0

$
  

  
  

 
2

2
6

,8
9

1
.2

2
$

  
  

  
2

5
6

,6
8

9
.7

8
$

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2

5
6

,6
8

9
.7

8
$

  
  

  
 

5
3

.0
8

%

S
er

vi
ce

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
li

es
4

8
3

,5
8

1
.0

0
$

  
  

  
1

8
4

,5
4

7
.4

7
$

  
  

 
2

9
9

,0
3

3
.5

3
$

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

9
9

,0
3

3
.5

3
$

  
  

  
6

1
.8

4
%

E
x

p
en

se
4

8
3

,5
8

1
.0

0
$

  
  

  
 

1
8

4
,5

4
7

.4
7

$
  

  
  

2
9

9
,0

3
3

.5
3

$
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
9

9
,0

3
3

.5
3

$
  

  
  

 
6

1
.8

4
%

7
7

4
0

W
C

C
T

A
C

 S
p

ec
ia

l 
P

ro
je

ct
s

4
8

3
,5

8
1

.0
0

$
  

  
  

 
1

8
4

,5
4

7
.4

7
$

  
  

  
2

9
9

,0
3

3
.5

3
$

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2

9
9

,0
3

3
.5

3
$

  
  

  
 

6
1

.8
4

%

E
x

p
en

se
 T

o
ta

l
4

,7
0

5
,9

0
7

.0
0

$
  

  
1

,4
8

9
,6

8
9

.3
5

$
  

 
3

,2
1

6
,2

1
7

.6
5

$
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
,2

1
6

,2
1

7
.6

5
$

  
  

6
8

.3
4

%

4
/1

3
/2

0
1

7
   

  9
:5

0
 A

M

3
 o

f 
3

C
:\

U
se

rs
\K

e
lly

S\
A

p
p

D
at

a\
Lo

ca
l\

Te
m

p
\2

0
1

7
.0

4
.1

3
-3

0
7

2
3

4
6

4
-B

u
d

ge
t 

R
e

p
o

rt
 M

o
n

th
ly

.x
m

l

6
4

-B
u

d
ge

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

 M
o

n
th

ly
.x

m
l

5-
3





  
 
 
 
 
 

TO: WCCTAC Board MEETING DATE: April 28, 2017 

FR: Leah Greenblat, Project Manager   

RE: West County High-Capacity Transit Study:  Funding Strategies, Outreach 
Summary and Draft Final Report 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Receive presentation and provide feedback. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
The West County High-Capacity Transit Study is nearing its conclusion.  Recent work, to be 
presented to the Board in April, includes: funding scenarios, summaries of the recent council 
presentations, online survey results, and a Draft Final Report.  
 
Both the WCCTAC TAC and the Study Management Team have reviewed and commented on 
earlier versions of the documents to be presented at the Board’s April meeting.  The two 
groups have also completed their review of several other technical memos whose content 
(ridership estimates, cost estimates, and final alternative evaluation) have already been 
summarized and presented to the Board at prior meetings.   
 
The Draft “Council Presentations and Survey #2 Outreach Report” is attached while its 
Appendix is posted on the study’s website (www.WestCountyTransitStudy.com).  For those 
interested in seeing the replies to open-ended survey questions, the appendix contains the 
full listing as well as further breakdown of this informational survey.  Additionally, the 
Funding Strategy Technical Memo has been posted to the website.  All of the completed 
reports and memos are now available on the study’s website:  
www.WestCountyTransitStudy.com . 
 
Most of the content included in the attached Draft Final Report is based on prior drafts of 
technical memos developed for this study and whose contents were previously summarized 
and presented to the Board for feedback.  New content in the draft Final Report include the 
topics noted above for presentation at the Board meeting.   
 
Staff is particularly interested in Board feedback on a section of the report that describes 
what it could be done next if the Board wished to pursue implementation of any or all of the 
alternatives.  This feedback could include direction about whether WCCTAC should be 
involved, the degree of involvement, and the role that WCCTAC would play.   
 

7-1

http://www.westcountytransitstudy.com/
http://www.westcountytransitstudy.com/


ATTACHMENTS WITH AGENDA PACKET: 
A. Draft April 2017 Council Presentation and Survey #2 Outreach Report 
B. Draft Final Report (included separately from Agenda Packet in Board member packet)  

ATTACHMENTS AVAILABLE ONLINE AT www.WestCountyTransitStudy.com: 
C. Draft April 2017 Council Presentation and Survey #2 Outreach Report Appendix 
D. Technical Memo #12:  Ridership Estimates 
E. Technical Memo #13:  Cost Estimates 
F. Technical Memo #14:  Funding Strategy 
G. Technical Memo #15:  Final Evaluation of Alternatives 

7-2

http://www.westcountytransitstudy.com/


 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

 

 

   

 

April 2017 

Circlepoint with 
 
 

 

West Contra Costa High-Capacity Transit Study 

DRAFT Public Outreach Summary Report 
Winter/Spring 2017 

 

  

 

  

7A-1



Document Review 

Date Updated By Organization Description of Revision 

3/30/2017 Nguyen Pham Circlepoint Initial Draft 

4/3/2017 Nguyen Pham Circlepoint 
Revision to Initial Draft per 
Feedback from Rebecca Kohlstrand 
on 4/3 (AM) 

4/4/2017 Nguyen Pham Circlepoint 
Revision to Revised Draft per 
Feedback from Rebecca Kohlstrand 
on 4/3 (PM) 

4/10/2017 Nguyen Pham Circlepoint 
Additional Revision per Feedback 
from Rebecca Kohlstrand on 4/7 

    

    

    

 

Document Sign-off 

Name Date Signature 

Rebecca Kohlstrand 4/4/2017 

 

   

   

 

 

7A-2



Introduction 
From February 2017 through March 2017, the West Contra Costa High-Capacity Transit Study project 
team facilitated a second round of public outreach along the I-80 corridor to share information and 
solicit community feedback related to a set of high-capacity transit options proposed to help alleviate 
congestion in West Contra Costa County. As with the first round of public outreach, an online survey was 
made available to gather input from a broad cross section of current and potential high-capacity transit 
users. Specifically, the project team sought input to inform which from among the existing alternatives 
would be selected for further study as preferred alternatives. 
 

Council Presentation Dates 

Location Date/Time 

Richmond City Council Chambers 
440 Civic Center Plaza, Richmond 

Tuesday, February 28, 2017 
6:30 p.m. to 8:30 p.m. 

San Pablo City Council Chambers 
13831 San Pablo Avenue, San Pablo 

Monday, March 6, 2017 
6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

Pinole City Council Chambers 
2131 Pear Street, Pinole 

Tuesday, March 7, 2017 
6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

El Sobrante Elks’ Lodge 
3931 San Pablo Dam Road, El Sobrante 

Wednesday, March 8, 2017 
8:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. 

Hercules City Council Chambers 
111 Civic Drive, Hercules 

Tuesday, March 14, 2017 
7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. 

El Cerrito City Council Chambers 
10890 San Pablo Ave, El Cerrito 

Tuesday, March 21, 2017 
7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. 

 

Meeting Format 
As a follow-on to the previous year’s initial round of outreach meetings, the recent series of public 
meetings enabled Project Team staff to deliver presentations to the El Sobrante Municipal Advisory 
Council and to the City Councils of El Cerrito, Hercules, Pinole, Richmond, and San Pablo. Each 
presentation was entered as an official agenda item and delivered during regularly scheduled meetings. 
Following each formal presentation, a Q&A session provided attendees the platform to ask questions 
and comment on the proposed alternatives. 

The following informational materials were provided at the council meetings: 

7A-3



• Handouts: Project fact sheet in English, Spanish, and Traditional Chinese 
• Presentation: A PowerPoint presentation, delivered by WSP | Parsons Brinckerhoff, providing 

an overview of the Study and a summary of the remaining five alternatives 

Following the Council meetings, the presentation was made available for download on the Study 
website (www.WestCountyTransitStudy.com). 

Excerpts from the project fact sheet (Round 2) 

Comments 
At the Council presentations, attendees were invited to provide comments and express their interests 
via the following channels: 

• Providing input at the meetings 
• Completing the online project survey 

 

 

7A-4

http://www.westcountytransitstudy.com/


Key Themes 
The team noted a wide range of feedback from the Council meetings. While all comments will not be 
included in this report, what follows shows the range of comments delivered. 
 

Project team staff speaking at the Hercules City Council Presentation 

 
Members of the city councils expressed general support for the proposed transit improvements as a way 
to address the growing congestion on I-80 and for the concept of a strengthened high-capacity transit 
network. Members of the Municipal Advisory Council (MAC) expressed concern that the alternatives did 
not address congestion on San Pablo Dam Road and members of the El Cerrito City Council indicated 
they would like to see more benefits for El Cerrito. 
 
Express Bus/Bus Rapid Transit 

• There was universal support for short-term bus improvements that would introduce alternatives 
to driving on the congested I-80 freeway. Support for the specific options varied by location and 
there was some concern expressed that the bus improvements were good short-term 
improvements, but may not be adequate to solve problems in the long-term. 

• BRT was noted as holding promise, but concerns were expressed about dedicating a lane to 
transit, with the potential negative impacts to traffic flow and removal of parking, and the 
potential impact to small businesses. 

• Bus improvements were seen as having potential for attracting more riders for the level of 
investment than commuter rail. 

7A-5



• City of San Pablo expressed support for the 23rd Street BRT and for improving service to Contra 
Costa College. 

 
Commuter Rail 

• Support for the commuter rail fare subsidies and new station in Hercules were mixed. Support 
was strong in Hercules and the city noted that a recent telephone town hall conducted by the 
city indicated strong support for the Regional Intermodal Transit Center at Hercules.  However, 
council members from other jurisdictions indicated that the commuter rail projects were costly 
for the small return on ridership.  

Informational materials on display at the El Cerrito City Council Presentation 

BART 
• There was general support for BART as long-term solution given its potential ridership and the 

good connectivity to the rest of the Bay Area, particularly to high demand areas like Oakland 
and San Francisco.  

• The potential to generate economic development and serve high demand centers was also 
noted as a positive for the BART system. 

• The cities of San Pablo and Pinole supported a BART extension with service to Contra Costa 
College, which is the highest trip generator in the City of San Pablo. 

• The City of El Cerrito noted that the addition of BART stations, while relieving demand at the El 
Cerrito del Norte station would not address the train capacity problems. El Cerrito residents 
would still be boarding crowded trains. 

• The City of Pinole expressed concern about the ability of the Appian Way station site to 
accommodate BART parking.  

• The City of Hercules noted the future potential for ridership at the Hilltop Mall, but expressed 

7A-6



concerns about the ability to fund a BART extension. 
• The City of Richmond expressed general support for BART, but expressed concern about 

increasing fares and the affordability for riders. 
• Acknowledgement that BART expansion, while greatly needed, is among the costliest of options. 
• Recognition that West County taxpayers have funded BART for half a century and are still 

awaiting a BART extension into West County. 
 

I-80 Congestion 
• There was an expression of opinion that Solano County is a major contributor to traffic 

congestion on I-80 and that congestion on I-80 is diverting traffic to surface streets, which are 
experiencing increased congestion. This is particularly true on San Pablo Avenue. 

• The El Sobrante Municipal Advisory Council expressed concern that the Study does not address 
traffic congestion at San Pablo Dam Road and suggested that a separate study might be needed 
specifically for San Pablo Dam Road traffic congestion. 

• Concerns were expressed that I-80 congestion is only getting worse, resulting in ever-increasing 
negative impacts upon the quality-of-life. 
 

Costs/Funding 
• There was universal concern about the ability to fund these needed improvements, particularly 

for the BART extension, which is the most costly. 
• Council members expressed interest in better understanding the trade-offs in terms of costs and 

benefits, such as job creation, environmental mitigation, and quality-of-life. 
• It was noted that some cities are “maxed out” on sales taxes making it challenging for local 

entities to raise significant funds. 
• Concerns were expressed that, from a cost perspective, funding for Capitol Corridor would 

provide an insufficient increase in rider capacity. 
 

Survey Results 
The project team developed a Round 2 survey to obtain a deeper understanding of trip patterns, 
transportation challenges, and transit solution preferences from existing and potential future transit 
users in West County. 

The survey was made available online via the popular SurveyMonkey platform in English, Spanish, and 
Traditional Chinese. The survey was also linked prominently at the Study website, and the response 
window spanned from February 16 to March 26, 2017. 

At the El Cerrito City Council Presentation meeting, City staff offered paper versions of the online survey 
in English, Spanish, and Traditional Chinese. Staff then entered responses submitted via the paper 
survey into the online survey platform to maximize cohesion of response tracking and reporting. 

7A-7



During the survey response window, 622 responses were captured of which 619 were via the English-
language survey. Two Spanish surveys and one Traditional Chinese survey were captured. 

Below is a snapshot of survey participants’ most frequently reported answers. To provide more 
meaningful insight, the results have been refined into two subsets and are presented side-by-side. On 
the left, survey metrics represent those respondents whose commutes begin in the Study area (353 
respondents); on the right, the metrics represent those respondents whose commutes end in the Study 
area (98 respondents). 

For a complete and unrefined listing of all survey responses, please see the attached Appendix. 

COMMUTES THAT BEGIN IN STUDY AREA 
(353 respondents) 

COMMUTES THAT END IN STUDY AREA 
(98 respondents) 

1. Where does your trip to work or school 
usually START? 
• 22.10% - Richmond 
• 19.83% - El Cerrito 
• 15.58% - El Sobrante 
• 14.16% - Pinole 
• 13.88% - Hercules 
• 9.35% - San Pablo 
• 1.42% - Rodeo 
• 0.85% - Crockett 

1. Where does your trip to work or school 
usually START? 
• 19.39% - Richmond 
• 12.24% - El Cerrito 
• 11.22% - El Sobrante 
• 8.16% - Hercules 
• 7.14% - Pinole 
• 7.14% - Concord / Pleasant Hill / Pittsburgh / 

Walnut Creek 
• 6.12% - Oakland 
• 5.10% - Berkeley 
• 4.08% - San Pablo 

2. Where does your trip to work or school 
usually END? 
• 35.23% - San Francisco 
• 14.20% - Oakland 
• 13.92% - Berkeley 
• 6.53% - Richmond 
• 3.98% - San Pablo 
• 3.69% - El Cerrito 
• 3.13% - Emeryville 

2. Where does your trip to work or school 
usually END? 
• 32.32% - Richmond 
• 28.28% - San Pablo 
• 17.17% - El Cerrito 
• 8.08% - Hercules 
• 5.05% - Pinole 
• 3.03% - El Sobrante 
• 2.02% - Crockett 
• 1.01% - Rodeo 

3. How do you usually make this trip? 
• 40.06% - Drive alone 
• 31.53% - BART 
• 7.67% - Bus 
• 5.68% - Carpool or vanpool 
• 2.84% - Bike 

3. How do you usually make this trip? 
• 65.98% - Drive alone 
• 9.28% - BART 
• 6.19% - Bus 
• 6.19% - Bike  
• 2.06% - Carpool or vanpool 
• 2.06% - Walk 

4. Given your transportation needs, how often 
would you use this subsidy to travel on Capitol 
Corridor? 
• 36.58% - Rarely (Once a month) 

4. Given your transportation needs, how often 
would you use this subsidy to travel on Capitol 
Corridor? 
• 38.54% - Rarely (Once a month) 

7A-8



• 32.15% - Never 
• 16.52% - Frequently (3 to 5 times a week) 
• 14.75% - Occasionally (Less than once a 

week) 

• 34.38% - Never 
• 14.58% - Occasionally (Less than once a 

week) 
• 12.50% - Frequently (3 to 5 times a week) 

5. Given your transportation needs, would you 
use this Express bus service to Alameda County? 
• 37.09% - Never 
• 36.50% - Rarely (once a month) 
• 14.24% - Occasionally (less than once a week) 
• 12.17% - Frequently (3 to 5 times a week) 

5. Given your transportation needs, would you 
use this Express bus service to Alameda County? 
• 44.79% - Rarely (once a month) 
• 42.71% - Never 
• 6.25% - Occasionally (less than once a week) 
• 6.25% - Frequently (3 to 5 times a week) 

6. Given your transportation needs, would you 
use Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) service on San Pablo 
Avenue and/or Macdonald Avenue? 
• 31.93% - Rarely (once a month) 
• 27.71% - Never 
• 21.99% - Frequently (3 to 5 times a week) 
• 18.37% - Occasionally (less than once a week) 

6. Given your transportation needs, would you 
use Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) service on San Pablo 
Avenue and/or Macdonald Avenue? 
• 31.52% - Never 
• 31.52% - Occasionally (less than once a week) 
• 21.74% - Rarely (once a month) 
• 15.22% - Frequently (3 to 5 times a week) 

7. Given your transportation needs, would you 
use this Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) service on 23rd 
Street and San Pablo Avenue? 
• 37.04% - Never 
• 31.17% - Rarely (once a month) 
• 17.28% - Occasionally (less than once a week) 
• 14.51% - Frequently (3 to 5 times a week) 

7. Given your transportation needs, would you 
use this Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) service on 23rd 
Street and San Pablo Avenue? 
• 32.97% - Never 
• 26.37% - Rarely (once a month) 
• 21.98% - Occasionally (less than once a week) 
• 18.68% - Frequently (3 to 5 times a week) 

8. Given your transportation needs, would you 
use this BART extension (via Rumrill Blvd)? 
• 52.16% - Frequently (3 to 5 times a week) 
• 18.21% - Occasionally (less than once a week) 

17.90% - Rarely (once a month) 
• 11.73% - Never 

8. Given your transportation needs, would you 
use this BART extension (via Rumrill Blvd)? 
• 40.00% - Frequently (3 to 5 times a week) 
• 23.33% - Rarely (once a month) 
• 20.00% - Occasionally (less than once a week) 
• 16.67% - Never 

9. Given your transportation needs, would you 
use this BART extension (via Richmond 
Parkway)? 
• 45.65% - Frequently (3 to 5 times a week) 
• 18.63% - Rarely (once a month) 
• 18.01% - Occasionally (less than once a week) 

17.70% - Never 

9. Given your transportation needs, would you 
use this BART extension (via Richmond 
Parkway)? 
• 30.68% - Frequently (3 to 5 times a week) 
• 28.41% - Never  
• 23.86% - Rarely (once a month) 
• 17.05% - Occasionally (less than once a week) 

10. Given all you know, which option(s) would 
best fit your transportation needs? Check all 
that apply. 
• 64.89% - BART Extension from Richmond 

Station to Hercules 
• 30.09% - Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) on San 

Pablo Avenue (El Cerrito to Hercules) and 
Macdonald Avenue (Point Richmond to El 
Cerrito) 

10. Given all you know, which option(s) would 
best fit your transportation needs? Check all 
that apply. 
• 60.67% - BART Extension from Richmond 

Station to Hercules 
• 38.20% - Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) on San 

Pablo Avenue (El Cerrito to Hercules) and 
Macdonald Avenue (Point Richmond to El 
Cerrito) 

7A-9



• 23.51% - Express Bus Service to Berkeley, 
Emeryville and Oakland 

• 17.24% - Reduced Fares on Capitol Corridor 
• 14.11% - None of these 
• 12.85% - Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) on 23rd 

Street and San Pablo Avenue 

• 21.35% - Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) on 23rd 
Street and San Pablo Avenue 

• 21.35% - Reduced Fares on Capitol Corridor 
• 15.73% - None of these  
• 7.87% - Express Bus Service to Berkeley, 

Emeryville and Oakland 
11. What are the key reasons for your 
selection(s) above? Check all that apply. 
• 65.36% - Gets me to my destination without 

driving 
• 64.38% - Decreases cars on the road 
• 57.52% - It’s good for the environment 
• 39.54% - Improves transit services I already 

use 
• 38.24% - Saves me time 
• 34.97% - Allows me to make a transit trip that 

I couldn’t before 
• 23.53% - Saves me money 

11. What are the key reasons for your 
selection(s) above? Check all that apply. 
• 63.53% - Gets me to my destination without 

driving 
• 58.82% - Decreases cars on the road 
• 50.59% - It’s good for the environment 
• 35.29% - Allows me to make a transit trip that 

I couldn’t before 
• 31.76% - Improves transit services I already 

use 
• 30.59% - Saves me time 
• 20.00% - Saves me money 

 

The final question of the survey, Question 12, was an optional survey question and posed the following 
open-ended prompt: Do you have any other suggestions for improving your commute in West County? 
Below is a summary of the most frequently reported responses from the subset of respondents whose 
commutes begin and/or end in the Study area. While all comments will not be included in this report, 
what follows shows the range of comments provided. 

• BART (51 comments) 
o Respondents were overwhelmingly in favor of extending BART routes and expanding train 

capacity on existing and new routes. 
o Respondents desired greater parking capacity at BART stations as well as improved 

cleanliness and reliability of train cars. 
• Bus and BRT (32 comments) 

o Respondents showed favorability toward express bus service that provides riders with more 
seamless connections to BART. 

o Respondents requested reinstatement of AC Transit bus service to and from Orinda BART. 
• Bike/Ped (26 comments) 

o Respondents expressed desire for more and improved safe bicycling options, such as 
dedicated bike lanes and bike paths, particularly along San Pablo Avenue. 

• Highway Improvements and Law Enforcement (19 comments) 
o Respondents recommended the expansion of highways in particular areas of West County 

as well as the addition of toll lanes on existing highway segments. 
o Respondents suggested that high-occupancy vehicle lanes should have expanded hours and 

that the related vehicle occupancy laws be enforced more rigorously. 
• Ferry (9 comments) 

7A-10



o Respondents indicated the desire for ferry service from West County to San Francisco, 
Marin, and Alameda. 

• Rail & General Transit (8 comments) 
o Respondents desired improved access to, and service on, Amtrak and Caltrain Capitol 

Corridor. 

Survey Demographic Information 

Survey participants were also prompted for some optional demographic and contact information. The 
majority of survey respondents who chose to answer these questions were between the ages of 35-64, 
white (not Hispanic/Latino), and earning moderate to high incomes ($75,000 or more). Survey 
participants most popularly indicated that they had heard of the survey through social media outlets, 
such as Twitter and NextDoor. 

  

7A-11



Notification Methods 
Partner Agency Communications 

As with Round 1 of public outreach activities, the project team worked with member agencies and 
partners to develop compelling messages and utilize their existing communication channels to ensure 
broad public notification. The project team developed tailored notification materials for the most 
popular channels of communication among the Study partners (email, social media, flier) to make it as 
easy as possible for partners to assist with publicizing the Council presentations and online survey. 

Study partners who assisted with distributing communications included: 

• City of El Cerrito City Manager’s Report E-blast 
• City of San Pablo City Manager’s Report E-blast 
• City of Richmond City Manager’s Report E-blast 
• BART Digital System Signage at West County stations 
• BART Twitter 
• Contra Costa Transportation Authority newsletter 

Press Release 

In addition to the notifications disseminated by Study partners, a press release was developed and 
distributed to media outlets, including West County-focused online and print outlets. 

The notification materials for the Council presentations can be found in the appendix to this report. 

Press Coverage 
The following news media outlets publicized or covered the Council presentation series: 

• Richmond Standard 
o West County residents asked to weigh in on region’s transit future 
o Wednesday, February 22, 2017 
o http://richmondstandard.com/2017/02/22/west-county-residents-asked-to-weigh-in-

on-regions-transit-future/ 
 

• East Bay Times 
o West Contra Costa seeks public input on addressing traffic congestion 
o Wednesday, March 1, 2017 
o http://www.eastbaytimes.com/2017/03/01/west-county-seeks-public-input-on-

addressing-traffic-congestion/ 
• East Bay Times 

o West Contra Costa studying I-80 corridor gridlock solutions 

7A-12

http://richmondstandard.com/2017/02/22/west-county-residents-asked-to-weigh-in-on-regions-transit-future/
http://richmondstandard.com/2017/02/22/west-county-residents-asked-to-weigh-in-on-regions-transit-future/
http://www.eastbaytimes.com/2017/03/01/west-county-seeks-public-input-on-addressing-traffic-congestion/
http://www.eastbaytimes.com/2017/03/01/west-county-seeks-public-input-on-addressing-traffic-congestion/


o Tuesday, March 28, 2017 
o http://www.eastbaytimes.com/2017/03/28/west-contra-costa-studying-i-80-corridor-

gridlock-solutions/ 
• Univision 14 

o Television broadcast of interview with Leah Greenblatt in regard to what WCCTAC is 
doing to address congestion on I-80 

o Thursday, March 30, 2017 

Appendix 
The following materials are included as an appendix to this public outreach summary report. 

I. Fact Sheet 
II. Notification Content 

III. Online Survey 
IV. Online Survey Summary Reports 

7A-13

http://www.eastbaytimes.com/2017/03/28/west-contra-costa-studying-i-80-corridor-gridlock-solutions/
http://www.eastbaytimes.com/2017/03/28/west-contra-costa-studying-i-80-corridor-gridlock-solutions/




W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 T
ra

ns
it 

St
ud

y

Draft Final Report
May 2017

7B-1



DR
AF

T

7B-2



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
1

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

C
on

te
nt

s
A

b
o

u
t 

W
C

C
T

A
C

W
C

C
TA

C
 is

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r t

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 fo

r t
he

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

su
b-

re
gi

on
 a

nd
 o

ne
 o

f f
ou

r r
eg

io
na

l t
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

pl
an

ni
ng

 c
om

m
itt

ee
s 

in
 C

on
tra

 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y,

 re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

th
e 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 s
ub

-a
re

a.
 T

he
se

 fo
ur

 
co

m
m

itt
ee

s 
w

er
e 

cr
ea

te
d 

in
 19

88
 to

 g
ui

de
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
am

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

M
ea

su
re

 C
 h

al
f-c

en
t, 

tra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
sa

le
s 

ta
x 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

C
on

tra
 

C
os

ta
 v

ot
er

s.
 M

ea
su

re
 C

 w
as

 s
uc

ce
ed

ed
 b

y 
M

ea
su

re
 J

 in
 2

00
4.



T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 

M
e

m
o

ra
n

d
a

Th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f t
he

 in
iti

al
 re

vi
ew

 o
f p

re
vi

ou
s 

st
ud

ie
s 

an
d 

al
l o

f t
he

 a
na

ly
se

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

fo
r t

he
 s

tu
dy

 a
re

 d
oc

um
en

te
d 

in
 a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 M
em

or
an

da
 

(s
ee

 a
 fu

ll 
lis

tin
g 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
is

 re
po

rt
). 

Th
e 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l M
em

or
an

da
 c

an
 a

ls
o 

be
 

ac
ce

ss
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

st
ud

y 
w

eb
si

te
 (w

es
tc

ou
nt

yt
ra

ns
its

tu
dy

.c
om

) o
r t

he
 W

C
C

TA
C

 
w

eb
si

te
 (w

cc
ta

c.
or

g)
.



1.
0 

 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
3

2.
0 

 
B

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
4

 
2.

1 S
tu

dy
 P

ur
po

se
 

7
 

2.
2 

St
ud

y 
Pr

oc
es

s 
8

3.
0 

 
O

ut
re

ac
h 

9
 

3.
1 W

C
C

TA
C

 B
oa

rd
 

9
 

3.
2 

Ad
vi

so
ry

 G
ro

up
s 

 
9

 
3.

3 
Te

le
ph

on
e 

To
w

n 
H

al
l 

9
 

3.
4 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

ho
ps

 a
nd

 S
ur

ve
y 

#1
 

10
 

3.
5 

C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 a
nd

 S
ur

ve
y 

#2
 

12

4.
0 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

Tr
an

si
t M

ar
ke

t 
14

 
4.

1 H
ow

 D
o 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

Re
si

de
nt

s 
G

et
 A

ro
un

d?
 

14
 

4.
2 

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e 

Tr
ip

 P
at

te
rn

s 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y?

 
15

 
4.

3 
C

an
 T

rip
s 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
be

 W
el

l S
er

ve
d 

by
 T

ra
ns

it?
 

17

5.
0 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
19

 
5.

1 I
ni

tia
l A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 

19
 

5.
2 

Re
fin

ed
 A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 

25

6.
0 

M
ov

in
g 

Fo
rw

ar
d 

39
 

6.
1 W

ha
t H

av
e 

W
e 

Le
ar

ne
d 

fro
m

 th
is

 S
tu

dy
? 

39
 

6.
2 

W
ha

t i
s 

th
e 

Fu
nd

in
g 

St
ra

te
gy

? 
40

 
6.

3 
W

ha
t W

ill
 It

 T
ak

e 
to

 A
dv

an
ce

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

? 
47

DR
AF

T

7B-3

http://westcountytransitstudy.com
http://wcctac.org


W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
2

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

Ac
ro

ny
m

s
A

C
 T

ra
ns

it
A

la
m

ed
a-

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 T
ra

ns
it 

D
is

tri
ct

A
BA

G
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
of

 B
ay

 A
re

a 
G

ov
er

nm
en

ts

BA
RT

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
Ba

y 
A

re
a 

Ra
pi

d 
Tr

an
si

t 
D

is
tri

ct

B
N

SF
Bu

rli
ng

to
n 

N
or

th
er

n 
Sa

nt
a 

Fe
 R

ai
lw

ay

B
RT

 
Bu

s 
ra

pi
d 

tra
ns

it

C
al

tr
an

s 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n

C
C

TA
 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Au
th

or
ity

C
IG

 
C

ap
ita

l I
nv

es
tm

en
t G

ra
nt

s

D
M

U
 

D
ie

se
l m

ul
tip

le
 u

ni
t

FT
A

 
Fe

de
ra

l T
ra

ns
it 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n

H
C

T 
 

H
ig

h-
ca

pa
ci

ty
 tr

an
si

t

I-5
80

 
In

te
rs

ta
te

 5
80

I-8
0 

In
te

rs
ta

te
 8

0

IF
D

 
In

cr
em

en
t F

in
an

ci
ng

 D
is

tri
ct

s

M
TC

 
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
C

om
m

is
si

on

O
 &

 M
 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce

PD
A

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
re

a

RD
A

 
Re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

ge
nc

y

RI
TC

 
Re

gi
on

al
 In

te
rm

od
al

 T
ra

ns
it 

C
en

te
r

RO
W

 
Ri

gh
t-o

f-w
ay

SR
 4

 
St

at
e 

Ro
ut

e 
4

TI
G

ER
 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
In

ve
st

m
en

t G
en

er
at

in
g 

Ec
on

om
ic

 R
et

ur
n

TI
F 

Ta
x 

In
cr

em
en

t F
in

an
ci

ng

TS
I 

Tr
an

si
t S

ui
ta

bi
lit

y 
In

de
x

U
ZA

 
U

rb
an

iz
ed

 A
re

a

U
PR

R 
U

ni
on

 P
ac

ifi
c 

Ra
ilr

oa
d 

V
H

T 
Ve

hi
cl

e 
ho

ur
s 

tra
ve

le
d

V
M

T 
Ve

hi
cl

e 
m

ile
s 

tra
ve

le
d

W
C

C
TA

C
 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Ad
vi

so
ry

 C
om

m
itt

ee

W
es

tC
AT

 
W

es
te

rn
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 T

ra
ns

it 
Au

th
or

ity
 

Tr
an

si
t S

er
vi

ce

DR
AF

T

7B-4



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
3

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

Th
e 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Ad
vi

so
ry

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 (W

C
C

TA
C

) i
ni

tia
te

d 
th

e 
H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 T
ra

ns
it 

St
ud

y 
to

 
ev

al
ua

te
 m

ul
tim

od
al

 h
ig

h-
ca

pa
ci

ty
 

tra
ns

it 
(H

C
T)

 o
pt

io
ns

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
 e

nh
an

ce
 

tra
ns

it 
co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 a
nd

 a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

to
 p

la
n 

fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
gr

ow
th

. A
t t

he
 o

ut
se

t o
f t

he
 s

tu
dy

, 
th

e 
W

C
C

TA
C

 B
oa

rd
 a

do
pt

ed
 a

 s
et

 
of

 g
oa

ls
 a

nd
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 to
 fr

am
e 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

. T
he

 g
oa

ls
 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 fo

cu
se

d 
on

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
fre

qu
en

cy
, r

el
ia

bi
lit

y,
 a

nd
 e

qu
ity

 o
f t

ra
ns

it 
se

rv
ic

es
; p

ro
te

ct
in

g 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

in
g 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t; 

en
su

rin
g 

th
e 

effi
ci

en
t 

us
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

 fu
nd

s;
 a

nd
 c

re
at

in
g 

m
or

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.

Th
e 

st
ud

y 
bu

ild
s 

up
on

 fi
nd

in
gs

 fr
om

 
pr

io
r s

tu
di

es
, b

ut
 w

as
 th

e 
fir

st
 s

tu
dy

 
to

 c
on

si
de

r a
 m

ul
ti-

m
od

al
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 

tra
ns

it 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y.

 
Ea

rly
 s

tu
dy

 e
ffo

rt
s 

al
so

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f t
ra

ve
l m

ar
ke

ts
 a

nd
 

fo
cu

se
d 

th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 o
n 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
be

tte
r s

er
vi

ce
 to

 tw
o 

pr
im

ar
y 

m
ar

ke
ts

—
tra

ve
le

rs
 o

n 
th

e 
I-8

0 
co

rr
id

or
 

an
d 

tra
ve

le
rs

 o
n 

th
e 

m
aj

or
 n

or
th

-s
ou

th
 

sp
in

e 
w

ith
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y.

 

Fr
om

 th
e 

ou
ts

et
, W

C
C

TA
C

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 to
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

eff
or

t, 
in

vi
tin

g 
in

pu
t f

ro
m

 c
iti

es
, t

ra
ns

it 
ag

en
ci

es
, a

nd
 o

th
er

 k
ey

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l p

ub
lic

. O
ut

re
ac

h 
eff

or
ts

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
 te

le
ph

on
e 

to
w

n 
ha

ll,
 p

ub
lic

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
, s

ur
ve

ys
, a

nd
 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
 c

ity
 c

ou
nc

ils
. T

he
 

W
C

C
TA

C
 B

oa
rd

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ac

tiv
el

y 
en

ga
ge

d 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
cr

iti
ca

l f
ee

db
ac

k 
on

 it
s 

vi
si

on
 

fo
r t

ra
ns

it 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y.

Th
e 

st
ud

y 
be

ga
n 

w
ith

 a
 b

ro
ad

 a
rr

ay
 o

f 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 a

nd
 e

ig
ht

 w
er

e 
se

le
ct

ed
 

fo
r a

na
ly

si
s.

 F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

in
iti

al
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t, 

th
e 

W
C

C
TA

C
 B

oa
rd

 v
ot

ed
 

to
 c

ar
ry

 fi
ve

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 fo
rw

ar
d 

fo
r 

fu
rt

he
r r

efi
ne

m
en

t a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

(s
ee

 
Fi

gu
re

 1
-1

). 
O

f t
he

 fi
ve

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 th
at

 
w

er
e 

in
iti

al
ly

 a
dv

an
ce

d,
 th

e 
BA

RT
 to

 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

w
as

 fu
rt

he
r r

efi
ne

d 
an

d 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

tw
o 

ro
ut

in
g 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

, 
re

su
lti

ng
 in

 a
 to

ta
l o

f s
ix

 fi
na

l a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 
re

vi
ew

ed
. T

he
se

 s
ix

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 re
fle

ct
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
bu

s 
an

d 
ra

il 
tra

ns
it 

sy
st

em
s 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
er

vi
ce

 
to

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 e

nh
an

ce
 

tra
ns

it 
co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 a
nd

 c
ap

ac
ity

 o
ve

r 
tim

e 
as

 n
ew

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 fe

rr
ie

s,
 

co
m

e 
on

 li
ne

. T
he

se
 fo

rm
 th

e 
ba

si
s 

fo
r a

 
tra

ns
it 

ne
tw

or
k 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 re

sp
on

d 
to

 th
e 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 d

em
an

d 
fo

r t
ra

ns
it 

se
rv

ic
es

 
an

d 
a 

sy
st

em
 th

at
 c

ou
ld

 in
te

gr
at

e 
w

ith
 

la
nd

 u
se

 p
la

ns
 fo

r t
he

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

.

Ad
dr

es
si

ng
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y’
s 

tra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
is

su
es

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

ac
co

m
pl

is
he

d 
w

ith
 

on
e 

id
ea

, o
ne

 m
od

e,
 o

ne
 p

la
n,

 o
r o

ne
 

ag
en

cy
. T

hi
s 

is
 a

n 
in

te
r-r

eg
io

na
l a

nd
 

in
tra

-c
ou

nt
y 

pr
ob

le
m

 th
at

 n
ee

ds
 a

 s
et

 o
f 

vi
ab

le
, f

un
da

bl
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 to
 c

re
at

e 
a 

ro
bu

st
 h

ig
h-

ca
pa

ci
ty

 tr
an

si
t n

et
w

or
k 

fo
r 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y.

 A
s 

re
si

de
nt

s,
 w

or
ke

rs
, a

nd
 

vi
si

to
rs

 fe
el

 th
e 

tra
ffi

c 
pi

nc
h 

to
da

y,
 a

nd
 

w
ill

 li
ke

ly
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 d
o 

m
or

e 
so

 a
s 

th
e 

ar
ea

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
es

 g
ro

w
th

; b
ot

h 
sh

or
t- 

an
d 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 o
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 

th
e 

pr
ob

le
m

.

Th
is

 F
in

al
 R

ep
or

t s
yn

th
es

iz
es

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 

of
 th

e 
te

ch
ni

ca
l m

em
or

an
du

m
s 

an
d 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

eff
or

ts
 a

nd
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 

se
rv

e 
as

 a
 re

so
ur

ce
 fo

r e
le

ct
ed

 o
ffi

ci
al

s 
an

d 
st

aff
 in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

to
 a

ss
is

t t
he

m
 in

 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
sh

ou
ld

 m
ov

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
in

to
 p

ro
je

ct
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 fu

nd
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 fo
r t

he
ir 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
 It

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 ri
de

rs
hi

p 
an

d 
co

st
s,

 in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 
ou

tli
ni

ng
 a

 s
et

 o
f n

ex
t s

te
ps

 fo
r e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
. I

t a
ls

o 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

n 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 th
at

 a
llo

w
s 

fo
r i

nc
re

m
en

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f t
ra

ns
it 

ov
er

 ti
m

e 
as

 d
em

an
d 

gr
ow

s,
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 s
om

e 
sh

or
t-t

er
m

 re
lie

f f
or

 
co

ng
es

tio
n.

 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Su

m
m

ar
y

1

W
h

y
 d

o
 w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

h
is

 
st

u
d

y
?

I-8
0 

is
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

 m
os

t c
on

ge
st

ed
 

co
rr

id
or

s 
in

 th
e 

Ba
y 

A
re

a,
 a

nd
 th

e 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

BA
RT

 li
ne

 o
fte

n 
re

ac
he

s 
fu

ll 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 d

ur
in

g 
co

m
m

ut
e 

ho
ur

s.
 

Ex
pa

nd
in

g 
tra

ns
it 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 a
nd

 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

ou
ld

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
or

e 
tra

ve
l 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 a

nd
 to

 o
th

er
 p

ar
ts

 
of

 th
e 

Ba
y 

A
re

a.
 



A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

E
A

lt 
1:

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

 o
n 

I-8
0

Y
ES

N
O

A
lt 

2:
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 / 
M

ac
do

na
ld

 B
R

T

A
lt 

3:
 2

3r
d 

St
re

et
 B

RT

A
lt 

4:
 U

PR
R

 C
om

m
ut

er
 R

ai
l (

sh
or

t +
 M

id
-R

an
ge

 O
pt

io
ns

)

A
lt 

5:
 B

N
SF

 C
om

m
ut

er
 R

ai
l

A
lt 

6:
 B

A
RT

 E
xt

en
si

on
 fr

om
 R

ic
hm

on
d

A
lt 

7A
: B

A
RT

 E
xt

en
si

on
 fr

om
 E

l C
er

rit
o 

de
l N

or
te

A
lt 

7B
: B

A
RT

 D
M

U
 E

xt
en

si
on

 fr
om

 E
l C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te

Fi
gu

re
 1

-1
: A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 A

dv
an

ce
d 

fo
r F

ur
th

er
 S

tu
dy

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
B

oa
rd

 A
ct

io
n

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

W
H

AT
 IS

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T?

H
ig

h-
ca

pa
ci

ty
 tr

an
si

t p
ro

vi
de

s 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 h

ig
he

r l
ev

el
s 

of
 p

as
se

ng
er

 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 w

ith
 ty

pi
ca

lly
 fe

w
er

 s
to

ps
 a

nd
 

hi
gh

er
 s

pe
ed

s 
th

an
 lo

ca
l b

us
 s

er
vi

ce
. DR

AF
T

7B-5



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
4

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

is
 a

 
di

ve
rs

e,
 d

yn
am

ic
 re

gi
on

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o 

Ba
y 

A
re

a 
th

at
 fr

on
ts

 th
e 

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
an

d 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Ba
ys

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ar

qu
in

ez
 S

tra
it.

 M
uc

h 
of

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

is
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

iz
ed

 b
y 

its
 h

is
to

ric
al

 a
nd

 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

co
nc

en
tra

tio
n 

of
 w

at
er

fro
nt

 
in

du
st

rie
s,

 p
re

se
nt

ly
 d

om
in

at
ed

 b
y 

oi
l 

re
fin

in
g 

an
d 

sh
ip

pi
ng

. O
ve

r t
he

 p
as

t 
ce

nt
ur

y 
de

ns
e 

ol
de

r u
rb

an
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
, 

su
ch

 a
s 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

an
d 

El
 

C
er

rit
o,

 a
nd

 n
ew

er
 m

or
e 

su
bu

rb
an

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 h

av
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

, a
ttr

ac
te

d 
by

 th
e 

lo
ca

l e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

ea
sy

 
co

m
m

ut
in

g 
to

 o
th

er
 p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 B

ay
 

A
re

a.
 In

 re
ce

nt
 y

ea
rs

, t
he

 o
ld

er
 s

ub
ur

ba
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

au
gm

en
te

d 
w

ith
 n

ew
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
nd

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
ha

t t
ak

es
 a

dv
an

ta
ge

 o
f 

va
ca

nt
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

ut
ili

ze
d 

si
te

s 
an

d 
is

 
fu

el
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 d

em
an

d 
fo

r 
hi

gh
er

-d
en

si
ty

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
Th

e 
ar

ea
 is

 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

to
 g

ro
w

 in
 th

e 
ne

xt
 d

ec
ad

es
, 

w
ith

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

29
 p

er
ce

nt
 (7

3,
56

0 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

eo
pl

e)
 

an
d 

jo
bs

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 b

y 
36

 p
er

ce
nt

 
(2

2,
63

0 
ad

di
tio

na
l j

ob
s)

 b
et

w
ee

n 
20

10
 

an
d 

20
40

.1

Th
e 

St
ud

y 
A

re
a 

in
cl

ud
es

 I-
80

, I
-5

80
, 

an
d 

St
at

e 
Ro

ut
e 

4 
(S

R 
4)

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

m
aj

or
 s

ur
fa

ce
 s

tre
et

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

en
ue

 a
nd

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 

(s
ee

 F
ig

ur
e 

2-
1)

. T
he

 a
re

a 
ho

ld
s 

ke
y 

tra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
ro

ut
es

 fo
r t

he
 re

gi
on

 
an

d 
th

e 
st

at
e.

 I-
80

 ru
ns

 th
e 

fu
ll 

le
ng

th
 

of
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y,
 n

or
th

 to
 s

ou
th

 a
nd

 is
 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 in

te
rs

ta
te

 fr
ee

w
ay

 s
ys

te
m

 
th

at
 c

on
ne

ct
s 

th
e 

Ba
y 

A
re

a 
to

 th
e 

Sa
cr

am
en

to
 re

gi
on

, t
he

 L
ak

e 
Ta

ho
e 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l a

re
a,

 a
nd

 R
en

o,
 N

ev
ad

a,
 in

 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

an
d 

to
 H

ig
hw

ay
 10

1 a
nd

 th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 C

en
tra

l C
oa

st
 in

 th
e 

so
ut

h.
 I-

80
 

is
 th

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
ve

hi
cu

la
r r

ou
te

 ru
nn

in
g 

no
rt

h-
so

ut
h 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
is

 s
ub

-re
gi

on
; 

th
er

ef
or

e 
it 

ha
s 

re
gi

on
al

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 to
 

Ba
y 

A
re

a 
tra

ve
le

rs
. T

hi
s 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 I-

80
 

is
 fr

eq
ue

nt
ly

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
 m

os
t c

on
ge

st
ed

 
fre

ew
ay

 c
or

rid
or

s 
in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
.2

A
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

is
 ro

ut
in

e 
co

ng
es

tio
n,

 
dr

iv
er

s 
of

te
n 

di
ve

rt 
to

 o
th

er
 m

aj
or

 n
or

th
-

so
ut

h 
ar

te
ria

ls
 to

 a
vo

id
 d

el
ay

s 
on

 th
e 

fre
ew

ay
. T

he
 p

rim
ar

y 
no

rth
-s

ou
th

 a
rte

ria
l 

is
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 A
ve

nu
e,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 th
e 

ol
d 

U
.S

. R
ou

te
 4

0.
 It

 is
 a

 m
aj

or
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 

ar
te

ria
l f

or
 th

e 
su

b-
re

gi
on

 a
nd

 li
nk

s 
ea

ch
 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y. 
I-5

80
, w

hi
ch

 
ru

ns
 p

er
pe

nd
ic

ul
ar

 to
 I-

80
, c

on
ne

ct
s 

W
es

t 
C

ou
nt

y 
to

 M
ar

in
 C

ou
nt

y 
vi

a 
th

e 
Ri

ch
m

on
d-

Sa
n 

Ra
fa

el
 B

rid
ge

 a
nd

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
so

ut
h 

al
on

g 
I-8

0 
to

 O
ak

la
nd

. S
R 

4 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

 
pr

im
ar

y 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

to
 M

ar
tin

ez
, C

on
co

rd
 

an
d 

A
nt

io
ch

 in
 E

as
t C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y.

Tr
affi

c 
on

 I-
80

 is
 s

ev
er

el
y 

co
ng

es
te

d 
du

rin
g 

pe
ak

 c
om

m
ut

er
 h

ou
rs

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

du
rin

g 
off

-p
ea

k 
ho

ur
s 

an
d 

w
ee

ke
nd

s 

w
he

n 
it 

is
 c

on
ge

st
ed

 in
 b

ot
h 

di
re

ct
io

ns
. 

W
ith

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

gr
ow

th
 o

f 2
9 

pe
rc

en
t 

an
d 

jo
b 

gr
ow

th
 o

f 3
6 

pe
rc

en
t e

xp
ec

te
d 

by
 2

04
0 

in
 th

e 
st

ud
y 

ar
ea

, W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

is
 

al
so

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 to

 h
av

e 
an

 a
cc

om
pa

ny
in

g 
ris

e 
in

 tr
affi

c 
(s

ee
 F

ig
ur

e 
2-

2)
. P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
es

tim
at

es
 in

di
ca

te
 th

at
 v

eh
ic

le
 tr

ip
s 

on
 th

e 
I-8

0 
co

rri
do

r a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
23

 p
er

ce
nt

 b
y 

20
40

 in
 th

e 
pe

ak
 c

om
m

ut
e 

pe
rio

d.
3   

In
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
ov

er
al

l, 
V

M
T 

in
 th

e 
pe

ak
 c

om
m

ut
e 

pe
rio

d 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 2
7%

 b
y 

20
40

4 
 

(s
ee

 F
ig

ur
e 

2-
3)

. T
hi

s 
w

ill 
m

ea
n 

gr
ea

te
r 

de
la

ys
 o

n 
th

e 
fre

ew
ay

 a
nd

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 

ne
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 v

ia
bl

e 
tra

ve
l a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
liv

in
g 

an
d 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 W

es
t 

C
ou

nt
y.

 

Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
2

8
0

5
8

0

2
44

SA
N

 F
R

A
N

C
IS

CO


VA
LL

EJ
O

C
O

N
T

R
A

 C
O

ST
A

C
O

U
N

T
Y

A
LA

M
ED

A
C

O
U

N
T

Y

R
IC

H
M

O
N

D

SA
N

PA
B

LO

EL
 S

O
B

R
A

N
T

E

EL
 C

ER
R

IT
O

P
IN

O
LE

H
ER

C
U

LE
S

R
O

D
EO

C
R

O
C

K
ET

T

M
A

R
T

IN
EZ

D
R

A
FT

 0
6

29
2

01
5

SAN PABL
O

 A
V

E

RICHMOND PKW
Y

SA
N

  P
A

B
LO

 D
AM

  R

D

C
O

U
N

TY
 L

IN
E

C
A

P
IT

O
L 

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R
/

A
M

TR
A

K

B
A

R
T

FE
R

R
Y

 R
O

U
TE

S

ST
A

TI
O

N
S

ST
U

D
Y

 A
R

EA

M
A

P
 K

EY

M
IL
E

50
25

0

N

Fi
gu

re
 2

-1
: S

tu
dy

 A
re

a

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

Jo
bs

Po
pu

la
tio

n

25
0,

90
0

32
4,

50
0

+2
9%

 G
ro

w
th

62
,6

00
85

,2
00

+3
6%

 G
ro

w
th 20

40
20

10
20

40
20

10

Fi
gu

re
 2

-2
: P

ro
je

ct
ed

 G
ro

w
th

 in
 

Po
pu

la
tio

n 
an

d 
Jo

bs
 in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y

So
ur

ce
: A

BA
G

 P
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 2
01

3,
 E

PS

V
M

T

1,4
23

,2
00

1,8
05

,6
00

+2
7%

 G
ro

w
th

20
40

20
10

Fi
gu

re
 2

-3
: P

ro
je

ct
ed

 V
M

T 
in

 W
es

t 
C

ou
nt

y

So
ur

ce
: A

BA
G

 P
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 2
01

3,
 E

PS

DR
AF

T

7B-6



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
5

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

Tr
an

si
t o

pt
io

ns
 fo

r W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

ar
e 

so
m

ew
ha

t d
is

pa
ra

te
. T

he
 s

ou
th

er
n 

pa
rt

 o
f W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
is

 s
er

ve
d 

by
 a

 
di

ve
rs

e 
se

t o
f t

ra
ns

it 
m

od
es

: r
ai

l s
er

vi
ce

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
C

ap
ito

l C
or

rid
or

 a
nd

 th
e 

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
Ba

y 
A

re
a 

Ra
pi

d 
Tr

an
si

t 
D

is
tri

ct
 (B

A
RT

), 
an

d 
lo

ca
l, 

ra
pi

d 
an

d 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
op

er
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

la
m

ed
a-

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 T
ra

ns
it 

D
is

tri
ct

 
(A

C
 T

ra
ns

it)
 a

nd
 th

e 
W

es
te

rn
 C

on
tra

 
C

os
ta

 T
ra

ns
it 

Au
th

or
ity

 T
ra

ns
it 

Se
rv

ic
e 

(W
es

tC
AT

), 
w

hi
ch

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 th
e 

El
 C

er
rit

o 
D

el
 N

or
te

 B
A

RT
 

st
at

io
n.

 F
er

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
an

d 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o 

w
ill

 b
eg

in
 in

 2
01

8.
 

Tr
an

si
t s

er
vi

ce
 in

 th
e 

no
rt

he
rn

 p
ar

t o
f 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

is
 m

or
e 

lim
ite

d,
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l 

an
d 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

AC
 

Tr
an

si
t a

nd
 W

es
tC

AT
. F

ut
ur

e 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 re

gi
on

al
 ra

il 
se

rv
ic

e 
(a

 n
ew

 s
ta

tio
n)

 
an

d 
fe

rr
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

 a
re

 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

t t
he

 R
eg

io
na

l I
nt

er
m

od
al

 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r (

RI
TC

) i
n 

H
er

cu
le

s.

Th
is

 a
bo

ve
 li

st
 o

f t
ra

ns
it 

op
tio

ns
 im

pl
ie

s 
a 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
la

rg
e 

m
en

u 
of

 c
ho

ic
es

 fo
r 

tra
ve

le
rs

, a
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

tra
ns

it 
m

od
es

 fa
ce

 
th

ei
r o

w
n 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 s

et
 o

f c
ha

lle
ng

es
: 

 •
BA

RT
 is

 a
 re

gi
on

al
 h

ea
vy

 ra
il 

sy
st

em
 

w
ith

 s
to

ps
 in

 th
e 

so
ut

he
rn

 p
ar

t o
f W

es
t 

C
ou

nt
y 

in
 E

l C
er

rit
o 

an
d 

Ri
ch

m
on

d.
 

Th
e 

BA
RT

 s
ys

te
m

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
es

et
 

by
 c

ap
ac

ity
 is

su
es

, w
ith

 tr
ai

ns
 a

nd
 

st
at

io
ns

 th
at

 a
re

 u
nc

om
fo

rta
bl

y 
cr

ow
de

d,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 d

ur
in

g 
co

m
m

ut
e 

pe
rio

ds
. B

AR
T 

is
 re

vi
ew

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 to

 
up

da
te

 it
s 

tra
in

 c
on

tro
l s

ys
te

m
, w

hi
ch

 
is

 n
ea

rly
 a

 h
al

f-c
en

tu
ry

 o
ld

 a
nd

 is
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

le
d 

to
 

re
du

ce
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
lia

bi
lit

y. 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

 
to

 m
od

er
ni

zi
ng

 th
e 

tra
in

 c
on

tro
l 

sy
st

em
, B

AR
T 

is
 a

cq
ui

rin
g 

ne
w

 ra
ilc

ar
s,

 
up

gr
ad

in
g 

th
e 

H
ay

w
ar

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

co
m

pl
ex

, r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r a
 

se
co

nd
 T

ra
ns

ba
y 

Tu
be

 a
nd

 s
ta

tio
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
Em

ba
rc

ad
er

o 
an

d 
M

on
tg

om
er

y 
St

re
et

 S
ta

tio
ns

 in
 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 

its
 c

or
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 a
nd

 re
lie

ve
 s

ys
te

m
 

bo
ttl

en
ec

ks
.5

 •
AC

 T
ra

ns
it 

an
d 

W
es

tC
AT

 p
ro

vi
de

 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 re

gi
on

al
 

an
d 

in
tra

-c
ou

nt
y 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e,

 w
ith

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t l

ev
el

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 in

 th
e 

de
ns

es
t 

pa
rts

 o
f W

es
t C

ou
nt

y. 
U

nf
or

tu
na

te
ly,

 
th

e 
bu

se
s 

ar
e 

ca
ug

ht
 in

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

on
 b

ot
h 

fre
ew

ay
s 

an
d 

lo
ca

l s
tre

et
s.

 
G

iv
en

 li
m

ite
d 

tra
ns

it 
pr

io
rit

y 
tre

at
m

en
ts

, 
bu

se
s 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
re

du
ce

d 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

tra
ve

l s
pe

ed
s.

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
, c

ur
re

nt
 

st
op

s 
an

d 
st

at
io

ns
 la

ck
 b

as
ic

 p
as

se
ng

er
 

am
en

iti
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 b
us

 s
he

lte
rs

, a
rri

va
l 

tim
e 

di
sp

la
ys

, e
tc

.

 •
Ex

is
tin

g 
C

ap
ito

l C
or

rid
or

 s
er

vi
ce

 is
 

fo
cu

se
d 

on
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 c
om

m
ut

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 

to
 th

e 
Ba

y 
Ar

ea
 fr

om
 S

ol
an

o,
 Y

ol
o,

 a
nd

 
Sa

cr
am

en
to

 C
ou

nt
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

no
rth

 a
nd

 
pr

ov
id

es
 o

nl
y 

on
e 

st
op

 in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
(R

ic
hm

on
d)

, w
he

re
 c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 a

re
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 B
AR

T 
an

d 
lo

ca
l b

us
 tr

an
si

t. 
Th

e 
lim

ite
d 

m
ar

ke
t f

or
 th

is
 ra

il 
se

rv
ic

e,
 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
w

ith
 li

m
ite

d 
st

op
s 

an
d 

hi
gh

 
fa

re
s,

 re
su

lt 
in

 re
la

tiv
el

y 
lo

w
 ri

de
rs

hi
p 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 o
th

er
 tr

an
si

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y.

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, a

dd
in

g 
tra

ns
it 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

gi
ve

n 
th

e 
st

ud
y 

ar
ea

’s
 u

ni
qu

e 
to

po
gr

ap
hy

, w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 ro

lli
ng

 h
ill

s,
 

st
ee

p 
ve

rt
ic

al
 g

ra
de

s,
 s

oi
l s

ta
bi

lit
y,

 
th

e 
H

ay
w

ar
d 

Fa
ul

t Z
on

e,
 a

nd
 h

av
in

g 
to

 n
av

ig
at

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
ex

is
tin

g 
fre

ew
ay

 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e.

 

Ad
dr

es
si

ng
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y’
s 

tra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
is

su
es

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

ac
co

m
pl

is
he

d 
w

ith
 

on
e 

id
ea

, o
ne

 m
od

e,
 o

ne
 p

la
n,

 o
r o

ne
 

ag
en

cy
. T

hi
s 

is
 a

n 
in

te
r-r

eg
io

na
l a

nd
 

in
tra

-c
ou

nt
y 

pr
ob

le
m

 th
at

 n
ee

ds
 a

 s
et

 o
f 

vi
ab

le
, f

un
da

bl
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 to
 c

re
at

e 
a 

ro
bu

st
 h

ig
h-

ca
pa

ci
ty

 tr
an

si
t n

et
w

or
k.

 T
he

 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 b

y 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
is

 n
ot

 o
nl

y 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 tr
ip

s 
to

 
an

d 
fro

m
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y,
 b

ut
 a

ls
o 

tra
ve

le
rs

 
pa

ss
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
to

 o
th

er
 d

es
tin

at
io

ns
 

in
 th

e 
Ba

y 
A

re
a 

an
d 

th
e 

st
at

e,
 a

s 
I-8

0 
se

rv
es

 b
ot

h 
an

 in
te

rs
ta

te
 a

nd
 in

tra
st

at
e 

tra
ve

l m
ar

ke
t. 

A
s 

re
si

de
nt

s,
 w

or
ke

rs
, 

an
d 

vi
si

to
rs

 fe
el

 th
e 

tra
ffi

c 
pi

nc
h 

to
da

y,
 

an
d 

w
ill

 li
ke

ly
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 d
o 

so
 a

s 
th

e 
ar

ea
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

es
 g

ro
w

th
, b

ot
h 

sh
or

t- 
an

d 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 o

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

ne
ar

-te
rm

 w
ill

 
he

lp
 to

 a
lle

vi
at

e 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 is

su
es

, b
ut

 a
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 s

tra
te

gy
 

fo
r W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
th

at
 p

la
ns

 fo
r t

he
 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 g

ro
w

th
 in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

th
e 

re
st

 o
f t

he
 B

ay
 A

re
a 

an
d 

in
te

gr
at

es
 

tra
ns

it 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 fu

tu
re

 la
nd

 u
se

 
pl

an
s 

co
ul

d 
yi

el
d 

th
e 

gr
ea

te
st

 re
su

lts
 

(s
ee

 F
ig

ur
e 

2-
4 

an
d 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-5
). 

A
s 

de
m

an
d 

an
d 

la
nd

-u
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 o
cc

ur
 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y,
 lo

ca
l j

ur
is

di
ct

io
ns

 h
av

e 
th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 to
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

to
 m

or
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 
gr

ea
te

r t
ra

ve
l o

pt
io

ns
.

So
ur

ce
: “

Ba
y 

A
re

a’
s 

W
or

st
 C

om
m

ut
e 

is
 W

B 
I-8

0”
, S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

 C
hr

on
ic

le

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D

DR
AF

T

7B-7



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
6

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

Fi
gu

re
 2

-4
: E

xi
st

in
g 

Po
pu

la
tio

n 
D

en
si

ty
 in

 th
e 

B
ay

 A
re

a’
s 

N
in

e 
C

ou
nt

ie
s

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

Fi
gu

re
 2

-5
: F

ut
ur

e 
(2

04
0)

 P
op

ul
at

io
n 

D
en

si
ty

 in
 th

e 
B

ay
 A

re
a’

s 
N

in
e 

C
ou

nt
ie

s

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D

DR
AF

T

7B-8



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
7

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

2.
1 S

tu
dy

 P
ur

po
se

W
CC

TA
C 

in
iti

at
ed

 th
e 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 
H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 T
ra

ns
it 

St
ud

y 
to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r e

xp
an

di
ng

 tr
an

si
t c

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 

cr
ea

tin
g 

a 
st

ro
ng

er
 tr

an
si

t n
et

w
or

k.
 T

he
 

re
su

lts
 o

f t
he

 s
tu

dy
 a

re
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 s
er

ve
 

as
 a

 re
so

ur
ce

 fo
r W

CC
TA

C
, t

he
 c

iti
es

, t
he

 
co

un
ty

, a
nd

 tr
an

si
t a

ge
nc

ie
s 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

hi
ch

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ad
va

nc
ed

 fo
r 

fu
rth

er
 s

tu
dy

, w
ith

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
gi

ve
n 

to
 c

os
ts

, f
un

di
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s,
 a

nd
 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l p
la

ns
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

ie
s.

Th
is 

st
ud

y 
id

en
tifi

es
 a

nd
 e

va
lu

at
es

 th
e 

fe
as

ib
ilit

y 
an

d 
eff

ec
tiv

en
es

s 
of

 H
C

T 
op

tio
ns

 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y. 

It 
pr

ov
id

es
 W

CC
TA

C 
w

ith
 

th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

an
d 

ad
va

nc
e 

th
e 

m
os

t p
ro

m
is

in
g 

H
C

T 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 to

 b
en

efi
t a

 w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 tr

ip
 ty

pe
s 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y. 
Th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t s
tra

te
gy

 o
ut

lin
ed

 b
y 

th
is 

st
ud

y 
ai

m
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r W
CC

TA
C

 
an

d 
lo

ca
l s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

to
 b

et
te

r p
os

iti
on

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 fo

r t
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
fu

nd
in

g 
an

d 
to

 
le

ve
ra

ge
 o

ut
si

de
 fu

nd
in

g 
so

ur
ce

s.

S
tu

d
y

's
 G

o
a

ls
 a

n
d

 O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

Th
es

e 
go

al
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 s

er
ve

 a
s 

th
e 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r t
he

 s
tu

dy
’s

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 h

ig
h-

ca
pa

ci
ty

 
tr

an
si

t i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
.

G
O

A
L 

1:
   

IN
C

RE
A

SE
 T

R
A

N
SI

T 
RI

D
ER

SH
IP

 B
Y 

PR
O

V
ID

IN
G

 E
FF

IC
IE

N
T,

 F
RE

Q
U

EN
T,

 A
N

D
 R

EL
IA

B
LE

 S
ER

V
IC

E
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

1A
  

Im
pr

ov
e 

hi
gh

-c
ap

ac
ity

 tr
an

si
t s

er
vi

ce
, t

ra
ve

l t
im

es
, a

nd
 c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
.

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
1B

  
Im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

pr
op

os
ed

 tr
an

si
t h

ub
s 

by
 a

ll 
m

od
es

 o
f t

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
to

ta
l  

 
 

 
nu

m
be

r o
f t

rip
s 

ta
ke

n 
by

 tr
an

si
t.

G
O

A
L 

2:
  

IM
PR

O
V

E 
C

O
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
S 

B
ET

W
EE

N
 T

R
A

N
SI

T 
SY

ST
EM

S 
A

N
D

 S
ER

V
IC

ES
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

2A
  

C
on

ne
ct

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 in
 th

e 
co

rr
id

or
 to

 th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 tr
an

si
t n

et
w

or
k 

an
d 

ot
he

r r
eg

io
na

l c
en

te
rs

.
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

2B
  

Pr
ov

id
e 

us
er

-fr
ie

nd
ly

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l t

ra
ns

it 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

G
O

A
L 

3:
  

EX
PA

N
D

 T
R

A
N

SI
T 

IN
 C

O
M

PE
TI

TI
V

E 
C

O
RR

ID
O

RS
 T

O
 N

EW
 A

N
D

 U
N

D
ER

SE
RV

ED
 T

R
AV

EL
 M

A
RK

ET
S

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
3A

  
Id

en
tif

y 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

 m
at

ch
 tr

an
si

t i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

ith
 u

nm
et

 a
nd

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 fu
tu

re
 n

ee
ds

 in
 lo

ca
l, 

 
 

 
 

re
gi

on
al

, a
nd

 in
te

r-r
eg

io
na

l m
ar

ke
ts

.

G
O

A
L 

4:
  

PR
O

TE
C

T 
A

N
D

 E
N

H
A

N
C

E 
TH

E 
EN

V
IR

O
N

M
EN

T 
A

N
D

 M
A

IN
TA

IN
 A

 H
IG

H
 Q

U
A

LI
TY

 O
F 

LI
FE

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
4A

  
Av

oi
d 

im
pa

ct
s 

to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

na
tu

ra
l a

nd
 c

ul
tu

ra
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 in
 th

e 
co

rr
id

or
.

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
4B

  
Im

pr
ov

e 
ai

r q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

de
cr

ea
se

 g
re

en
ho

us
e 

ga
s 

em
is

si
on

s 
by

 re
du

ci
ng

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 s

in
gl

e-
oc

cu
pa

nt
 v

eh
ic

le
s.

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
4C

  
Re

du
ce

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
en

er
gy

 d
em

an
d 

(p
er

 v
eh

ic
le

 m
ile

 o
f t

ra
ve

l) 
by

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 h
ig

h-
ca

pa
ci

ty
  

 
 

 
tra

ns
it.

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
4D

  
Ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 ri

sk
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 s

ea
 le

ve
l r

is
e 

an
d 

th
e 

eff
ec

ts
 o

f c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 in

 th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

de
si

gn
 o

f  
 

 
tra

ns
it 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
4E

  
Be

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 lo

ca
l p

la
ns

 a
nd

 p
ol

ic
ie

s.

G
O

A
L 

5:
  

SU
PP

O
RT

 S
U

ST
A

IN
A

B
LE

 U
RB

A
N

 G
RO

W
TH

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
5A

  
Su

pp
or

t e
co

no
m

ic
 a

nd
 tr

an
si

t-o
rie

nt
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

co
rr

id
or

 to
 a

dv
an

ce
 th

e 
re

gi
on

al
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
  

 
 

 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
 S

tra
te

gi
es

 a
nd

 P
rio

rit
y 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t A
re

a 
po

lic
ie

s 
th

at
 s

up
po

rt
 th

em
.

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
5B

  
Su

pp
or

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f c

om
pa

ct
, m

ix
ed

-u
se

, a
nd

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

se
rv

ed
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
by

  
 

 
tra

ns
it.

G
O

A
L 

6:
  

PR
O

V
ID

E 
EQ

U
IT

A
B

LE
 A

C
C

ES
S 

FO
R 

RE
SI

D
EN

TS
 A

N
D

 B
U

SI
N

ES
SE

S
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

6A
  

Im
pr

ov
e 

tra
ns

it 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 jo

bs
, h

ou
si

ng
, e

du
ca

tio
n,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 re

gi
on

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

fo
r a

 b
ro

ad
 c

ro
ss

-s
ec

tio
n 

of
  

 
 

so
ci

o-
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
up

s,
 e

th
ni

ci
tie

s,
 a

nd
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

 ty
pe

s,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 fo
r t

ra
ns

it-
de

pe
nd

en
t p

op
ul

at
io

ns
.

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
6B

  
Pr

es
er

ve
 m

ob
ili

ty
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

go
od

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

co
rr

id
or

.

G
O

A
L 

7:
  

M
A

KE
 E

FF
IC

IE
N

T 
U

SE
 O

F 
PU

B
LI

C
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

RE
SO

U
RC

ES
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

7A
  

Id
en

tif
y 

hi
gh

-c
ap

ac
ity

 tr
an

si
t i

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 th

at
 a

re
 c

os
t-e

ffe
ct

iv
e.

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
7B

  
Se

ek
 p

ub
lic

 in
pu

t o
n 

pr
op

os
ed

 tr
an

si
t i

nv
es

tm
en

ts
.



BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D

DR
AF

T

7B-9



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
8

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

2.
2 

St
ud

y 
Pr

oc
es

s
Th

is
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 T
ra

ns
it 

St
ud

y 
bu

ild
s 

up
on

 fi
nd

in
gs

 fr
om

 p
rio

r s
tu

di
es

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 

la
nd

 u
se

 a
nd

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
a 

m
ar

ke
t a

na
ly

si
s 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
ke

y 
tra

ve
l m

ar
ke

ts
 in

 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y—
in

 o
th

er
 w

or
ds

, w
he

re
 

tra
ns

it 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
vi

ab
le

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
ch

oi
ce

 fo
r t

ra
ve

le
rs

.6,
7,

8  R
ef

er
en

ce
s 

ar
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
do

cu
m

en
t t

o 
re

le
va

nt
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l M
em

or
an

da
 w

he
re

 m
or

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ca

n 
be

 fo
un

d.

W
C

C
TA

C
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 a
n 

in
iti

al
 re

vi
ew

 o
f 

a 
va

rie
ty

 o
f m

od
es

 a
nd

 a
lig

nm
en

ts
 fo

r 
hi

gh
-c

ap
ac

ity
 tr

an
si

t s
er

vi
ce

. F
er

ry
 a

nd
 

lig
ht

 ra
il 

op
tio

ns
, a

nd
 d

ie
se

l m
ot

or
iz

ed
 

un
its

 (D
M

U
s)

 w
er

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
 th

e 
ea

rly
 s

ta
ge

 b
ef

or
e 

na
rr

ow
in

g 
to

 e
ig

ht
 

in
iti

al
 c

on
ce

pt
ua

l a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

. T
he

se
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 in
cl

ud
e 

ex
pr

es
s 

bu
s,

 B
us

 
Ra

pi
d 

Tr
an

si
t (

BR
T)

, c
om

m
ut

er
 ra

il,
 a

nd
 

BA
RT

 o
pt

io
ns

. T
he

se
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 w

er
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

ed
 to

 s
er

ve
 th

e 
ke

y 
tra

ve
l m

ar
ke

ts
 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y,
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 
to

 d
riv

in
g 

on
 I-

80
 a

nd
 tr

an
si

t o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r 

ge
tti

ng
 a

ro
un

d 
an

d 
w

ith
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y.

9   
Th

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 w

er
e 

ev
al

ua
te

d 
ag

ai
ns

t 
sc

re
en

in
g 

cr
ite

ria
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 fr
om

 
th

e 
st

ud
y’

s 
go

al
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
.10

  
Th

es
e 

go
al

s 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 s
er

ve
 a

s 
th

e 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 H
C

T 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
.

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

ca
pi

ta
l c

os
t e

st
im

at
es

 
w

er
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 re
la

tiv
e 

co
st

 c
om

pa
ris

on
 o

f h
ow

 m
uc

h 
it 

w
ou

ld
 

co
st

 to
 b

ui
ld

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

ei
gh

t i
ni

tia
l 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

.11
  T

hi
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
as

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 th

e 
St

ud
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

G
ro

up
 fo

r t
he

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
St

ud
y,

 th
e 

W
C

C
TA

C
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 A
dv

is
or

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

, a
nd

 a
t c

om
m

un
ity

 o
pe

n 
ho

us
es

 in
 th

e 
sp

rin
g 

of
 2

01
6.

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 s
tu

dy
 w

as
 p

os
te

d 
on

 th
e 

st
ud

y’
s 

w
eb

si
te

 a
nd

 o
n-

lin
e 

su
rv

ey
s 

so
lic

ite
d 

pu
bl

ic
 in

pu
t o

n 
th

e 
tra

ns
it 

op
tio

ns
. 

Th
e 

W
C

C
TA

C
 B

oa
rd

 a
dv

an
ce

d 
fiv

e 
of

 
th

e 
ei

gh
t i

ni
tia

l a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 fo
r f

ur
th

er
 

re
fin

em
en

t a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

io
n,

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
fin

di
ng

s 
fro

m
 a

ll 
pr

ev
io

us
 a

na
ly

se
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
pr

io
r s

tu
di

es
, e

va
lu

at
io

n 
ag

ai
ns

t a
 s

et
 

of
 s

cr
ee

ni
ng

 c
rit

er
ia

, a
nd

 th
e 

m
ar

ke
t 

an
al

ys
is

. O
f t

he
 fi

ve
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 th

at
 

w
er

e 
in

iti
al

ly
 a

dv
an

ce
d,

 th
e 

BA
RT

 to
 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
w

as
 fu

rt
he

r r
efi

ne
d 

an
d 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
tw

o 
ro

ut
in

g 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
, 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 a

 to
ta

l o
f s

ix
 fi

na
l a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 

re
vi

ew
ed

. O
nc

e 
th

e 
si

x 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 w

er
e 

id
en

tifi
ed

, t
he

 s
tu

dy
 te

am
 re

fin
ed

 c
ap

ita
l 

co
st

 e
st

im
at

es
 a

nd
 c

on
cl

ud
ed

 ri
de

rs
hi

p 
m

od
el

 fo
re

ca
st

in
g 

to
 e

st
im

at
e 

ho
w

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 w
ou

ld
 u

se
 th

es
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 in
 

20
20

 a
nd

 2
04

0.

A 
fu

nd
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 fo

r e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 w
as

 d
ev

el
op

ed
, a

nd
 

an
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

st
ep

 w
as

 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 b
as

is
 fo

r 
co

m
pa

rin
g 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

an
d 

co
st

s 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

. P
rio

r 
to

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

hi
s 

Fi
na

l R
ep

or
t, 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 w
er

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 th

e 
fiv

e 
ci

ty
 c

ou
nc

ils
—

El
 C

er
rit

o,
 R

ic
hm

on
d,

 S
an

 
Pa

bl
o,

 P
in

ol
e,

 a
nd

 H
er

cu
le

s—
an

d 
to

 th
e 

El
 S

ob
ra

nt
e 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 A

dv
is

or
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 re

ce
iv

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l i

np
ut

. F
ig

ur
e 

2-
6 

su
m

m
ar

iz
es

 th
e 

H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
St

ud
y 

pr
oc

es
s.

AS
SE

SS
M

EN
T

- G
oa

ls
 a

nd
 O

bj
ec

tiv
es

- R
el

ev
an

t P
rio

r S
tu

di
es

- E
xi

st
in

g/
Fu

tu
re

 T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n
   

an
d 

La
nd

 U
se

- M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s

FI
N

AL
 A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

- F
un

di
ng

 O
pt

io
ns

- F
in

al
 A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 E

va
lu

at
io

n

02
03

04

AL
TE

RN
AT

IV
ES

 D
EV

EL
OP

M
EN

T 
+

AN
AL

YS
IS

- C
on

ce
pt

ua
l A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
- E

va
lu

at
io

n 
Cr

ite
ria

- P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n
- A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 R

ef
in

em
en

t
- R

id
er

sh
ip

 M
od

el
in

g
- C

os
t E

st
im

at
es

FI
N

AL
 P

LA
N

- S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 F
in

di
ng

s/
   

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

- N
ex

t s
te

ps
 b

ey
on

d 
st

ud
y

ST
AR

T
FI
N
IS
H

FA
LL

 ‘1
5

SP
RI

N
G 

‘1
6

W
IN

TE
R 

‘1
6

SP
RI

N
G 

‘1
7

PU
BL

IC
 O

UT
RE

AC
H 

+ 
PA

RT
IC

IP
AT

IO
N

Fi
gu

re
 2

-6
: S

tu
dy

 P
ro

ce
ss

 a
nd

 S
ch

ed
ul

e

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D

DR
AF

T

7B-10



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
9

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

3.
1 W

C
C

TA
C

 B
oa

rd
Th

e 
W

CC
TA

C 
Bo

ar
d 

in
iti

at
ed

 th
e 

H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
St

ud
y 

an
d 

w
as

 a
ct

iv
el

y 
en

ga
ge

d 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

st
ud

y 
pr

oc
es

s. 
Th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

ha
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

cr
iti

ca
l f

ee
db

ac
k 

on
 it

s 
tra

ns
it 

vi
sio

n 
fo

r W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

w
ill 

pl
ay

 
a 

cr
iti

ca
l r

ol
e 

in
 d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

w
hi

ch
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
e 

ad
va

nc
ed

 fo
r f

ur
th

er
 c

on
sid

er
at

io
n.

3.
2 

A
dv

is
or

y 
G

ro
up

s 
Fr

om
 th

e 
ou

ts
et

 o
f t

he
 s

tu
dy

, W
C

C
TA

C
 

ha
s 

be
en

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 to

 a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 
ou

tre
ac

h 
eff

or
t t

ha
t i

nv
ite

d 
in

pu
t f

ro
m

 
ci

tie
s,

 tr
an

si
t a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

ke
y 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l p

ub
lic

. T
he

 in
pu

t r
ec

ei
ve

d 
ha

s 
be

en
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
te

ch
ni

ca
l m

em
or

an
du

m
s 

th
at

 w
er

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
st

ud
y 

pr
oc

es
s 

to
 

do
cu

m
en

t t
he

 s
tu

dy
 fi

nd
in

gs
 a

nd
 in

 th
e 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 to
 th

e 
W

C
C

TA
C

 B
oa

rd
. 

Th
is

 F
in

al
 R

ep
or

t s
yn

th
es

iz
es

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 

of
 th

e 
te

ch
ni

ca
l m

em
or

an
du

m
s 

an
d 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

eff
or

ts
 (s

ee
 F

ig
ur

e 
3-

1)
.

Th
e 

St
ud

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
 w

as
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

as
 th

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
te

ch
ni

ca
l 

ad
vi

so
ry

 g
ro

up
 fo

r t
he

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 

Tr
an

si
t S

tu
dy

. T
he

 W
C

C
TA

C
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 
Ad

vi
so

ry
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
va

lu
ab

le
 

in
pu

t o
n 

lo
ca

l p
la

ns
, p

ol
ic

ie
s,

 a
nd

 is
su

es
. 

It 
al

so
 h

el
pe

d 
W

C
C

TA
C

 s
ta

ff 
in

 re
ac

hi
ng

 
ou

t t
o 

th
ei

r l
oc

al
 c

on
st

itu
en

ci
es

.

3.
3 

Te
le

ph
on

e 
To

w
n 

H
al

l
M

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
 w

er
e 

in
tro

du
ce

d 
to

 th
e 

H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
St

ud
y 

in
 

a 
te

le
ph

on
e 

to
w

n 
ha

ll 
th

at
 w

as
 c

o-
sp

on
so

re
d 

by
 W

C
C

TA
C

 a
nd

 C
C

TA
 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
5.

 M
or

e 
th

an
 2

,0
00

 
pe

op
le

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
te

le
ph

on
e 

co
nv

er
sa

tio
n 

th
at

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 M
ea

su
re

 X
 h

al
f-c

en
t 

tra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
sa

le
s 

ta
x 

an
d 

th
e 

H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
St

ud
y.

 B
ot

h 
th

e 
W

C
C

TA
C

 
Bo

ar
d 

C
ha

ir 
an

d 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
pa

ne
l, 

fie
ld

in
g 

qu
es

tio
ns

 fr
om

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
. P

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 

ha
d 

an
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 v
ot

e 
on

 a
 li

m
ite

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f q

ue
st

io
ns

 to
 re

gi
st

er
 th

ei
r 

tra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
pr

ef
er

en
ce

s.

O
ut

re
ac

h
3

H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

A
D

V
IS

O
RY

 G
RO

U
PS

Th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t’s

 S
tu

dy
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
G

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
ed

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 fr

om
 

op
er

at
or

s 
th

at
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

 tr
an

si
t 

se
rv

ic
e 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
(A

C
 T

ra
ns

it,
 

BA
RT

, C
ap

ito
l C

or
rid

or
/A

m
tra

k,
 a

nd
 

W
es

tC
AT

), 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

(C
al

tra
ns

) a
nd

 th
e 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Au
th

or
ity

 (C
C

TA
). 

W
C

C
TA

C
’s

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 A

dv
is

or
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 in

cl
ud

es
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 
fro

m
 A

C
 T

ra
ns

it;
 B

A
RT

; C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 
C

ou
nt

y;
 th

e 
ci

tie
s 

of
 E

l C
er

rit
o,

 
H

er
cu

le
s,

 R
ic

hm
on

d,
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

, a
nd

 
Pi

no
le

; a
nd

 W
es

tC
AT

. 

Fi
gu

re
 3

-1
: E

ng
ag

em
en

t P
ro

ce
ss

So
ur

ce
: C

irc
le

po
in

t, 
20

16

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

TO
W

N
 H

A
LL

N
O

V
EM

B
ER

 1
2,

 2
01

5

KE
Y 

TA
KE

AW
AY

S
78

%
 

Id
en

tifi
ed

 tr
affi

c 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

as
 a

 to
p 

co
nc

er
n

72
%

Ag
re

ed
 tr

an
si

t s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

 to
p 

W
es

t 
C

ou
nt

y 
pr

io
rit

y

KE
Y 

TR
A

N
SI

T 
O

B
ST

A
C

LE
S

39
%

 
La

ck
 o

f g
oo

d 
tra

ns
it 

op
tio

ns
25

%
Tr

an
si

t t
oo

 s
lo

w
19

%
 

Tr
an

si
t t

oo
 e

xp
en

si
ve

17
%

Tr
an

si
t o

pe
ra

tin
g 

ho
ur

s 
do

 n
ot

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 s

ch
ed

ul
e

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

DR
AF

T

7B-11



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
10

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

3.
4 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

ho
ps

 
an

d 
Su

rv
ey

 #
1

Th
e 

st
ud

y 
te

am
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 p
ub

lic
 

w
or

ks
ho

ps
 in

 A
pr

il 
20

16
. T

he
se

 
w

er
e 

he
ld

 a
t c

ou
nc

il 
ch

am
be

rs
 in

 
Ri

ch
m

on
d,

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
, a

nd
 P

in
ol

e.
 A

t 
th

es
e 

w
or

ks
ho

ps
, p

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 a

sk
ed

 
qu

es
tio

ns
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

ei
gh

t a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 
un

de
r c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 th

ei
r 

pr
ef

er
en

ce
s 

fo
r t

ra
ns

it 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

ba
se

d 
on

 c
os

ts
 a

nd
 e

as
e 

of
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
(s

ee
 F

ig
ur

e 
3-

2)
. S

up
po

rt
 

w
as

 re
gi

st
er

ed
 fo

r a
ll 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, w
ith

 
th

e 
Ex

pr
es

s 
Bu

s 
an

d 
BA

RT
 o

pt
io

ns
 b

ei
ng

 
th

e 
m

os
t p

op
ul

ar
.

Su
rv

ey
 #

1 R
es

ul
ts

M
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

 w
er

e 
al

so
 a

sk
ed

 
to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 a

n 
on

-li
ne

 s
ur

ve
y 

in
 A

pr
il 

20
15

 to
 d

es
cr

ib
e 

th
ei

r t
ra

ve
l p

at
te

rn
s 

an
d 

ex
pr

es
s 

tra
ns

it 
pr

ef
er

en
ce

s.
 T

he
 

su
rv

ey
s 

w
er

e 
no

t i
nt

en
de

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
a 

st
at

is
tic

al
 c

ro
ss

 s
ec

tio
n 

of
 W

es
t 

C
ou

nt
y 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 T

he
y 

w
er

e 
in

te
nd

ed
 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
an

d 
an

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f p
ub

lic
 o

pi
ni

on
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 tr

an
si

t i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. A

 to
ta

l 
of

 18
4 

pe
rs

on
s 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
su

rv
ey

. 
Re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
w

er
e 

se
lf-

se
le

ct
ed

. F
ig

ur
e 

3-
3 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 s

am
pl

e 
of

 th
e 

re
sp

on
se

s 
to

 s
ur

ve
y 

qu
es

tio
ns

.

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 P
ub

lic
 O

ut
re

ac
h 

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 #

1
A 

su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 w

or
ks

ho
ps

 a
nd

 
th

e 
fir

st
 s

ur
ve

y 
ca

n 
be

 fo
un

d 
by

 c
lic

ki
ng

 
H

ER
E 

or
 a

t h
ttp

://
w

es
tc

ou
nt

yt
ra

ns
its

tu
dy

.
co

m
/w

p-
co

nt
en

t/u
pl

oa
ds

/2
01

6/
05

/
W

C
C

TA
C

-A
pr

il-
20

16
-P

ub
lic

-O
ut

re
ac

h-
Su

m
m

ar
y-

Re
po

rt
.p

df
.

C
om

m
on

 T
he

m
es

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

m
m

on
 th

em
es

 e
m

er
ge

d 
fro

m
 th

e 
fir

st
 ro

un
d 

of
 p

ub
lic

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
 

an
d 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ur
ve

y:

 •
N

or
th

er
n 

Al
am

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

(A
lb

an
y, 

Be
rk

el
ey

, E
m

er
yv

ill
e,

 a
nd

 O
ak

la
nd

) a
nd

 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o 

w
er

e 
th

e 
m

os
t p

op
ul

ar
 

de
st

in
at

io
ns

 fo
r t

ra
ve

l o
ut

si
de

 o
f W

es
t 

C
ou

nt
y.

 •
A 

st
ro

ng
 d

es
ire

 e
xi

st
ed

 fo
r i

m
pr

ov
ed

 
pu

bl
ic

 tr
an

si
t o

pt
io

ns
.

 •
Su

pp
or

t w
as

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 fo

r E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

 
an

d 
BR

T 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

s 
sh

or
t-t

er
m

 
an

d 
co

st
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ay

s 
of

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
tra

ns
it.

 •
W

hi
le

 B
AR

T 
te

nd
ed

 to
 b

e 
fa

vo
re

d 
am

on
g 

re
sp

on
de

nt
s,

 a
ll 

tra
ns

it 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

er
e 

re
gi

st
er

in
g 

su
pp

or
t 

am
on

g 
ci

tiz
en

s.

 •
C

on
ce

rn
 w

as
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 o
ve

r t
he

 h
ig

h 
co

st
 o

f a
 B

AR
T 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 
to

 fu
nd

 s
uc

h 
hi

gh
 c

os
t i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.

 •
C

om
m

ut
er

 ra
il 

w
as

 a
ck

no
w

le
dg

ed
 fo

r 
its

 p
ot

en
tia

l t
o 

al
le

vi
at

e 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

on
 

I-8
0.

Fi
gu

re
 3

-2
: P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
C

os
t E

st
im

at
es

 +
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Sc
he

du
le

s 
Pr

es
en

te
d 

at
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

ho
ps

So
ur

ce
: C

irc
le

po
in

t, 
20

16

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
ho

p,
 A

pr
il 

12
, 2

01
6,

 S
ou

rc
e:

 C
irc

le
po

in
t

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

DR
AF

T

7B-12

http://westcountytransitstudy.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/05/WCCTAC-April-2016-Public-Outreach-Summary-Report.pdf


W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
11

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

Fi
gu

re
 3

-3
: O

nl
in

e 
Su

rv
ey

 #
1 S

am
pl

e 
Re

su
lts

So
ur

ce
: C

irc
le

po
in

t, 
W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

N
ot

e:
 T

he
se

 s
ur

ve
y 

re
su

lts
 re

pr
es

en
t a

 n
on

-s
ta

tis
tic

al
 s

am
pl

e 
of

 th
e 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

po
pu

la
tio

n.

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

DR
AF

T

7B-13



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
12

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

3.
5 

C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
Su

rv
ey

 #
2

Th
is

 ro
un

d 
of

 p
ub

lic
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

w
as

 
fo

cu
se

d 
on

 b
rin

gi
ng

 p
ro

je
ct

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 fo

ru
m

s.
 W

C
C

TA
C

 m
ad

e 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 a

t c
ity

 a
nd

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 

ad
vi

so
ry

 c
ou

nc
ils

 in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
in

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
an

d 
M

ar
ch

 o
f 2

01
7.

 T
he

 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 

th
e 

re
fin

ed
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
, s

ol
ic

ite
d 

in
pu

t 
an

d 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 fr

om
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 o
n 

th
e 

re
fin

ed
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
, a

nd
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 a

 s
ec

on
d 

su
rv

ey
. 

Su
rv

ey
 #

2 
Re

su
lts

A 
se

co
nd

 o
nl

in
e 

su
rv

ey
 w

as
 a

dm
in

is
te

re
d 

to
 o

bt
ai

n 
a 

de
ep

er
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f t

rip
 

pa
tte

rn
s,

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
ch

al
le

ng
es

, a
nd

 
tra

ns
it 

so
lu

tio
n 

pr
ef

er
en

ce
s 

fro
m

 e
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

ut
ur

e 
tra

ns
it 

us
er

s 
in

 W
es

t 
C

ou
nt

y.
 T

he
 s

ur
ve

y 
w

as
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 in

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
an

d 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

7.
  

Th
e 

su
rv

ey
 w

as
 n

ot
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
as

 a
 

st
at

is
tic

al
 s

am
pl

in
g 

of
 th

e 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
po

pu
la

tio
n.

 It
 w

as
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 fo
st

er
 

pu
bl

ic
 in

te
re

st
 in

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 

th
e 

W
C

C
TA

C
 B

oa
rd

 w
ith

 a
 g

en
er

al
 

se
ns

e 
of

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 in

te
re

st
 in

 tr
an

si
t 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 th

ei
r c

om
m

un
ity

.

A 
to

ta
l o

f 6
52

 re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
ed

 
in

 th
e 

su
rv

ey
; c

ov
er

in
g 

a 
br

oa
d 

ar
ea

 in
 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

co
un

ty
. O

f t
he

 re
sp

on
de

nt
s,

 3
53

 b
eg

an
 

th
ei

r c
om

m
ut

es
 in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y;

 9
8 

en
de

d 
th

ei
r t

rip
s 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
th

e 
re

m
ai

nd
er

 w
er

e 
m

ak
in

g 
tri

ps
 o

ut
si

de
 

of
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y.
 F

ig
ur

e 
3-

4 
pr

ov
id

es
 

a 
sa

m
pl

e 
of

 th
e 

re
sp

on
se

s 
to

 s
ur

ve
y 

qu
es

tio
ns

. A
 m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f 

th
e 

su
rv

ey
 re

su
lts

 c
an

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 P
ub

lic
 

O
ut

re
ac

h 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

Re
po

rt
.  

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 P
ub

lic
 O

ut
re

ac
h 

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 #

2
A 

su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 th
e 

se
co

nd
 ro

un
d 

of
 

pu
bl

ic
 w

or
ks

ho
ps

 a
nd

 th
e 

se
co

nd
 

su
rv

ey
 c

an
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

H
ER

E 
or

 a
t h

ttp
://

w
es

tc
ou

nt
yt

ra
ns

its
tu

dy
.c

om
/w

p-
co

nt
en

t/
up

lo
ad

s/
20

17
/0

4/
A

pr
il-

20
17

-P
ub

lic
-

O
ut

re
ac

h-
Su

m
m

ar
y-

Re
po

rt-
2_

20
17

04
10

.
pd

f.

C
om

m
on

 T
he

m
es

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

m
m

on
 th

em
es

 e
m

er
ge

d 
fro

m
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 ro
un

d 
of

 p
ub

lic
 

w
or

ks
ho

ps
 a

nd
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ur

ve
y:

 •
U

ni
ve

rs
al

 s
up

po
rt 

fo
r s

ho
rt-

te
rm

 b
us

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 in
tro

du
ce

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 to

 d
riv

in
g 

on
 th

e 
co

ng
es

te
d 

I-8
0 

fre
ew

ay
. S

up
po

rt 
fo

r t
he

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
op

tio
ns

 v
ar

ie
d 

by
 lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
th

er
e 

w
as

 s
om

e 
co

nc
er

n 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

th
at

 th
e 

bu
s 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
er

e 
go

od
 s

ho
rt-

te
rm

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, b
ut

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 to
 s

ol
ve

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
in

 th
e 

lo
ng

-te
rm

.

 •
Su

pp
or

t f
or

 th
e 

co
m

m
ut

er
 ra

il 
fa

re
 

su
bs

id
ie

s 
an

d 
ne

w
 s

ta
tio

n 
in

 H
er

cu
le

s 
w

er
e 

m
ix

ed
; t

he
re

 w
er

e 
so

m
e 

co
nc

er
ns

 
th

at
 c

om
m

ut
er

 ra
il 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 w
er

e 
co

st
ly

 
fo

r t
he

 s
m

al
l r

et
ur

n 
on

 ri
de

rs
hi

p.

 •
G

en
er

al
 s

up
po

rt 
fo

r B
AR

T 
as

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 
so

lu
tio

n 
gi

ve
n 

its
 p

ot
en

tia
l r

id
er

sh
ip

 
an

d 
th

e 
go

od
 c

on
ne

ct
iv

ity
 to

 th
e 

re
st

 
of

 th
e 

Ba
y 

Ar
ea

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 to
 h

ig
h 

de
m

an
d 

ar
ea

s 
lik

e 
O

ak
la

nd
 a

nd
 S

an
 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
re

 w
as

 a
ls

o 
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

em
en

t t
ha

t w
hi

le
 B

AR
T 

is
 

gr
ea

tly
 n

ee
de

d,
 it

 is
 a

m
on

g 
th

e 
co

st
lie

st
 

of
 o

pt
io

ns
.

 •
C

on
ce

rn
s 

w
er

e 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

th
at

 I-
80

 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

is
 o

nl
y 

ge
tti

ng
 w

or
se

, 
re

su
lti

ng
 in

 e
ve

r-i
nc

re
as

in
g 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

up
on

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
-o

f-l
ife

.

 •
Th

er
e 

w
as

 u
ni

ve
rs

al
 c

on
ce

rn
 a

bo
ut

 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 fu

nd
 th

es
e 

ne
ed

ed
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 fo
r t

he
 

BA
RT

 e
xt

en
si

on
, w

hi
ch

 is
 th

e 
m

os
t 

co
st

ly.
 It

 w
as

 n
ot

ed
 th

at
 s

om
e 

ci
tie

s 
ar

e 
“m

ax
ed

 o
ut

” o
n 

sa
le

s 
ta

xe
s 

m
ak

in
g 

it 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
fo

r l
oc

al
 e

nt
iti

es
 to

 
ra

is
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 fu

nd
s 

ne
ed

ed
 fo

r t
he

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
.

 •
Th

er
e 

w
as

 in
te

re
st

 in
 b

et
te

r 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

th
e 

tra
de

-o
ffs

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 

co
st

s 
an

d 
be

ne
fit

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 jo

b 
cr

ea
tio

n,
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l m
iti

ga
tio

n,
 a

nd
 q

ua
lit

y-
of

-li
fe

.

20
17

 P
U

B
LI

C
 P

RE
SE

N
TA

TI
O

N
S

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

8

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il
M

ar
ch

 6

Pi
no

le
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il
M

ar
ch

 7

El
 S

ob
ra

nt
e 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 A

dv
is

or
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

M
ar

ch
 8

H
er

cu
le

s 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il
M

ar
ch

 14

El
 C

er
rit

o 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
M

ar
ch

 2
1

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

H
er

cu
le

s 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il,
 M

ar
ch

 13
, 2

01
7

So
ur

ce
: W

C
C

TA
C

H
er

cu
le

s 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il,
 M

ar
ch

 13
, 2

01
7

So
ur

ce
: W

C
C

TA
C

DR
AF

T

7B-14

http://westcountytransitstudy.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/04/April-2017-Public-Outreach-Summary-Report-2_20170410.pdf


W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
13

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

Fi
gu

re
 3

-4
: O

nl
in

e 
Su

rv
ey

 #
2 

Sa
m

pl
e 

Re
su

lts
 –

 T
rip

s 
St

ar
tin

g 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y

So
ur

ce
: C

irc
le

po
in

t, 
W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

N
ot

e:
 T

he
se

 s
ur

ve
y 

re
su

lts
 re

pr
es

en
t a

 n
on

-s
ta

tis
tic

al
 s

am
pl

e 
of

 th
e 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

po
pu

la
tio

n.
  T

he
se

 fi
gu

re
s 

po
rt

ra
y 

th
e 

sa
m

pl
e 

of
 re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
w

ith
 tr

ip
s 

st
ar

tin
g 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y.

DR
AF

T

7B-15



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
14

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

O
ne

 o
f t

he
 e

ar
ly

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 o

f t
he

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
St

ud
y 

w
as

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
an

d 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

ra
ns

it 
m

ar
ke

t 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y.

 B
ec

au
se

 th
e 

gr
ea

te
st

 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

on
 ro

ad
s 

an
d 

tra
ns

it 
sy

st
em

s 
oc

cu
rs

 d
ur

in
g 

pe
ak

 c
om

m
ut

e 
ho

ur
s,

 
it 

w
as

 c
rit

ic
al

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
hi

gh
es

t-
de

m
an

d 
tra

ve
l m

ar
ke

ts
, o

rig
in

s,
 a

nd
 

de
st

in
at

io
ns

 fo
r W

es
t C

ou
nt

y.
12

 T
he

 
pr

op
en

si
ty

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

to
 

us
e 

tra
ns

it 
w

as
 a

ls
o 

im
po

rt
an

t t
o 

as
se

ss
 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l s
uc

ce
ss

 o
f t

ra
ns

it 
se

rv
ic

es
.

4.
1 H

ow
 D

o 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y    
Re

si
de

nt
s 

G
et

 A
ro

un
d?

Si
x 

tra
ns

it 
op

er
at

or
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 p
ro

vi
de

 
se

rv
ic

e 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y:

 A
C

 T
ra

ns
it,

 
W

es
tC

AT
, S

ol
an

o 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
si

t, 
Fa

irfi
el

d-
Su

is
un

 T
ra

ns
it,

 G
ol

de
n 

G
at

e 
Tr

an
si

t, 
an

d 
V

in
e 

Tr
an

si
t. 

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
an

d 
W

es
tC

AT
 a

re
 th

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s,

 w
ith

 th
e 

ot
he

r o
pe

ra
to

rs
 

pr
im

ar
ily

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 B

A
RT

 a
t 

th
e 

El
 C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
 o

r R
ic

hm
on

d 
St

at
io

ns
 fr

om
 o

ut
si

de
 th

e 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y.
 

BA
RT

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
re

gi
on

al
 ra

il 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
th

e 
C

ap
ito

l C
or

rid
or

 a
nd

 A
m

tra
k 

pr
ov

id
e 

in
te

rc
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
t a

 s
to

p 
in

 R
ic

hm
on

d.

W
hi

le
 th

is
 a

pp
ea

rs
 to

 b
e 

a 
fa

irl
y 

ric
h 

tra
ns

it 
m

ix
, i

n 
20

13
 m

os
t c

om
m

ut
er

 tr
ip

s 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

w
er

e 
“d

riv
e 

al
on

e”
 (6

4 
pe

rc
en

t) 
or

 c
ar

po
ol

 tr
ip

s 
(17

 p
er

ce
nt

) 
(s

ee
 F

ig
ur

e 
4-

1)
. O

nl
y 

ab
ou

t 1
2 

pe
rc

en
t 

of
 c

om
m

ut
er

 tr
ip

s 
w

er
e 

m
ad

e 
on

 tr
an

si
t. 

Fo
r t

ho
se

 tr
ip

s 
on

 tr
an

si
t, 

th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 
(6

5 
pe

rc
en

t) 
w

er
e 

m
ad

e 
on

 lo
ca

l a
nd

 
ex

pr
es

s 
bu

se
s 

se
rv

in
g 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

or
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
co

nn
ec

tio
ns

 to
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

 
an

d 
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y.

 T
he

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 

35
 p

er
ce

nt
 o

f t
rip

s 
w

er
e 

on
 B

A
RT

 (s
ee

 
Fi

gu
re

 4
-2

).

Th
e 

C
ap

ito
l C

or
rid

or
 a

nd
 A

m
tra

k 
al

so
 

pr
ov

id
e 

in
te

rc
ity

 tr
an

si
t s

er
vi

ce
 th

ro
ug

h 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y,
 w

ith
 le

ss
 th

an
 o

ne
 p

er
ce

nt
 

of
 tr

an
si

t t
rip

s 
us

in
g 

th
is

 s
er

vi
ce

.

A
C 

Tr
an

si
t

48
.9

%

B
A

RT
34

.5
%

So
lT

ra
ns

2.
9%

Fa
ir

fie
ld

-S
ui

sa
n

Tr
an

si
t

2.
2%

Go
ld

en
 G

at
e 

Tr
an

si
t

1.
6%

VI
N

E
0.

3%

W
es

tC
A

T
9.

6%

D
ro

ve
A

lo
ne

63
.7

%

Ca
rp

oo
l

16
.8

%

Tr
an

si
t

12
.2

%

W
es

tC
A

T
9.

6%
W

or
k 

Fr
om

H
om

e
3.

7%

B
ic

yc
le

1.
5%

O
th

er
1.

4%W
al

k
0.

7%

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

Tr
an

si
t M

ar
ke

t
4

Fi
gu

re
 4

-1
: C

om
m

ut
in

g 
M

od
es

 o
f W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
Re

si
de

nt
s

Fi
gu

re
 4

-2
: W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
si

t T
rip

s 
by

 O
pe

ra
to

r

So
ur

ce
: U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
Bu

re
au

 A
m

er
ic

an
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
ur

ve
y

So
ur

ce
: T

ra
ns

it 
O

pe
ra

to
rs

, 2
01

5 
Ri

de
rs

hi
p 

D
at

a

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET

DR
AF

T

7B-16



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
15

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

4.
2 

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e 

Tr
ip

 P
at

te
rn

s 
in

 W
es

t 
C

ou
nt

y?
Tw

o 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 w
er

e 
us

ed
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

ke
y 

tra
ve

l c
or

rid
or

s 
in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
: 

th
e 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Au
th

or
ity

 (C
C

TA
) c

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
tra

ve
l 

de
m

an
d 

m
od

el
 a

nd
 “b

ig
 d

at
a.

”13
  T

he
 

C
C

TA
 m

od
el

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
tra

ve
l d

em
an

d 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 u

si
ng

 a
 c

al
ib

ra
te

d 
an

d 
va

lid
at

ed
 e

st
im

at
e 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

tra
ve

l a
s 

a 
ba

se
 fo

r p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

. T
he

 s
ou

rc
e 

of
 

tra
ve

l b
eh

av
io

r d
at

a 
is

 th
e 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 (M
TC

) 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

su
rv

ey
. E

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 

la
nd

 u
se

s 
ar

e 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r i

n 
th

e 
C

C
TA

 
m

od
el

 b
y 

in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fro

m
 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

ci
tie

s’
 g

en
er

al
 p

la
ns

 th
at

 
is

 a
gg

re
ga

te
d 

in
to

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

of
 B

ay
 A

re
a 

G
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 
(A

BA
G

).

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, t

he
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 T
ra

ns
it 

St
ud

y 
co

lle
ct

ed
 n

ew
 tr

av
el

 o
rig

in
 a

nd
 

de
st

in
at

io
n 

da
ta

 (u
si

ng
 B

ig
 D

at
a)

 fo
r t

he
 

Ba
y 

A
re

a 
re

gi
on

 a
nd

 tw
o 

co
un

tie
s 

to
 th

e 
no

rt
h:

 Y
ol

o 
an

d 
Sa

cr
am

en
to

 C
ou

nt
ie

s.
 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 w
er

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 th

e 
m

od
el

 
or

ig
in

 a
nd

 d
es

tin
at

io
n 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
ne

w
 d

at
a,

 w
hi

ch
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

a 
25

 to
 3

0 
pe

rc
en

t s
am

pl
e 

of
 th

e 
tra

ve
lin

g 
pu

bl
ic

. T
he

 m
od

el
 w

as
 v

al
id

at
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 
th

e 
ad

ju
st

ed
 n

um
be

rs
 to

 p
er

fo
rm

 th
e 

rid
er

sh
ip

 fo
re

ca
st

s 
fo

r t
he

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

.

O
f t

he
 to

ta
l d

ai
ly

 p
er

so
n 

tri
ps

 th
at

 s
ta

rt
 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
in

 2
01

3,
 th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 

(7
2 

pe
rc

en
t) 

st
ay

 w
ith

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y.
14

  
Th

is
 is

 a
 ty

pi
ca

l c
on

di
tio

n 
as

 m
os

t t
rip

s 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 tr
av

el
 to

 w
or

k 
oc

cu
r c

lo
se

 
to

 h
om

e.
 In

 2
04

0,
 th

ou
gh

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 d

ai
ly

 p
er

so
n 

tri
ps

 a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 b

y 
25

 p
er

ce
nt

, t
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f 

th
os

e 
tri

ps
 (7

1 p
er

ce
nt

) a
re

 s
til

l e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 s
ta

y 
w

ith
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y.

 T
ab

le
 

4-
1 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 d

ai
ly

 tr
ip

 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
 fo

r t
rip

s 
th

at
 e

nd
 o

ut
si

de
 

of
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y.
 T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

es
 

sh
ow

 th
e 

m
os

t p
re

va
le

nt
 tr

ip
s 

en
d 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
le

av
in

g 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
ev

er
y 

da
y.

 T
he

 d
es

tin
at

io
ns

 w
ith

 th
e 

la
rg

es
t 

dr
aw

s 
ar

e 
A

lb
an

y/
Be

rk
el

ey
/E

m
er

yv
ill

e,
 

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o,
 a

nd
 A

la
m

ed
a/

O
ak

la
nd

. 
N

or
th

er
n 

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o 

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r 6
2 

pe
rc

en
t o

f a
ll 

tri
ps

 e
nd

s 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

in
 2

01
3 

an
d 

ar
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 fo

r a
bo

ut
 

64
 p

er
ce

nt
 o

f a
ll 

tri
p 

en
ds

 o
ut

si
de

 W
es

t 
C

ou
nt

y 
in

 2
04

0.
 T

ra
ve

l p
at

te
rn

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

ap
pr

ec
ia

bl
y.

A 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 d

iff
er

en
t p

at
te

rn
 e

xi
st

s 
fo

r t
ot

al
 

da
ily

 p
er

so
n 

tri
ps

 c
om

in
g 

to
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 

ev
er

y 
da

y.
 S

ol
an

o 
C

ou
nt

y 
co

nt
rib

ut
es

 a
 

hi
gh

er
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 tr
ip

s 
co

m
in

g 
in

to
 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

th
an

 it
 d

oe
s 

as
 a

 d
es

tin
at

io
n 

fo
r W

es
t C

ou
nt

y.
 In

 2
01

3,
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
60

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f t

rip
s 

ca
m

e 
fro

m
 th

e 
to

p 
th

re
e 

or
ig

in
s:

 A
lb

an
y/

Be
rk

el
ey

, S
ol

an
o 

C
ou

nt
y,

 a
nd

 E
m

er
yv

ill
e/

A
la

m
ed

a/
 

O
ak

la
nd

 (s
ee

 T
ab

le
 4

-2
).

Th
es

e 
th

re
e 

ar
ea

s 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 
ac

co
un

t f
or

 a
bo

ut
 6

0 
pe

rc
en

t o
f t

he
 d

ai
ly

 
pe

rs
on

 tr
ip

s 
co

m
in

g 
in

to
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y,
 

ho
w

ev
er

, m
or

e 
of

 th
e 

tri
ps

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
m

in
g 

fro
m

 n
or

th
er

n 
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y.

 T
he

 
in

-c
om

m
ut

e 
pa

tte
rn

s 
sh

ow
 a

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
to

 s
er

ve
 a

 n
or

th
er

n 
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

re
ve

rs
e 

co
m

m
ut

e 
tri

p 
w

ith
 tr

an
si

t, 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r t

ho
se

 li
vi

ng
 in

 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y.
 In

 2
01

3,
 a

bo
ut

 4
2 

pe
rc

en
t 

of
 tr

ip
s 

to
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
or

ig
in

at
ed

 fr
om

 
A

lb
an

y,
 B

er
ke

le
y,

 E
m

er
yv

ill
e,

 A
la

m
ed

a 
an

d 
O

ak
la

nd
 a

nd
 th

at
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 to

 a
bo

ut
 4

4 
pe

rc
en

t b
y 

20
40

. 
So

la
no

 C
ou

nt
y,

 h
ow

ev
er

, w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 

be
ne

fit
 fr

om
 th

is
 re

ve
rs

e 
co

m
m

ut
e 

as
 

ne
w

 tr
an

si
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
to

 S
ol

an
o 

C
ou

nt
y 

ar
e 

no
t p

ro
po

se
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
st

ud
y.

W
H

AT
 IS

 “
B

IG
 D

AT
A”

?

“B
ig

 d
at

a”
 is

 d
efi

ne
d 

as
 e

xt
re

m
el

y 
la

rg
e 

da
ta

 s
et

s 
th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
co

m
pu

ta
tio

na
lly

 
an

al
yz

ed
 to

 re
ve

al
 p

at
te

rn
s,

 tr
en

ds
, a

nd
 

as
so

ci
at

io
ns

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 

hu
m

an
 b

eh
av

io
r a

nd
 in

te
ra

ct
io

ns
. 

In
 th

is
 c

on
te

xt
, b

ig
 d

at
a 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 

a 
la

rg
e 

da
ta

 s
et

 o
f t

rip
 o

rig
in

s 
an

d 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
 in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

th
e 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

re
gi

on
 fo

r u
se

 in
 

tra
ve

l d
em

an
d 

fo
re

ca
st

in
g.

 T
hi

s 
da

ta
 

is
 c

om
pr

is
ed

 o
f o

rig
in

-d
es

tin
at

io
n 

da
ta

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

gu
la

r 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
ce

llu
la

r 
de

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
ce

ll 
to

w
er

s.

TH
E 

M
A

JO
RI

TY
 O

F 
TO

TA
L 

TR
IP

S 
ST

AY
 IN

 W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

20
13

 T
O

TA
L 

D
A

IL
Y 

PE
RS

O
N

 T
RI

PS

49
2,

90
0

tri
ps

 in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
(7

2%
)

19
0,

60
0

tri
ps

 to
 B

ay
 A

re
a 

de
st

in
at

io
ns

 (2
8%

)

68
3,

50
0

to
ta

l d
ai

ly
 p

er
so

n 
tri

ps

TH
ER

E 
IS

 A
 S

M
A

LL
ER

 IN
-C

O
M

M
U

TE
 

TO
 W

ES
T 

C
O

U
N

TY

11
8,

86
0

da
ily

 p
er

so
n 

tri
ps

 fr
om

 B
ay

 A
re

a 
or

ig
in

s 
to

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

in
 2

01
3

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET

DR
AF

T

7B-17



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
16

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

Ta
bl

e 
4-

1:
 D

ai
ly

 P
er

so
n 

Tr
ip

s 
St

ar
tin

g 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

En
di

ng
 O

ut
si

de
 th

e 
St

ud
y 

A
re

a

So
ur

ce
: C

C
TA

 T
ra

ve
l D

em
an

d 
M

od
el

, J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

6

Tr
ip

 D
es

tin
at

io
n

%
 D

ai
ly

 T
rip

s 
En

di
ng

 
O

ut
si

de
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
 

20
13

A
lb

an
y/

Be
rk

el
ey

/E
m

er
yv

ill
e

28
.5

%

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o
18

.0
%

A
la

m
ed

a/
O

ak
la

nd
15

.5
%

Re
st

 o
f C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y
10

.7
%

So
la

no
 C

ou
nt

y
9.

9%

M
ar

in
 C

ou
nt

y
4.

4%

Sa
nt

a 
C

la
ra

 C
ou

nt
y

4.
0%

N
ap

a 
an

d 
So

no
m

a 
C

ou
nt

ie
s

3.
7%

So
ut

h 
an

d 
Ea

st
 A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
ie

s
3.

0%

Sa
n 

M
at

eo
 C

ou
nt

y
2.

4%

To
ta

l 
10

0.
0%

Tr
ip

 O
rig

in
%

 D
ai

ly
 T

rip
s 

En
di

ng
  

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
 

20
13

A
lb

an
y/

Be
rk

el
ey

/E
m

er
yv

ill
e

28
.3

%

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o
17

.1%

A
la

m
ed

a/
O

ak
la

nd
14

.1%

Re
st

 o
f C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y
12

.4
%

So
la

no
 C

ou
nt

y
9.

2%

M
ar

in
 C

ou
nt

y
6.

3%

Sa
nt

a 
C

la
ra

 C
ou

nt
y

5.
5%

N
ap

a 
an

d 
So

no
m

a 
C

ou
nt

ie
s

4.
3%

So
ut

h 
an

d 
Ea

st
 A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
ie

s
1.8

%

Sa
n 

M
at

eo
 C

ou
nt

y
1.0

%

To
ta

l 
10

0.
0%

Ta
bl

e 
4-

2:
 T

ot
al

 D
ai

ly
 P

er
so

n 
Tr

ip
s 

En
di

ng
 in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y

So
ur

ce
: C

C
TA

 T
ra

ve
l D

em
an

d 
M

od
el

, J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

6

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET

DR
AF

T

7B-18



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
17

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

4.
3 

C
an

 T
rip

s 
in

 W
es

t 
C

ou
nt

y 
be

 W
el

l S
er

ve
d 

by
 T

ra
ns

it?
Th

e 
fin

al
 p

ie
ce

 o
f t

he
 m

ar
ke

t a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

w
as

 to
 c

on
si

de
r w

hi
ch

 o
f t

he
 tr

an
si

t 
m

ar
ke

ts
 o

ut
lin

ed
 a

bo
ve

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
th

e 
be

st
 c

an
di

da
te

s 
fo

r s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l t

ra
ns

it 
se

rv
ic

e,
 o

r w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
th

e 
gr

ea
te

st
 c

ha
nc

e 
of

 a
ttr

ac
tin

g 
rid

er
sh

ip
. 

A
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

pe
ns

ity
 fo

r 
tra

ns
it 

us
e 

w
as

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 u

si
ng

 a
 T

ra
ns

it 
Su

ita
bi

lit
y 

In
de

x 
(T

SI
).

Th
e 

m
os

t s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l t

ra
ns

it 
se

rv
ic

e 
lin

ks
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

te
d 

ar
ea

s 
of

 tr
ip

 o
rig

in
s 

w
ith

 d
en

se
 a

re
as

 o
f t

rip
 d

es
tin

at
io

ns
. 

O
th

er
 fa

ct
or

s 
th

at
 a

ffe
ct

 tr
an

si
t r

id
er

sh
ip

 
in

cl
ud

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

in
co

m
e 

an
d 

ve
hi

cl
e 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p.
 T

he
 T

SI
 u

se
d 

a 
co

m
po

si
te

 o
f 

th
es

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

tra
ns

it 
se

ns
iti

ve
 

ar
ea

s 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

th
at

 h
av

e 
th

e 
gr

ea
te

st
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 g
en

er
at

e 
ne

w
 

tra
ns

it 
rid

er
sh

ip
.

Fi
gu

re
 4

-3
 s

ho
w

s 
th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f t

he
 T

SI
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

fo
r W

es
t C

ou
nt

y.
 U

nd
er

 
cu

rr
en

t c
on

di
tio

ns
, t

he
 g

re
at

es
t p

ot
en

tia
l 

fo
r t

ra
ns

it 
ex

is
ts

 in
 th

e 
ci

tie
s 

of
 E

l C
er

rit
o,

 
Ri

ch
m

on
d,

 a
nd

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 in

 th
e 

so
ut

he
rn

 
pa

rt
 o

f W
es

t C
ou

nt
y.

 O
ve

r t
im

e,
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 tr

an
si

t r
id

er
sh

ip
 w

ill
 g

ro
w

, a
s 

sh
ow

n 
in

 F
ig

ur
e 

4-
4,

 a
s 

th
e 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
 

m
ed

iu
m

 to
 h

ig
h 

tra
ns

it 
po

te
nt

ia
l e

xp
an

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

El
 C

er
rit

o,
 R

ic
hm

on
d,

 a
nd

 S
an

 
Pa

bl
o 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
th

e 
lo

w
-m

ed
iu

m
 tr

an
si

t 
po

te
nt

ia
l e

xp
an

ds
 to

 P
in

ol
e 

an
d 

H
er

cu
le

s 
w

ith
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 g
ro

w
th

. W
hi

le
 n

ot
 

ca
pt

ur
ed

 in
 th

e 
TS

I, 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

on
 I-

80
 

al
so

 s
er

ve
s 

as
 a

n 
in

ce
nt

iv
e 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
to

 o
pt

 fo
r r

el
ia

bl
e 

an
d 

co
nv

en
ie

nt
 tr

an
si

t 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 a
vo

id
 d

el
ay

s 
on

 
th

e 
fre

ew
ay

. T
he

 I-
80

 a
nd

 th
e 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

en
ue

 c
or

rid
or

s 
sh

ow
ed

 th
e 

gr
ea

te
st

 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 tr

an
si

t i
nv

es
tm

en
t o

ve
r t

im
e,

 
as

 d
id

 im
pr

ov
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 in
 R

ic
hm

on
d,

 
El

 C
er

rit
o,

 a
nd

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 to

 c
ap

tu
re

 th
e 

gr
ow

in
g 

de
ns

ity
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.

T
ra

n
si

t 
N

e
e

d
s 

D
e

n
si

ty

M
an

y 
fa

ct
or

s 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
 th

e 
su

cc
es

s 
of

 a
ny

 tr
an

si
t s

er
vi

ce
, w

ith
 d

en
si

ty
 b

ei
ng

 
on

e 
of

 th
e 

le
ad

in
g 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r p
ot

en
tia

l t
ra

ns
it 

rid
er

sh
ip

. W
hi

le
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
si

ng
le

 
nu

m
be

r o
r f

or
m

ul
a 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
ho

w
 m

uc
h 

de
ns

ity
 is

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 tr

an
si

t, 
hi

gh
er

 d
en

si
tie

s 
ac

co
m

pa
ni

ed
 b

y 
pe

de
st

ria
n-

fri
en

dl
y 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

sh
ow

n 
to

 g
en

er
at

e 
hi

gh
er

 ri
de

rs
hi

p.
15

,1
6   

  

D
en

si
ty

 c
an

 b
e 

de
fin

ed
 in

 d
iff

er
en

t w
ay

s:
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l d
en

si
ty

 (e
.g

., 
re

si
de

nt
s 

or
 

ho
m

es
 p

er
 a

cr
e)

; t
ot

al
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t d

en
si

ty
 (e

.g
., 

ho
m

es
, b

us
in

es
se

s,
 s

ch
oo

ls
, e

tc
. 

pe
r a

cr
e)

; a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
 d

en
si

ty
 (e

.g
., 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f j
ob

s 
in

 a
n 

ar
ea

)17
 a

re
 a

 fe
w

 
w

ay
s 

to
 e

xa
m

in
e 

th
e 

ac
tiv

ity
 in

 a
 p

la
ce

 o
r r

eg
io

n.
 

In
 th

e 
Ba

y 
A

re
a,

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 m

us
t h

av
e 

(o
r p

la
n 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
) r

es
id

en
tia

l d
en

si
tie

s 
ne

ar
 

bu
s 

ra
pi

d 
tra

ns
it 

(B
RT

) o
r l

ig
ht

 ra
il 

st
at

io
ns

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pe

tit
iv

e 
fo

r p
ro

je
ct

 fu
nd

in
g 

by
 

th
e 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 (M
TC

). 
M

in
im

um
 d

en
si

ty
 th

re
sh

ol
ds

 
w

ith
in

 1/
2 

m
ile

 o
f s

ta
tio

ns
 a

re
 2

,7
50

 fo
r B

RT
 a

nd
 3

,3
00

 fo
r L

RT
 (t

hr
es

ho
ld

s 
fo

r 
Ex

pr
es

s 
Bu

s 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

re
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 M

TC
.)

So
ur

ce
: M

TC
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
34

34
, A

tta
ch

m
en

t D
-2

, R
ev

is
ed

 J
ul

y 
27

, 2
00

5

M
TC

’s
 re

qu
ire

m
en

t i
llu

st
ra

te
s 

an
 im

po
rt

an
t p

rin
ci

pl
e 

fo
r m

ak
in

g 
tra

ns
it 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
: 

Tr
an

si
t i

s 
hi

gh
ly

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 o

n 
th

e 
de

ns
ity

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 a
ro

un
d 

st
at

io
ns

 (w
ith

in
 

a 
½

 m
ile

). 
In

 o
th

er
 w

or
ds

, c
rit

ic
al

 to
 th

e 
su

cc
es

s 
of

 a
ny

 b
us

 o
r t

ra
in

 s
er

vi
ce

 is
 th

e 
de

ns
ity

 ri
gh

t w
he

re
 th

e 
tra

ns
it 

is
 a

nd
 n

ot
 th

e 
ag

gr
eg

at
e 

de
ns

ity
 o

f t
he

 la
rg

er
 u

rb
an

 
ar

ea
.18

G
en

er
al

ly
, c

iti
es

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 in
 th

e 
no

rt
he

rn
 p

ar
t o

f W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

(H
er

cu
le

s,
 

Pi
no

le
, C

ro
ck

et
t, 

an
d 

Ro
de

o)
 h

av
e 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
lo

w
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
nd

 jo
bs

 d
en

si
tie

s 
th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
le

ss
 c

on
du

ci
ve

 to
 H

C
T 

to
da

y.
 W

ith
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 d

en
si

tie
s 

ov
er

 ti
m

e 
re

su
lti

ng
 in

 h
ig

he
r a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 ri

de
rs

hi
p,

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f t

ra
ns

it 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

be
co

m
es

 m
or

e 
co

st
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e.

 S
ho

rt
-te

rm
, l

ow
er

-c
os

t i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, s

uc
h 

as
 

tra
ns

it 
si

gn
al

 p
rio

rit
y,

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
in

 th
es

e 
ar

ea
s 

un
til

 h
ig

he
r d

en
si

tie
s 

ar
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
 w

ar
ra

nt
 la

rg
er

 fi
na

nc
ia

l i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

. I
n 

th
e 

in
te

rim
, i

ni
tia

l 
pr

oj
ec

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
 fo

r m
od

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 B

A
RT

 c
an

 b
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
(e

.g
., 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l s
tu

di
es

, p
re

lim
in

ar
y 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 o

f r
ig

ht
-o

f-w
ay

 n
ee

de
d)

, a
s 

th
es

e 
op

tio
ns

 re
qu

ire
 a

 lo
ng

er
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

tim
el

in
e.



B
RT

LR
T

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 T
H

RE
SH

O
LD

Av
er

ag
e 

ho
us

in
g 

un
its

 w
ith

in
 ½

 m
ile

 o
f s

ta
tio

n
2,

75
0

3,
30

0

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET

DR
AF

T

7B-19



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
18

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

Fi
gu

re
 4

-3
: T

ra
ns

it 
Su

ita
bi

lit
y 

In
de

x 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y,

 2
01

3

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

Fi
gu

re
 4

-4
: T

ra
ns

it 
Su

ita
bi

lit
y 

In
de

x 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y,

 2
04

0

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

T
ra

n
si

t 
S

u
it

a
b

il
it

y
 I

n
d

e
x

TS
I i

s 
a 

sk
et

ch
 p

la
nn

in
g 

to
ol

 u
se

d 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

m
os

t v
ia

bl
e 

tra
ns

it 
m

ar
ke

ts
 in

 
a 

st
ud

y 
ar

ea
. S

pa
tia

l t
oo

ls
 in

 a
 G

eo
gr

ap
hi

ca
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

Sy
st

em
 a

re
 a

pp
lie

d 
to

 
ev

al
ua

te
 th

e 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
of

 v
ar

ia
bl

es
 th

at
 a

re
 s

tro
ng

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 o

f 
tra

ns
it 

rid
er

sh
ip

: p
op

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t d

en
si

ty
, h

ou
se

ho
ld

 in
co

m
e,

 a
nd

 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p.



DR
AF

T

7B-20



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
19

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

Th
is

 s
ec

tio
n 

de
sc

rib
es

 th
e 

ite
ra

tiv
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

th
at

 w
as

 u
se

d 
to

 c
re

at
e 

a 
se

t o
f 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
ra

ns
it 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 fo
r W

es
t 

C
ou

nt
y.

 T
hi

s 
st

ud
y 

by
 W

C
C

TA
C

 is
 th

e 
fir

st
 e

ffo
rt

 to
 s

im
ul

ta
ne

ou
sl

y 
co

ns
id

er
 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 in

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 
m

ul
tim

od
al

 tr
an

si
t m

od
es

 a
nd

 h
ow

 th
es

e 
m

od
al

 o
pt

io
ns

 c
an

 c
om

pl
em

en
t e

ac
h 

ot
he

r t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

tra
ns

it 
rid

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 

m
ax

im
iz

e 
lin

ka
ge

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

st
ud

y 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 th

e 
w

id
er

 re
gi

on
. 

5.
1 I

ni
tia

l A
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 
5.

1.1
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f I
ni

tia
l  

A
lte

rn
at

iv
es

Th
e 

I-8
0 

co
rr

id
or

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
th

e 
fo

cu
s 

of
 m

an
y 

pr
ev

io
us

 s
tu

di
es

 (r
ef

er
 to

 
si

de
ba

r, 
“P

re
vi

ou
s 

St
ud

ie
s”

). 
It 

is
 th

e 
fir

st
 e

ffo
rt

 to
 s

im
ul

ta
ne

ou
sl

y 
co

ns
id

er
 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 in

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 
m

ul
tim

od
al

 tr
an

si
t m

od
es

 a
nd

 th
es

e 
m

od
al

 o
pt

io
ns

 c
an

 c
om

pl
em

en
t e

ac
h 

ot
he

r t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

tra
ns

it 
rid

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 

m
ax

im
iz

e 
lin

ka
ge

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

st
ud

y 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 th

e 
w

id
er

 re
gi

on
. T

he
 s

tu
dy

 
te

am
 re

vi
ew

ed
 th

es
e 

pr
io

r s
tu

di
es

 
an

d 
m

ul
tip

le
 s

ou
rc

es
 o

f i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
ei

gh
t i

ni
tia

l H
C

T 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 (s

ee
 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

1)
. T

he
se

 s
ou

rc
es

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
pu

t 
fro

m
 th

e 
St

ud
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

, t
he

 
W

C
C

TA
C

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 A

dv
is

or
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
, 

an
d 

th
e 

W
C

C
TA

C
 B

oa
rd

. O
th

er
 s

ou
rc

es
 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 th

e 
st

ud
y’

s 
tra

ns
it 

m
ar

ke
t a

na
ly

si
s 

(S
ec

tio
n 

4)
.

A
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
5

#
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

1
Ex

pr
es

s 
B

us
 S

er
vi

ce
Ex

pr
es

s 
Bu

s 
Se

rv
ic

e 
on

 I-
80

 fr
om

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r (

at
 W

ill
ow

 A
ve

nu
e/

SR
 4

) a
nd

 o
n 

I-5
80

 
fro

m
 M

ar
in

 C
ou

nt
y 

to
 A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

vi
a 

I-8
0

2
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

A
ve

nu
e/

M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
B

RT

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

en
ue

/M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
BR

T 
fro

m
 E

l C
er

rit
o 

de
l N

or
te

 B
A

RT
 to

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r, 
se

rv
in

g 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ol
le

ge
 a

nd
 H

ill
to

p 
M

al
l o

n 
th

e 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

al
ig

nm
en

t; 
to

 
Te

w
ks

bu
ry

 T
ur

na
ro

un
d 

an
d 

se
rv

in
g 

th
e 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
BA

RT
/C

ap
ito

l C
or

rid
or

 s
ta

tio
n 

on
 M

ac
do

na
ld

 
Av

en
ue

. P
os

si
bl

e 
ex

te
ns

io
ns

 o
f S

an
 P

ab
lo

 B
RT

 to
 H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r a
nd

 to
 th

e 
H

er
cu

le
s 

In
te

rm
od

al
 T

ra
ns

it 
C

en
te

r (
at

 B
ay

fro
nt

 B
ou

le
va

rd
)

3
23

rd
 S

tr
ee

t B
RT

23
rd

 S
tre

et
 B

RT
 fr

om
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Fe
rr

y 
Te

rm
in

al
 to

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
BA

RT
/C

ap
ito

l C
or

rid
or

 s
ta

tio
n,

 th
en

 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 to
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ol
le

ge
, w

ith
 p

os
si

bl
e 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
al

on
g 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

en
ue

 to
 H

ill
to

p 
M

al
l a

nd
 H

er
cu

le
s

4
U

PR
R 

(U
ni

on
 P

ac
ifi

c 
Ra

ilr
oa

d)
 C

or
rid

or
 

C
om

m
ut

er
 R

ai
l

U
PR

R 
C

or
rid

or
 C

om
m

ut
er

 R
ai

l f
ro

m
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

BA
RT

 to
 d

ow
nt

ow
n 

M
ar

tin
ez

 w
ith

 a
n 

in
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 
st

at
io

n 
at

 th
e 

H
er

cu
le

s 
In

te
rm

od
al

 T
ra

ns
it 

C
en

te
r (

at
 B

ay
fro

nt
 B

ou
le

va
rd

) a
nd

 w
ith

 a
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
to

 O
ak

la
nd

5
U

PR
R-

B
N

SF
 (B

N
SF

 
Ra

ilw
ay

) C
or

rid
or

 
C

om
m

ut
er

 R
ai

l
U

PR
R-

BN
SF

 C
or

rid
or

 C
om

m
ut

er
 R

ai
l f

ro
m

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
BA

RT
 to

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r (

at
 W

ill
ow

 
Av

en
ue

/S
R 

4)
 w

ith
 p

os
si

bl
e 

ea
st

 e
xt

en
si

on
 to

 I-
68

0 
in

 M
ar

tin
ez

 a
nd

 S
ou

th
 E

xt
en

si
on

 to
 O

ak
la

nd

6
BA

RT
 E

xt
en

si
on

 fr
om

 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

St
at

io
n 

to
 

H
er

cu
le

s

BA
RT

 E
xt

en
si

on
 fr

om
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

St
at

io
n 

to
 H

er
cu

le
s 

fro
m

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
BA

RT
 s

ta
tio

n 
al

on
g 

th
e 

U
PR

R 
rig

ht
-o

f-w
ay

 tr
an

si
tio

ni
ng

 to
 13

th
 A

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
Ru

m
ril

l B
ou

le
va

rd
 b

ef
or

e 
tu

nn
el

in
g 

un
de

r H
ill

to
p 

M
al

l 
th

en
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

I-8
0 

rig
ht

-o
f-w

ay
 to

 th
e 

H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r (

at
 W

ill
ow

 A
ve

nu
e/

SR
 4

)

7A

BA
RT

 E
xt

en
si

on
 fr

om
 

El
 C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
 

St
at

io
n 

to
 H

er
cu

le
s 

– 
C

on
ve

nt
io

na
l B

A
RT

 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

BA
RT

 E
xt

en
si

on
 fr

om
 E

l C
er

rit
o 

de
l N

or
te

 S
ta

tio
n 

to
 H

er
cu

le
s 

fro
m

 E
l C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
 B

A
RT

 
st

at
io

n 
to

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r (

at
 W

ill
ow

 A
ve

nu
e/

SR
-4

) a
lo

ng
 th

e 
I-8

0 
rig

ht
-o

f-w
ay

7B

BA
RT

 E
xt

en
si

on
 fr

om
 

El
 C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
 

St
at

io
n 

to
 H

er
cu

le
s 

– 
D

M
U

 (D
ie

se
l M

ul
tip

le
 

U
ni

t) 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

D
M

U
 E

xt
en

si
on

 fr
om

 E
l C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
 S

ta
tio

n 
to

 H
er

cu
le

s 
fro

m
 E

l C
er

rit
o 

de
l N

or
te

 B
A

RT
 s

ta
tio

n 
to

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r (

at
 W

ill
ow

 A
ve

nu
e/

SR
 4

) a
lo

ng
 th

e 
I-8

0 
rig

ht
-o

f-w
ay

Ta
bl

e 
5-

1:
 In

iti
al

 H
C

T 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

es

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff,

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

6

DR
AF

T

7B-21



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
20

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

Th
e 

st
ud

y 
di

d 
no

t f
oc

us
 o

n 
tra

ns
it 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 th
at

 w
er

e 
al

re
ad

y 
un

de
rw

ay
 in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y,

 fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
fe

rr
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

th
at

 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

iti
at

ed
 in

 2
01

8 
at

 F
or

d 
Po

in
t. 

Th
e 

RI
TC

 in
 H

er
cu

le
s 

w
as

 a
ls

o 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
 

pl
an

ne
d 

an
d 

pr
og

ra
m

m
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

, b
ut

 
w

as
 la

te
r i

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

in
to

 th
e 

st
ud

y 
du

e 
to

 fu
nd

in
g 

sh
or

tfa
lls

. T
he

 m
os

t p
ro

m
is

in
g 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 th
at

 h
ad

 e
m

er
ge

d 
fro

m
 

pr
ev

io
us

 s
tu

di
es

 o
f t

he
 I-

80
 c

or
rid

or
 w

er
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
m

ix
 –

 a
 B

A
RT

 e
xt

en
si

on
 

vi
a 

Ru
m

ril
l B

ou
le

va
rd

, c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e,

 c
he

ap
er

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
, 

e.
g.

, d
ie

se
l m

ot
or

iz
ed

 u
ni

ts
 (D

M
U

s)
 in

 
lie

u 
of

 B
A

RT
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

, t
he

 o
pt

io
n 

fo
r c

om
m

ut
er

 ra
il 

se
rv

ic
e 

on
 th

e 
BN

SF
 

co
rr

id
or

, a
nd

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 E

xp
re

ss
 

Bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
n 

I-8
0.

St
ud

ie
s 

an
d 

de
m

on
st

ra
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 in

 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

ls
o 

in
fo

rm
ed

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 th

e 
in

iti
al

 e
ig

ht
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
. A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

nd
 

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
w

er
e 

ex
pl

or
in

g 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r B

us
 R

ap
id

 T
ra

ns
it 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
on

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e 
fro

m
 d

ow
nt

ow
n 

O
ak

la
nd

 n
or

th
 to

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r a
nd

 o
n 

M
ac

do
na

ld
 

Av
en

ue
. G

ol
de

n 
G

at
e 

Tr
an

si
t w

as
 

un
de

rt
ak

in
g 

a 
pi

lo
t p

ro
gr

am
 fo

r t
ra

ns
ba

y 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
Sa

n 
Ra

fa
el

 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r a

nd
 A

lb
an

y,
 B

er
ke

le
y,

 
an

d 
Em

er
yv

ill
e.

 T
he

 re
su

lts
 o

f t
he

 
tra

ve
l m

ar
ke

t a
na

ly
si

s 
fo

r t
hi

s 
st

ud
y 

al
so

 in
tro

du
ce

d 
th

e 
co

nc
ep

t o
f d

ire
ct

 
Ex

pr
es

s 
Bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
fro

m
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
to

 
Be

rk
el

ey
, E

m
er

yv
ill

e,
 a

nd
 O

ak
la

nd
.

Li
gh

t r
ai

l w
as

 e
lim

in
at

ed
 e

ar
ly

 o
n 

as
 

a 
vi

ab
le

 m
od

e 
fo

r t
he

 c
or

rid
or

s 
un

de
r 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n.
 T

he
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 A
ve

nu
e 

co
rr

id
or

 d
id

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
th

e 
de

ns
ity

 to
 

su
pp

or
t l

ig
ht

 ra
il 

tra
ns

it,
 w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 m

uc
h 

m
or

e 
ex

pe
ns

iv
e 

th
an

 B
RT

 a
nd

 
ha

ve
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 m
or

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

fu
nc

tio
na

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
st

re
et

, a
nd

 th
e 

I-8
0 

co
rr

id
or

, w
ith

 th
e 

to
po

gr
ap

hi
c 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 

an
d 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 h
ig

h-
ca

pa
ci

ty
 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r p

ot
en

tia
l r

id
er

s,
 s

ee
m

ed
 m

or
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 fo

r h
ea

vy
 ra

il 
op

tio
ns

.

Ta
ki

ng
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 a

ll 
of

 th
is

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 
th

e 
st

ud
y 

te
am

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

n 
in

iti
al

 
“lo

ng
 li

st
” o

f t
ra

ns
it 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 fo
r 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n.
 T

he
 in

iti
al

 li
st

 w
as

 
no

t a
rt

ifi
ci

al
ly

 c
on

st
ra

in
ed

 to
 a

vo
id

 
pr

em
at

ur
el

y 
el

im
in

at
in

g 
an

y 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 

th
at

 m
ig

ht
 h

av
e 

m
aj

or
 tr

av
el

 b
en

efi
ts

. 
Re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 th
at

 m
ad

e 
th

e 
in

iti
al

 li
st

 w
er

e 
th

at
 th

ey
 s

er
ve

 th
e 

do
cu

m
en

te
d 

tra
ve

l m
ar

ke
ts

, r
ep

re
se

nt
 

pr
ov

en
 m

od
es

 o
f t

ra
ns

it 
tra

ve
l, 

an
d 

off
er

 h
ig

h-
ca

pa
ci

ty
 tr

an
si

t o
pt

io
ns

 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

ov
er

ar
ch

in
g 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 th

e 
st

ud
y.

 T
he

 e
ig

ht
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 

th
at

 a
re

 o
n 

th
e 

“lo
ng

 li
st

” a
re

 b
rie

fly
 

de
sc

rib
ed

 in
 T

ab
le

 5
-1

 (r
ef

er
 to

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
pa

ge
). 

M
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 
th

e 
ei

gh
t a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l M

em
or

an
du

m
 #

8,
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
.19

PR
EV

IO
U

S 
ST

U
D

IE
S

G
iv

en
 th

e 
he

av
y 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

, m
ul

tip
le

 e
ffo

rt
s 

ha
d 

be
en

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

to
 

as
se

ss
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 H

C
T 

in
 th

e 
st

ud
y 

ar
ea

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 •
AC

 T
ra

ns
it 

M
aj

or
 C

or
rid

or
s 

St
ud

y,
 2

01
6

 •
AC

 T
ra

ns
it 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ex
pa

ns
io

n 
Pl

an
, 2

01
6

 •
BA

RT
 W

es
t C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 E

xt
en

si
on

 S
tu

dy
, 1

98
3

 •
BA

RT
 W

es
t C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 E

xt
en

si
on

 A
lig

nm
en

t S
tu

dy
, 1

99
2

 •
BA

RT
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
-S

ol
an

o 
Ra

il 
Fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 S
tu

dy
, 2

00
3

 •
BA

RT
 V

is
io

n 
Pl

an
, 2

01
4

 •
C

ap
ito

l C
or

rid
or

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
, 2

01
4

 •
C

ap
ito

l C
or

rid
or

 V
is

io
n 

Pl
an

, 2
01

4

 •
C

C
TA

 F
er

ry
 F

ea
si

bi
lit

y 
St

ud
y,

 2
01

4

 •
C

C
TA

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

 S
tu

dy
, 2

00
1

 •
M

TC
 I-

80
 C

or
rid

or
 S

tu
dy

, 1
99

6

 •
M

TC
 R

eg
io

na
l R

ai
l P

la
n,

 2
00

7

 •
W

es
tC

AT
 S

ho
rt-

Ra
ng

e 
Tr

an
si

t P
la

n,
 2

01
3

 •
W

C
C

TA
C

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

ai
n 

St
at

io
n 

Si
te

 E
va

lu
at

io
n,

 19
99

Th
es

e 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 w
er

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 fo

r t
hi

s 
st

ud
y 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

ci
tie

s 
of

 E
l C

er
rit

o,
 H

er
cu

le
s,

 P
in

ol
e,

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
, a

nd
 R

ic
hm

on
d.

 T
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

co
lle

ct
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 re

vi
ew

 w
as

 u
se

d 
to

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
st

ud
y’

s 
ta

sk
s.

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

DR
AF

T

7B-22



O
v

e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

B
u

s 
R

a
p

id
 T

ra
n

si
t 

(B
R

T
) 

F
e

a
tu

re
s

A 
gr

ea
t a

dv
an

ta
ge

 o
f B

RT
 is

 it
s 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
su

ita
bi

lit
y 

fo
r i

nc
re

m
en

ta
l i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
 C

ha
ng

es
 c

an
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
qu

ic
kl

y 
in

 th
e 

sh
or

t- 
an

d 
m

ed
iu

m
-te

rm
 a

nd
 u

su
al

ly
 

w
ith

ou
t i

nt
er

fe
rin

g 
w

ith
 c

ur
re

nt
 b

us
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

.

Th
e 

el
em

en
ts

 th
at

 c
om

pr
is

e 
BR

T 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 fo

rm
 a

 c
on

tin
uu

m
 th

at
 ra

ng
e 

fro
m

 R
ap

id
 B

us
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 h
ig

h-
le

ve
l B

RT
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. B

ot
h 

Ra
pi

d 
Bu

s 
an

d 
hi

gh
-le

ve
l B

RT
 

co
nc

ep
ts

 in
cl

ud
e 

op
er

at
io

na
l a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
fa

ci
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

In
 th

is
 s

tu
dy

, R
ap

id
 B

us
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

re
 d

efi
ne

d 
as

:

TR
A

N
SI

T 
SI

G
N

A
L 

PR
IO

RI
TY

 w
hi

ch
 g

iv
es

 fa
vo

ra
bl

e 
tre

at
m

en
t t

o 
bu

se
s 

al
on

g 
si

gn
al

iz
ed

 a
rt

er
ia

ls
. F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 tr
affi

c 
si

gn
al

s 
ca

n 
be

 p
ro

gr
am

m
ed

 to
 re

du
ce

 s
to

pp
ed

 d
el

ay
 

fo
r b

us
es

 b
y 

off
er

in
g 

ex
te

nd
ed

 g
re

en
 li

gh
t t

im
e,

 s
ho

rt
en

ed
 re

d 
lig

ht
 ti

m
e,

 o
r p

os
si

bl
y 

a 
se

pa
ra

te
 b

us
-o

nl
y 

si
gn

al
 p

ha
se

.

Q
U

EU
E 

JU
M

PS
 a

t c
rit

ic
al

 in
te

rs
ec

tio
ns

, w
he

re
 th

e 
bu

s 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
a 

sh
or

t, 
se

pa
ra

te
 la

ne
 o

n 
ap

pr
oa

ch
in

g 
a 

si
gn

al
iz

ed
 in

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
is

 g
iv

en
 a

n 
ea

rly
 g

re
en

 to
 a

dv
an

ce
 

ah
ea

d 
of

 o
th

er
 tr

affi
c 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

in
te

rs
ec

tio
n.

O
FF

-B
O

A
RD

 F
A

RE
 P

AY
M

EN
T 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
w

ith
 p

ro
of

-o
f-p

ay
m

en
t f

ar
e 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t, 

w
hi

ch
 a

llo
w

s 
bu

s 
bo

ar
di

ng
 a

nd
 a

lig
ht

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
y 

do
or

.

PA
SS

EN
G

ER
 S

TO
PS

 w
ith

 a
m

en
iti

es
, s

uc
h 

as
 c

an
op

ie
s,

 re
al

-ti
m

e 
bu

s 
ar

riv
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 s
ec

ur
ity

 li
gh

tin
g,

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ki
os

ks
. 

In
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 c
at

eg
or

y 
of

 fu
ll 

B
RT

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, a
ll 

of
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

:

D
ED

IC
AT

ED
 B

U
S 

LA
N

ES
 e

ith
er

 s
id

e-
ru

nn
in

g 
or

 m
ed

ia
n-

ru
nn

in
g,

 to
 b

e 
us

ed
 b

y 
tra

ns
it 

bu
se

s 
an

d 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

ve
hi

cl
es

 (i
.e

., 
fir

e 
an

d 
po

lic
e)

 o
nl

y.

LE
V

EL
 B

O
A

RD
IN

G
 w

he
re

 b
us

 s
to

ps
/s

ta
tio

ns
 a

re
 ra

is
ed

 to
 a

t o
r j

us
t b

el
ow

 th
e 

bu
s’

s 
flo

or
 h

ei
gh

t, 
he

lp
s 

rid
er

s 
ge

t o
n 

an
d 

off
 th

e 
bu

s 
m

or
e 

ea
si

ly
, e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 p
as

se
ng

er
s 

w
ith

 p
ar

ce
ls

, s
tro

lle
rs

, o
r l

ug
ga

ge
. L

ev
el

 b
oa

rd
in

g 
al

so
 

el
im

in
at

es
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r w
he

el
ch

ai
r a

cc
es

s 
ra

m
ps

 o
r l

ift
s,

 a
s 

it 
br

id
ge

s 
th

e 
ho

riz
on

ta
l g

ap
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

bu
s 

an
d 

cu
rb

 
or

 p
la

tfo
rm

.

EX
TE

N
D

ED
 B

U
S 

ST
O

PS
/S

TA
TI

O
N

S 
fo

r s
id

e-
ru

nn
in

g 
BR

T 
bu

se
s 

(b
us

es
 o

pe
ra

te
 in

 th
e 

la
ne

 n
ex

t t
o 

th
e 

cu
rb

 o
r 

pa
rk

in
g 

la
ne

) t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

de
di

ca
te

d 
bo

ar
di

ng
 a

nd
 a

lig
ht

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r b
us

 p
as

se
ng

er
s 

se
pa

ra
te

 fr
om

 s
id

ew
al

k 
tra

ffi
c.

R
A

IS
ED

 B
U

S 
ST

AT
IO

N
S 

fo
r m

ed
ia

n-
ru

nn
in

g 
BR

T 
co

nfi
gu

ra
tio

ns
 s

ep
ar

at
ed

 fr
om

 m
ix

ed
-fl

ow
 tr

affi
c 

la
ne

s 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 s
ta

tio
ns

 fr
om

 th
e 

si
de

w
al

k 
(th

ro
ug

h 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

si
gn

al
s,

 fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e)

.

O
TH

ER
 E

N
H

A
N

C
EM

EN
TS

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
hi

gh
-a

m
en

ity
 s

ta
tio

ns
 w

ith
 s

ea
tin

g,
 li

gh
tin

g,
 la

nd
sc

ap
in

g,
 p

ub
lic

 a
rt

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 

fe
at

ur
es

.

 W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
21

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

H
ig

h-
am

en
ity

 B
RT

 s
ta

tio
ns

 c
an

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
el

em
en

ts
, a

s 
sh

ow
n 

in
 th

is
 p

ho
to

 o
f L

as
 V

eg
as

’ M
ax

 
BR

T 
sy

st
em

: l
an

ds
ca

pi
ng

, l
ev

el
 b

oa
rd

in
g,

 ti
ck

et
 v

en
di

ng
 

m
ac

hi
ne

s,
 d

is
tin

ct
iv

e 
st

at
io

n,
 m

ap
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r w
ay

fin
di

ng
 

to
ol

s,
 tr

as
h 

ca
n,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
s.

 
So

ur
ce

: S
tr

ee
ts

bl
og

 U
SA

DR
AF

T

7B-23



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
22

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

5.
1.

2 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 In

iti
al

 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
Th

e 
in

iti
al

 s
cr

ee
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 e
ig

ht
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 w
as

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 fo

r 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
st

ud
y’

s 
go

al
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

da
ta

-d
riv

en
 

m
ar

ke
t a

na
ly

si
s,

 m
uc

h 
of

 th
is

 fi
rs

t-s
te

p 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

w
as

 q
ua

lit
at

iv
e 

in
 n

at
ur

e;
 

dr
aw

in
g 

fro
m

 k
no

w
le

dg
e 

of
 th

e 
st

ud
y 

ar
ea

, i
np

ut
 fr

om
 th

e 
ad

vi
so

ry
 g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

, a
nd

 p
rio

r s
tu

di
es

. B
ot

h 
qu

al
ita

tiv
e 

an
d 

qu
an

tit
at

iv
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
w

er
e 

us
ed

 to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

, s
im

ila
r t

o 
th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 

us
ed

 fo
r f

ed
er

al
 N

ew
 S

ta
rt

s 
fu

nd
in

g 
un

de
r t

he
 C

ap
ita

l I
nv

es
tm

en
t G

ra
nt

 
pr

og
ra

m
. S

in
ce

 W
C

C
TA

C
 o

r t
he

 tr
an

si
t 

ag
en

ci
es

 m
ay

 p
ur

su
e 

fe
de

ra
l f

un
di

ng
 in

 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

, p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
as

 m
ea

su
re

d 
ag

ai
ns

t F
ed

er
al

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
(F

TA
) c

rit
er

ia
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
pr

oj
ec

t g
oa

ls
 a

nd
 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
.20

To
 ra

te
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f e
ac

h 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
a 

fiv
e-

po
in

t s
ca

le
 w

as
 u

se
d;

 ra
tin

g 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 fr
om

 lo
w

 to
 h

ig
h,

 w
ith

 1 
be

in
g 

lo
w

-p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

an
d 

5 
be

in
g 

hi
gh

-
pe

rfo
rm

in
g.

 T
hi

s 
is

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 ra
tin

g 
sy

st
em

 u
se

d 
by

 F
TA

, w
hi

ch
 ra

nk
s 

lo
w

, m
ed

iu
m

-lo
w

, 
m

ed
iu

m
, m

ed
iu

m
-h

ig
h,

 a
nd

 h
ig

h.
 T

he
 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
cr

ite
ria

 a
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

de
riv

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
st

ud
y’

s 
go

al
 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 a

re
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 T
ab

le
 5

-2
. 

Th
e 

bu
s 

an
d 

BA
RT

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 h
ad

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 le

ve
ls

 o
f t

he
 e

ig
ht

; 
th

ou
gh

 e
ac

h 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
sc

or
es

 w
el

l i
n 

so
m

e 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

po
or

 in
 o

th
er

s.
 T

he
 b

us
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 a
re

 c
os

t c
om

pe
tit

iv
e 

an
d 

ca
pt

ur
e 

th
e 

gr
ea

te
st

 n
um

be
r o

f p
ot

en
tia

l 

rid
er

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 ½

 m
ile

 o
f t

he
 s

ta
tio

ns
 

or
 s

to
ps

. T
he

 B
RT

 o
pt

io
ns

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
e 

gr
ea

te
st

 le
ve

l o
f s

er
vi

ce
 to

 lo
w

 in
co

m
e 

rid
er

s 
an

d 
to

 P
D

A
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

go
od

 
tra

ns
it 

co
nn

ec
tio

ns
 to

 o
th

er
 tr

an
si

t 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

an
d 

de
st

in
at

io
ns

 (s
ee

 F
ig

ur
e 

5-
1)

. T
he

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
re

lia
bl

e 
tra

ns
it 

se
rv

ic
e 

as
 a

n 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
to

 d
riv

in
g 

on
 th

e 
I-8

0 
co

rr
id

or
. E

xp
re

ss
 B

us
 s

er
vi

ce
, 

lik
e 

BR
T,

 is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 lo
ca

l p
la

ns
 

an
d 

ha
s 

po
si

tiv
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l b
en

efi
ts

. 
Bo

th
 E

xp
re

ss
 B

us
 a

nd
 B

RT
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 

ca
n 

be
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

qu
ic

kl
y 

an
d 

ar
e 

sc
al

ab
le

, t
ho

ug
h 

th
e 

sh
or

t 
BR

T 
tri

p 
le

ng
th

s 
do

 n
ot

 o
ffe

r t
he

 s
am

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 V

M
T 

th
at

 th
e 

lo
ng

er
 tr

ip
s 

on
 B

A
RT

 a
nd

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 d

o.
 E

xp
re

ss
 B

us
 h

as
 a

 h
ig

h 
le

ve
l o

f p
ub

lic
 s

up
po

rt
. 

Fo
r l

on
ge

r-t
er

m
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
, t

he
 B

A
RT

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 s

co
re

d 
hi

gh
er

 th
an

 th
e 

co
m

m
ut

er
 ra

il 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
, d

es
pi

te
 th

ei
r 

hi
gh

er
 c

os
ts

. T
he

 B
A

RT
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 

pe
rfo

rm
ed

 b
et

te
r o

r c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

to
 

th
e 

co
m

m
ut

er
 ra

il 
op

tio
ns

 in
 a

lm
os

t 
ev

er
y 

ca
te

go
ry

 e
xc

ep
t f

or
 c

os
ts

 a
nd

 
ris

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 s

ea
 le

ve
l r

is
e.

 
Th

e 
BA

RT
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 a

re
 b

y 
fa

r t
he

 
m

os
t e

xp
en

si
ve

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t g

iv
en

 th
e 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

to
po

gr
ap

hy
 o

f t
he

 s
tu

dy
 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 le
ve

l o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

bu
t t

he
y 

pe
rfo

rm
 w

el
l i

n 
te

rm
s 

of
 th

ei
r 

tra
ve

l t
im

e 
an

d 
re

lia
bi

lit
y,

 h
ig

h 
le

ve
l o

f 
co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 to
 re

gi
on

al
 d

es
tin

at
io

ns
, a

nd
 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 re
du

ci
ng

 V
M

T.
 D

es
pi

te
 it

s 
hi

gh
 c

os
t, 

BA
RT

 a
ls

o 
re

ce
iv

es
 a

 h
ig

h 
le

ve
l 

of
 p

ub
lic

 s
up

po
rt

.

W
hi

le
 th

is
 in

iti
al

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
cu

se
d 

on
 h

ow
 th

e 
fu

lly
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 w

ou
ld

 p
er

fo
rm

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

st
ud

y’
s 

ad
op

te
d 

go
al

s 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

, 
it 

be
ca

m
e 

cl
ea

r t
ha

t a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 a
ls

o 
ha

ve
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 p
os

iti
ve

 
re

su
lts

 w
ith

 in
cr

em
en

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. 
Th

is
 c

on
ce

pt
 w

as
 c

ar
rie

d 
fo

rw
ar

d 
as

 
th

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 w

er
e 

na
rr

ow
ed

 a
nd

 
re

fin
ed

. T
he

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

, 
a 

de
ta

ile
d 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
ex

pl
ai

ni
ng

 h
ow

 
ea

ch
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
w

as
 e

va
lu

at
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 
th

e 
ad

op
te

d 
go

al
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 fo

r t
he

 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
an

d 
th

e 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

re
su

lts
 a

re
 

fu
lly

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 in

 th
e 

st
ud

y’
s 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l 
M

em
or

an
du

m
 #

10
: P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

an
d 

Sc
re

en
in

g.

At
 th

e 
co

nc
lu

si
on

 o
f t

he
 in

iti
al

 s
cr

ee
ni

ng
 

pr
oc

es
s 

th
e 

W
C

C
TA

C
 B

oa
rd

 v
ot

ed
 to

 
ca

rr
y 

fiv
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 fo
rw

ar
d 

fo
r f

ur
th

er
 

re
fin

em
en

t a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

io
n.

 A
ll 

th
re

e 
bu

s 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
; s

ho
rt

 a
nd

 m
id

-te
rm

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 c
om

m
ut

er
 ra

il 
se

rv
ic

e;
 

an
d 

a 
BA

RT
 e

xt
en

si
on

 fr
om

 th
e 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
St

at
io

n 
w

er
e 

ad
va

nc
ed

. T
he

 B
N

SF
 

co
rr

id
or

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 th
e 

BA
RT

 
ex

te
ns

io
ns

 fr
om

 E
l C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
 w

er
e 

dr
op

pe
d 

fro
m

 fu
rt

he
r c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n.

W
H

AT
 A

RE
 S

C
A

LA
B

LE
 

IM
PR

O
V

EM
EN

TS
?

Sc
al

ab
le

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 th
os

e 
th

at
 

ca
n 

be
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
in

cr
em

en
ta

lly
 

w
ith

 e
ac

h 
ne

w
 a

dd
iti

on
, a

dd
in

g 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t u
til

ity
. S

om
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
BA

RT
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
, m

us
t b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
in

 th
e 

w
ho

le
 to

 h
av

e 
be

ne
fit

s.

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

DR
AF

T

7B-24



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
23

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

Ta
bl

e 
5-

2:
 E

va
lu

at
io

n 
C

rit
er

ia
 a

nd
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r E

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 In
iti

al
 A

lte
rn

at
iv

es

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff,

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

6

St
ud

y 
G

oa
ls

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

C
rit

er
ia

In
cr

ea
se

 tr
an

si
t r

id
er

sh
ip

Im
pr

ov
e 

hi
gh

-c
ap

ac
ity

 tr
an

si
t s

er
vi

ce
, t

ra
ve

l t
im

es
, c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
Tr

av
el

 ti
m

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t

Tr
av

el
 ti

m
e 

re
lia

bi
lit

y

Im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 tr
an

si
t h

ub
s

Re
gi

on
al

 tr
an

si
t c

en
te

rs
 s

er
ve

d

In
cr

ea
se

 to
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f t
ra

ns
it 

tri
ps

Tr
an

si
t m

ar
ke

t p
ot

en
tia

l

Im
pr

ov
e 

tr
an

si
t c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
C

on
ne

ct
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 to

 re
gi

on
al

 tr
an

si
t c

en
te

rs
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 h
ub

s
Re

gi
on

al
 tr

an
si

t c
en

te
rs

 s
er

ve
d

Pr
ov

id
e 

us
er

-fr
ie

nd
ly

 re
gi

on
al

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l t
ra

ns
it 

co
nn

ec
tio

ns
Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 

Ex
pa

nd
 tr

an
si

t s
er

vi
ce

 to
 n

ew
 

an
d 

un
de

r-
se

rv
ed

 m
ar

ke
ts

M
at

ch
 tr

an
si

t i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

ith
 u

nm
et

 n
ee

ds
 in

 a
ll 

m
ar

ke
ts

Se
rv

ic
e 

to
 lo

w
-in

co
m

e 
ar

ea
s

Se
rv

ic
e 

to
 m

ar
ke

ts
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 la
ck

in
g 

m
aj

or
 tr

an
si

t c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

Pr
ot

ec
t a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

hi
gh

 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife

Av
oi

d 
im

pa
ct

s 
to

 n
at

ur
al

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l r
es

ou
rc

es
Po

te
nt

ia
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
s

Im
pr

ov
e 

ai
r q

ua
lit

y;
 re

du
ce

 g
re

en
ho

us
e 

ga
s 

em
is

si
on

s
A

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 g
re

en
ho

us
e 

ga
s 

im
pa

ct
s

Re
du

ce
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

en
er

gy
 d

em
an

d
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

en
er

gy
 u

se

C
on

si
de

r r
is

ks
 o

f s
ea

 le
ve

l r
is

e 
an

d 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

Av
oi

da
nc

e 
of

 lo
w

-ly
in

g 
ar

ea
s

Be
 c

om
pa

tib
le

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l p
la

ns
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

ie
s

Po
lic

ie
s 

in
 lo

ca
l j

ur
is

di
ct

io
ns

’ g
en

er
al

 p
la

ns

Su
pp

or
t s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 u

rb
an

 
gr

ow
th

Su
pp

or
t e

co
no

m
ic

 a
nd

 tr
an

si
t o

rie
nt

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

PD
A

s 
se

rv
ed

Su
pp

or
t c

om
pa

ct
, m

ix
ed

-u
se

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

Av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

ty
pe

 o
f d

ev
el

op
ab

le
 la

nd
 s

er
ve

d 
by

 tr
an

si
t

Pr
ov

id
e 

eq
ui

ta
bl

e 
ac

ce
ss

 fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

Im
pr

ov
e 

tra
ns

it 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 jo

bs
, h

ou
si

ng
, e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
re

so
ur

ce
s,

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 fo

r t
ra

ns
it 

de
pe

nd
en

ts
Po

pu
la

tio
n,

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
nd

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

w
ith

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 (o

r a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

fro
m

) t
ra

ns
it 

st
at

io
ns

Pr
es

er
ve

 m
ob

ili
ty

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
go

od
s 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 c

or
rid

or
C

on
ge

st
io

n 
re

lie
f b

as
ed

 o
n 

es
tim

at
ed

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 V
M

T

M
ak

e 
effi

ci
en

t u
se

 o
f p

ub
lic

 
fu

nd
s

Id
en

tif
y 

co
st

-e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts

O
rd

er
 o

f m
ag

ni
tu

de
 c

ap
ita

l c
os

ts
 re

la
tiv

e 
rid

er
sh

ip
 (c

os
t/r

id
er

)

O
rd

er
 o

f m
ag

ni
tu

de
 O

&M
 c

os
ts

 re
la

tiv
e 

to
 ri

de
rs

hi
p 

po
te

nt
ia

l

A
nn

ua
liz

ed
 c

ap
ita

l a
nd

 O
&M

 c
os

ts
 p

er
 ri

de
r

Se
ek

 in
pu

t o
n 

tra
ns

it 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
Pu

bl
ic

 a
nd

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 s
up

po
rt

 fo
r p

ro
po

se
d 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

DR
AF

T

7B-25



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
24

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

W
H

AT
 IS

 A
 P

RI
O

RI
TY

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
A

RE
A?

Pr
io

rit
y 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t A
re

as
 (P

D
A

s)
 

ar
e 

pl
ac

es
 id

en
tifi

ed
 b

y 
Ba

y 
A

re
a 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
s 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r i
nv

es
tm

en
t, 

ne
w

 h
om

es
, a

nd
 jo

b 
gr

ow
th

. A
lo

ng
 

w
ith

 P
rio

rit
y 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
as

, 
PD

A
s 

ar
e 

th
e 

fo
un

da
tio

n 
of

 P
la

n 
Ba

y 
A

re
a,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 th
e 

re
gi

on
’s

 lo
ng

-r
an

ge
 

tra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n,
 la

nd
 u

se
, a

nd
 h

ou
si

ng
 

st
ra

te
gy

 th
ro

ug
h 

20
40

. 

To
 b

ec
om

e 
a 

PD
A

, a
n 

ar
ea

 m
us

t b
e:

 
1) 

w
ith

in
 a

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

; 2
) 

w
ith

in
 w

al
ki

ng
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

of
 fr

eq
ue

nt
 

tra
ns

it 
se

rv
ic

e;
 3

) d
es

ig
na

te
d 

fo
r m

or
e 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 a

 lo
ca

lly
 a

do
pt

ed
 p

la
n 

or
 

id
en

tifi
ed

 b
y 

a 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t f
or

 
fu

tu
re

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
po

te
nt

ia
l g

ro
w

th
; 

an
d 

4)
 n

om
in

at
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

ad
op

te
d 

by
 a

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

or
 C

ou
nt

y 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 S

up
er

vi
so

rs
.

Pl
an

 B
ay

 A
re

a 
is

 th
e 

ni
ne

-c
ou

nt
y 

re
gi

on
’s

 fi
rs

t l
on

g-
ra

ng
e 

pl
an

 to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f C

al
ifo

rn
ia

’s
 

Se
na

te
 B

ill
 3

75
 (2

00
8)

, w
hi

ch
 c

al
ls

 o
n 

th
e 

st
at

e’
s 

18
 m

et
ro

po
lit

an
 a

re
as

 to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
 

St
ra

te
gy

. T
he

 s
tra

te
gy

 is
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
fu

tu
re

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

gr
ow

th
 a

nd
 re

du
ce

 g
re

en
ho

us
e 

ga
s 

em
is

si
on

s 
fro

m
 c

ar
s 

an
d 

lig
ht

 tr
uc

ks
.

Th
e 

Pr
io

rit
y 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t A
re

as
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
st

ud
y 

ar
ea

 a
re

 il
lu

st
ra

te
d 

in
 F

ig
ur

e 
5-

1.

Fi
gu

re
 5

-1
: P

rio
rit

y 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

re
as

So
ur

ce
: P

la
n 

Ba
y 

A
re

a,
 P

rio
rit

y 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

re
a 

Sh
ow

ca
se

 (2
01

0)
, h

ttp
://

gi
s.

ab
ag

.c
a.

go
v/

w
eb

si
te

/P
D

A
Sh

ow
ca

se
/

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

DR
AF

T

7B-26



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
25

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

5.
2 

Re
fin

ed
 A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 

5.
2.

1 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f R

efi
ne

d 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 a

nd
 C

os
ts

U
po

n 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

in
iti

al
 e

va
lu

at
io

n,
 

th
e 

W
C

C
TA

C
 B

oa
rd

 v
ot

ed
 to

 a
dv

an
ce

 
fiv

e 
of

 th
e 

ei
gh

t H
C

T 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

tu
dy

 (s
ee

 F
ig

ur
e 

5-
2)

. F
ur

th
er

 
st

ud
y 

of
 E

xp
re

ss
 B

us
 o

n 
I-5

80
, c

om
m

ut
er

 
ra

il 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
BN

SF
 c

or
rid

or
, 

an
d 

a 
BA

RT
 e

xt
en

si
on

 fr
om

 th
e 

El
 C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
 S

ta
tio

n 
w

er
e 

dr
op

pe
d 

at
 

th
is

 s
ta

ge
. T

he
 G

ol
de

n 
G

at
e 

bu
s 

pi
lo

t 
pr

og
ra

m
 o

n 
I-5

80
 th

at
 c

on
ne

ct
ed

 th
e 

Sa
n 

Ra
fa

el
 T

ra
ns

it 
C

en
te

r w
ith

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y,

 
A

lb
an

y,
 B

er
ke

le
y,

 a
nd

 E
m

er
yv

ill
e 

w
as

 
di

sc
on

tin
ue

d 
du

e 
to

 lo
w

 ri
de

rs
hi

p 
an

d 
th

er
e 

w
as

 n
ot

 a
 s

tro
ng

 c
on

st
itu

en
cy

 fo
r 

th
is

 e
le

m
en

t o
f t

he
 E

xp
re

ss
 B

us
 p

ro
je

ct
 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y.
 T

he
 B

N
SF

 c
or

rid
or

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
pe

rfo
rm

ed
 m

od
er

at
el

y 
to

 
po

or
ly

 in
 m

os
t c

at
eg

or
ie

s 
an

d 
w

as
 n

ot
 

se
en

 a
s 

a 
vi

ab
le

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 o
pt

io
n 

fo
r 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
re

lie
f i

n 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y.
 T

he
 

BA
RT

 e
xt

en
si

on
 n

or
th

 fr
om

 th
e 

El
 C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
 s

ta
tio

n 
w

as
 d

ro
pp

ed
 d

ue
 to

 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 is

ol
at

in
g 

th
e 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
BA

RT
 s

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
sp

lit
 s

er
vi

ce
 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 s

er
ve

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

st
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
to

 H
er

cu
le

s 
in

 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

.

Th
e 

fiv
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 w
er

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

re
fin

ed
 in

 2
01

6 
w

ith
 

in
pu

t f
ro

m
 th

e 
St

ud
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

G
ro

up
 a

nd
 th

e 
W

C
C

TA
C

 B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l A
dv

is
or

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 fr
om

 a
 ro

un
d 

of
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

in
 s

pr
in

g 
20

16
.22

  
At

 th
is

 ti
m

e,
 th

e 
BA

RT
 e

xt
en

si
on

 fr
om

 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

ha
s 

be
en

 fu
rt

he
r r

efi
ne

d 
in

to
 

tw
o 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

: A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

6A
 B

A
RT

 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

fro
m

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
vi

a 
Ru

m
ril

l 
Bo

ul
ev

ar
d 

an
d 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

6B
 B

AR
T 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
fro

m
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

vi
a 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
. T

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l t

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
ea

rly
 re

tu
rn

s 
on

 tr
an

si
t i

nv
es

tm
en

t 
be

ca
m

e 
a 

ke
y 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

re
fin

em
en

t o
f a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
. T

o 
ill

us
tra

te
 

ho
w

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
co

ul
d 

be
 in

cr
em

en
ta

lly
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

ov
er

 ti
m

e,
 th

e 
el

em
en

ts
 

of
 e

ac
h 

pr
oj

ec
t w

er
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

riz
ed

 a
s 

be
in

g 
sh

or
t-t

er
m

, m
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

, o
r l

on
g-

te
rm

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

. C
os

ts
 a

nd
 ri

de
rs

hi
p 

fo
re

ca
st

s 
w

er
e 

si
m

ila
rly

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
iz

ed
. 

Th
is

 w
as

 n
ot

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 c

on
st

ra
in

 
W

C
C

TA
C

, l
oc

al
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

ns
, o

r t
ra

ns
it 

ag
en

ci
es

 in
 th

ei
r i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
es

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l p

ro
je

ct
s,

 b
ut

 ra
th

er
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
so

m
e 

co
nt

ex
t f

or
 h

ow
 in

cr
em

en
ta

l 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

m
ig

ht
 b

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
ed

.

Th
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 a
re

 b
rie

fly
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 
he

re
, b

ut
 a

 m
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

ca
n 

be
 fo

un
d 

in
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 M
em

or
an

du
m

 #
11

, 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 R

efi
ne

m
en

t.23

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

E
A

lt 
1:

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

 o
n 

I-8
0

Y
ES

N
O

A
lt 

2:
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 / 
M

ac
do

na
ld

 B
R

T

A
lt 

3:
 2

3r
d 

St
re

et
 B

RT

A
lt 

4:
 U

PR
R

 C
om

m
ut

er
 R

ai
l (

sh
or

t +
 M

id
-R

an
ge

 O
pt

io
ns

)

A
lt 

5:
 B

N
SF

 C
om

m
ut

er
 R

ai
l

A
lt 

6:
 B

A
RT

 E
xt

en
si

on
 fr

om
 R

ic
hm

on
d

A
lt 

7A
: B

A
RT

 E
xt

en
si

on
 fr

om
 E

l C
er

rit
o 

de
l N

or
te

A
lt 

7B
: B

A
RT

 D
M

U
 E

xt
en

si
on

 fr
om

 E
l C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te

Fi
gu

re
 5

-2
: A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 A

dv
an

ce
d 

fo
r F

ur
th

er
 S

tu
dy

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
B

oa
rd

 A
ct

io
n

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

TI
M

E 
FR

A
M

E 
FO

R 
IM

PR
O

V
EM

EN
TS

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

<5
 Y

EA
RS

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

5 
- 1

5 
YE

A
RS

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

>1
5 

YE
A

RS

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

DR
AF

T

7B-27



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
26

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

1:
 E

xp
re

ss
 B

us
 o

n 
I-8

0
Th

e 
Ex

pr
es

s 
Bu

s 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
in

cl
ud

es
 

fre
ew

ay
-fl

ye
r e

xp
re

ss
 s

er
vi

ce
 o

n 
I-8

0 
op

er
at

in
g 

fro
m

 th
e 

H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r a

t t
he

 I-
80

/S
ta

te
 R

ou
te

 
4 

in
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

so
ut

h 
to

 B
er

ke
le

y,
 

Em
er

yv
ill

e,
 a

nd
 O

ak
la

nd
 w

ith
 

in
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 s
to

ps
 a

t t
he

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
C

en
te

r, 
an

d 
a 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
I-8

0/
M

ac
do

na
ld

 A
ve

nu
e 

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s/

BR
T 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

 (s
ee

 F
ig

ur
e 

5-
3)

. 
In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 th
is

 n
ew

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 
se

rv
ic

e 
fre

qu
en

cy
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

to
 S

an
 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
co

ul
d 

oc
cu

r i
n 

th
e 

sh
or

t-t
er

m
, 

w
ith

 p
ea

k 
pe

rio
d 

fre
qu

en
ci

es
 o

f 1
0 

to
 

12
 m

in
ut

es
, w

hi
le

 th
e 

fre
ew

ay
 ra

m
p 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
ou

ld
 o

cc
ur

 in
 th

e 
lo

ng
-

te
rm

.

Bu
s 

ro
ut

es
 in

 B
er

ke
le

y,
 E

m
er

yv
ill

e,
 

an
d 

O
ak

la
nd

 a
re

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 F

ig
ur

e 
5-

4.
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

lo
ng

 m
aj

or
 

tra
ns

it 
co

rr
id

or
s 

an
d 

lin
k 

to
 m

aj
or

 a
ct

iv
ity

 

ce
nt

er
s 

an
d 

BA
RT

 s
ta

tio
ns

. E
xp

an
si

on
 

of
 p

ar
k-

an
d-

rid
e 

lo
ts

 a
nd

 fr
ee

w
ay

 
ra

m
p 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 o

cc
ur

 in
 th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 to

 lo
ng

-te
rm

. F
re

ew
ay

 ra
m

p 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 m
ak

e 
it 

ea
si

er
 fo

r b
us

es
 

to
 m

ov
e 

in
 a

nd
 o

ut
 o

f t
he

 h
ig

h 
oc

cu
pa

nc
y 

ve
hi

cl
e 

(H
O

V
) l

an
es

 in
 th

e 
ce

nt
er

 o
f t

he
 

fre
ew

ay
, a

re
 p

ro
po

se
d 

at
 th

e 
I-8

0/
St

at
e 

Ro
ut

e 
4 

in
te

rc
ha

ng
e,

 o
n 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
si

de
 o

f 
th

e 
I-8

0/
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 in
te

rc
ha

ng
e,

 
an

d 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 a
t t

he
 I-

80
/M

ac
do

na
ld

 
Av

en
ue

 in
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

(s
ee

 F
ig

ur
e 

5-
5 

an
d 

Fi
gu

re
 5

-6
).

Ti
m

e 
H

or
iz

on
C

ap
ita

l C
os

t (
20

17
 $

)

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$1

1 m

In
cr

ea
se

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

s 
fre

qu
en

cy
 o

n 
W

es
tC

AT
 E

xp
re

ss
 a

nd
 T

ra
ns

ba
y 

ro
ut

es

N
ew

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 B

er
ke

le
y,

 O
ak

la
nd

, E
m

er
yv

ill
e

Tr
an

si
t p

rio
rit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, s

uc
h 

as
 s

ig
na

l p
rio

rit
y 

an
d 

qu
eu

e 
ju

m
ps

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$9
0 

m

Bu
s 

st
op

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 –
 B

er
kl

ey
, E

m
er

yv
ill

e,
 O

ak
la

nd

Ex
pa

nd
ed

 p
ar

ki
ng

 a
t R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 a
nd

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
rs

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$1
41

 m

Fr
ee

w
ay

 ra
m

p 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t I
-8

0/
M

ac
do

na
ld

, R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
, a

nd
 H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

rs

N
ew

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

-B
RT

 tr
an

si
t c

en
te

r a
t I

-8
0/

M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

e

To
ta

l
$2

42
 m

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff 

w
ith

 M
 L

ee
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
KI

m
le

y-
H

or
n,

 2
01

7

Fi
gu

re
 5

-3
: R

efi
ne

d 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
1:

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

 S
er

vi
ce

 –
 S

er
vi

ce
 in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y

So
ur

ce
: K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff,
 2

01
6

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

DR
AF

T

7B-28



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
27

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

Fi
gu

re
 5

-4
: A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
1:

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

 S
er

vi
ce

 –
 S

er
vi

ce
 in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y

So
ur

ce
: K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff,
 2

01
6

So
ur

ce
: K

im
le

y-
H

or
n,

 2
01

6

So
ur

ce
: K

im
le

y-
H

or
n,

 2
01

6

Fi
gu

re
 5

-5
: O

pt
io

n 
fo

r R
am

p 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r

Fi
gu

re
 5

-6
: O

pt
io

n 
fo

r R
am

p 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
C

en
te

r

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

DR
AF

T

7B-29



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
28

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

2:
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

/M
ac

do
na

ld
 B

RT
Th

e 
BR

T 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 o

n 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

an
d 

M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

es
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
e 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

72
R 

Ra
pi

d 
Bu

s 
th

at
 ru

n 
al

on
g 

th
es

e 
tw

o 
st

re
et

s.
 T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ou
ld

 in
tro

du
ce

 B
RT

 s
er

vi
ce

 fr
om

 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

O
ak

la
nd

 to
 th

e 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

C
en

te
r a

nd
 e

xt
en

d 
Ra

pi
d 

Bu
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it 
C

en
te

r n
or

th
 to

 th
e 

H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t 
C

en
te

r (
se

e 
Fi

gu
re

 5
-7

). 

In
 th

e 
sh

or
t-t

er
m

, R
ap

id
 B

us
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
ex

te
nd

ed
 to

 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 w
ith

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 C

on
tra

 
C

os
ta

 C
ol

le
ge

 a
nd

 H
ill

to
p 

M
al

l a
nd

 tr
an

si
t 

pr
io

rit
y 

tre
at

m
en

ts
 in

tro
du

ce
d 

al
on

g 
th

e 
co

rr
id

or
. E

xt
en

di
ng

 R
ap

id
 B

us
 tr

ea
tm

en
ts

 
no

rt
h 

to
 th

e 
H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r a
nd

 
in

tro
du

ci
ng

 b
us

-o
nl

y 
la

ne
s 

on
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 
Av

en
ue

 fr
om

 E
l C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
 n

or
th

 to
 

23
rd

 S
tre

et
 a

nd
 o

n 
M

ac
do

na
ld

 A
ve

nu
e 

fro
m

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 w

es
t t

o 
23

rd
 S

tre
et

 c
ou

ld
 

oc
cu

r i
n 

th
e 

m
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

. L
on

g-
te

rm
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 in

cl
ud

e 
ex

te
nd

in
g 

bu
s-

on
ly

 la
ne

s 
on

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e 
to

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 a

nd
 R

ap
id

 B
us

 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 th
e 

H
er

cu
le

s 
RI

TC
. P

ar
k-

an
d-

rid
e 

lo
t e

xp
an

si
on

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

n 
Ex

pr
es

s 
Bu

s/
BR

T 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r a

t I
-8

0/
M

ac
do

na
ld

 A
ve

nu
e 

co
ul

d 
al

so
 o

cc
ur

 in
 

th
e 

m
ed

iu
m

 to
 lo

ng
-te

rm
.

BR
T 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 fl
ex

ib
le

, a
llo

w
in

g 
lo

ca
l j

ur
is

di
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 tr
an

si
t a

ge
nc

ie
s 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t a

 p
ro

gr
am

 th
at

 is
 th

e 
be

st
 

fit
 fo

r t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
tra

ns
it 

co
rr

id
or

 a
nd

 
to

 p
ha

se
 th

em
 in

 o
ve

r t
im

e 
as

 d
em

an
d 

gr
ow

s 
an

d 
fu

nd
in

g 
be

co
m

es
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

Fi
gu

re
 5

-7
: R

efi
ne

d 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
2:

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e/
M

ac
do

na
ld

 A
ve

nu
e 

B
RT

So
ur

ce
: K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff,
 2

01
6

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

Ti
m

e 
H

or
iz

on
C

ap
ita

l C
os

t (
20

17
 $

)

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$3

 m

Tr
an

si
t p

rio
rit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 s

uc
h 

as
 s

ig
na

l p
rio

rit
y 

an
d 

qu
eu

e 
ju

m
ps

Ex
te

nd
ed

 R
ap

id
 B

us
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$1
80

 m

Ex
te

nd
ed

 R
ap

id
 B

us
 s

er
vi

ce
 to

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r

Ex
pa

nd
ed

 p
ar

ki
ng

 a
t R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 a
nd

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
rs

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

en
ue

 b
us

-o
nl

y 
la

ne
s 

– 
El

 C
er

rit
o 

de
l N

or
te

 to
 2

3r
d 

St
re

et

M
ac

do
na

ld
 b

us
-o

nl
y 

la
ne

s 
– 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

en
ue

 to
 2

3r
d 

St
re

et

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$6
0 

m

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

en
ue

 b
us

-o
nl

y 
la

ne
s 

– 
23

rd
 S

tre
et

 to
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s-

BR
T 

tra
ns

it 
ce

nt
er

 a
t M

ac
do

na
ld

 A
ve

nu
e 

an
d 

I-8
0

Ex
te

nd
ed

 R
ap

id
 B

us
 s

er
vi

ce
 to

 R
IT

C

To
ta

l
$2

43
 m

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff 

w
ith

 M
 L

ee
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
KI

m
le

y-
H

or
n,

 2
01

7DR
AF

T

7B-30



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
29

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

3:
 2

3r
d 

St
re

et
 B

RT
Th

e 
23

rd
 S

tre
et

 B
RT

 is
 a

 n
or

th
-s

ou
th

 
ru

nn
in

g 
al

ig
nm

en
t t

ha
t s

er
ve

s 
th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Fo
rd

 P
oi

nt
 F

er
ry

 
Te

rm
in

al
 a

nd
 th

e 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Fi
el

d 
St

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

so
ut

h,
 ru

ns
 th

ro
ug

h 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
on

 2
3r

d 
St

re
et

, c
on

tin
ui

ng
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

C
ity

 o
f S

an
 P

ab
lo

’s
 b

us
in

es
s 

di
st

ric
t, 

w
he

re
 it

 tr
an

si
tio

ns
 to

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 

Av
en

ue
. C

on
tin

ui
ng

 n
or

th
 o

n 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
en

ue
, t

he
 B

RT
 w

ou
ld

 s
er

ve
 C

on
tra

 
C

os
ta

 C
ol

le
ge

, H
ill

to
p 

M
al

l, 
an

d 
th

e 
H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r (
se

e 
Fi

gu
re

 5
-8

).

In
 th

e 
sh

or
t-t

er
m

, t
ra

ns
it 

pr
io

rit
y 

tre
at

m
en

ts
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

as
 

Ra
pi

d 
Bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
al

on
g 

th
e 

co
rr

id
or

 
an

d 
a 

BR
T 

st
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
t t

he
 F

or
d 

Po
in

t F
er

ry
 T

er
m

in
al

. M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 m
ig

ht
 in

cl
ud

e 
bu

s-
on

ly
 

la
ne

s 
on

 2
3r

d 
St

re
et

 fr
om

 M
ac

do
na

ld
 

Av
en

ue
 to

 R
he

em
 A

ve
nu

e,
 B

RT
 s

ta
tio

ns
 

an
d 

ne
w

 v
eh

ic
le

s,
 a

nd
 e

xp
an

si
on

 o
f p

ar
k-

an
d-

rid
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
at

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 

an
d 

H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
rs

.

In
 th

e 
lo

ng
-te

rm
, b

us
-o

nl
y 

la
ne

s 
co

ul
d 

be
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
on

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e 
if 

st
re

et
 w

id
th

 a
llo

w
s)

 a
nd

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 

Av
en

ue
 n

or
th

 to
 H

ill
to

p 
M

al
l. 

Ra
pi

d 
Bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
co

ul
d 

al
so

 b
e 

ex
te

nd
ed

 to
 th

e 
RI

TC
 in

 H
er

cu
le

s.

Fi
gu

re
 5

-8
: R

efi
ne

d 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
3:

 2
3r

d 
St

re
et

 B
RT

So
ur

ce
: K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff,
 2

01
6

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

Ti
m

e 
H

or
iz

on
C

ap
ita

l C
os

t (
20

17
 $

)

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$1

7 
m

Tr
an

si
t p

rio
rit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, s

uc
h 

as
 s

ig
na

l p
rio

rit
y 

an
d 

qu
eu

e 
ju

m
ps

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 o
n 

23
rd

 S
tre

et
 fr

om
 M

ac
do

na
ld

 to
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

Fi
el

d 
St

at
io

n

BR
T 

st
at

io
n 

at
 F

or
d 

Po
in

t

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$9
9 

m

Ex
pa

nd
ed

 p
ar

ki
ng

 a
t R

ic
hm

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 a
nd

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
rs

Bu
s-

on
ly

 la
ne

s 
on

 2
3r

d 
St

re
et

 b
et

w
ee

n 
M

ac
do

na
ld

 a
nd

 R
he

em
 A

ve
nu

es

Ex
te

nd
ed

 R
ap

id
 B

us
 s

er
vi

ce
 to

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r

N
ew

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
(2

0 
bu

se
s)

BR
T 

st
at

io
ns

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$6
3 

m

M
ix

ed
 fl

ow
 a

nd
 b

us
-o

nl
y 

la
ne

s 
on

 2
3r

d/
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
en

ue
 fr

om
 R

he
em

 to
 H

ill
to

p 
M

al
l

Ex
te

nd
ed

 R
ap

id
 B

us
 s

er
vi

ce
 to

 R
IT

C

BR
T 

st
at

io
ns

To
ta

l
$1

79
 m

So
ur

ce
: K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff,
 2

01
6DR

AF
T

7B-31



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
30

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

4:
 C

om
m

ut
er

 R
ai

l F
ar

e 
Su

bs
id

y 
an

d 
RI

TC
Th

e 
C

om
m

ut
er

 R
ai

l A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

ha
s 

ev
ol

ve
d 

in
to

 tw
o 

se
pa

ra
te

 o
pt

io
ns

, 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 c

on
ce

rt
 

w
ith

 e
ac

h 
ot

he
r o

r i
nd

ep
en

de
nt

ly
. T

he
 

pr
op

os
ed

 fa
re

 s
ub

si
dy

 w
ou

ld
 re

du
ce

 
fa

re
s 

fo
r W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
tra

ve
le

rs
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

St
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 M
ar

tin
ez

 in
 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
an

d 
Be

rk
el

ey
, E

m
er

yv
ill

e,
 a

nd
 

O
ak

la
nd

 J
ac

k 
Lo

nd
on

 S
qu

ar
e 

st
at

io
ns

 in
 

th
e 

so
ut

h.
 It

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
in

 th
e 

sh
or

t-t
er

m
 w

ith
 s

up
po

rt
 fr

om
 th

e 
C

ap
ito

l 
C

or
rid

or
 a

nd
 th

e 
sp

on
so

rin
g 

ag
en

cy
 (s

ee
 

Fi
gu

re
 5

-9
 a

nd
 F

ig
ur

e 
5-

10
).

Th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
RI

TC
 in

 H
er

cu
le

s,
 

w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

 n
ew

 tr
ai

n 
st

op
, c

ou
ld

 
be

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
sh

or
t- 

to
 m

ed
iu

m
-

te
rm

. I
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
s 

an
 

ag
re

em
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

C
ap

ito
l C

or
rid

or
 

an
d/

or
 th

e 
Sa

n 
Jo

aq
ui

n 
Jo

in
t P

ow
er

s 
Au

th
or

ity
 B

oa
rd

s 
th

at
 e

ns
ur

es
 n

o 
de

gr
ad

at
io

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e,
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 s

ec
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.

Ti
m

e 
H

or
iz

on
C

ap
ita

l C
os

t (
20

17
 $

)

Sh
or

t- 
an

d 
M

ed
iu

m
-te

rm
$6

8.
6 

m

Bu
ild

-o
ut

 o
f R

IT
C

So
ur

ce
: C

ity
 o

f H
er

cu
le

s,
 2

01
7

N
ot

e:
 T

he
 c

os
ts

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f H

er
cu

le
s 

an
d 

m
ay

 n
ot

 re
fle

ct
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r t
he

 C
ap

ito
l C

or
rid

or
 to

 s
er

ve
 th

e 
st

at
io

n.

Ti
m

e 
H

or
iz

on

Sh
or

t-t
er

m

75
%

 F
ar

e 
Su

bs
id

y 
fo

r W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

Tr
av

el
er

s

- $
5,

70
8,

00
0 

fo
r t

hr
ee

-y
ea

r p
ilo

t

- $
11

 c
os

t p
er

 ri
de

r

- $
39

 c
os

t p
er

 n
ew

 ri
de

r
So

ur
ce

: W
C

C
TA

C
 s

ta
ff,

 2
01

7

Fi
gu

re
 5

-9
: R

efi
ne

d 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
4:

 C
om

m
ut

er
 R

ai
l

So
ur

ce
: A

m
tr

ak
/C

ap
ita

l C
or

rid
or

Fi
gu

re
 5

-1
0:

 R
efi

ne
d 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

4:
 C

om
m

ut
er

 R
ai

l

So
ur

ce
: A

m
tr

ak
/C

ap
ita

l C
or

rid
or

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

DR
AF

T

7B-32



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
31

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

6:
 B

A
RT

 E
xt

en
si

on
 fr

om
 

Ri
ch

m
on

d
Tw

o 
al

ig
nm

en
ts

 fo
r e

xt
en

di
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 
fro

m
 th

e 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

St
at

io
n 

no
rt

h 
to

 a
 

ne
w

 H
er

cu
le

s 
St

at
io

n 
w

er
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
. 

Bo
th

 o
f t

he
 a

lig
nm

en
ts

 w
ou

ld
 fo

llo
w

 th
e 

I-8
0 

co
rr

id
or

 fr
om

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 

ea
st

. W
hi

le
 m

an
y 

al
ig

nm
en

ts
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

I-8
0 

al
ig

nm
en

t w
er

e 
as

se
ss

ed
, t

he
 

al
ig

nm
en

t o
n 

th
e 

ea
st

 s
id

e 
I-8

0 
ap

pe
ar

ed
 

to
 h

av
e 

th
e 

fe
w

es
t c

on
fli

ct
s.

 B
ot

h 
of

 
th

e 
al

ig
nm

en
ts

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

m
ul

tip
le

 
in

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 s

to
p 

lo
ca

tio
ns

, t
ho

ug
h 

on
ly

 
on

e 
or

 tw
o 

in
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 s
ta

tio
ns

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
fo

r e
ith

er
 li

ne
.

Th
e 

Ru
m

ril
l B

ou
le

va
rd

 a
lig

nm
en

t 
w

ou
ld

 fo
llo

w
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ra

il 
co

rr
id

or
 

on
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

no
rt

h 
fro

m
 th

e 
BA

RT
 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 y
ar

d 
to

 B
ro

ok
si

de
 D

riv
e,

 
w

he
re

 it
 w

ou
ld

 tu
rn

 e
as

t, 
to

 fo
llo

w
 R

um
ril

l 
Bo

ul
ev

ar
d 

to
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ol
le

ge
. A

t 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ol
le

ge
 it

 w
ou

ld
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

to
 tu

nn
el

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 u

nd
er

 H
ill

to
p 

M
al

l, 
an

d 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

C
en

te
r, 

w
he

re
 it

 w
ou

ld
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
I-8

0 
al

ig
nm

en
t. 

It 
w

ou
ld

 re
m

ai
n 

in
 tu

nn
el

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
A

pp
ia

n 
W

ay
 in

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
an

d 
w

ou
ld

 
co

nt
in

ue
 o

n 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

to
 a

 s
ta

tio
n 

at
 th

e 
H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r. 
In

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 

st
at

io
n 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r t

hi
s 

al
ig

nm
en

t w
er

e 
ev

al
ua

te
d 

at
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ol
le

ge
 a

nd
 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 T

ra
ns

it;
 w

ith
 H

ill
to

p 
M

al
l a

nd
 A

pp
ia

n 
W

ay
 a

s 
ot

he
r p

ot
en

tia
l 

st
at

io
n 

si
te

s.

Th
e 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 a

lig
nm

en
t 

w
ou

ld
 fo

llo
w

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

ra
il 

co
rr

id
or

 
on

 s
tru

ct
ur

e 
no

rt
h 

fro
m

 th
e 

BA
RT

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 y

ar
d,

 b
ut

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 n

or
th

 
to

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
. A

t R
ic

hm
on

d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 th
e 

al
ig

nm
en

t w
ou

ld
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

to
 a

 tu
nn

el
 u

nd
er

 H
ill

to
p 

M
al

l a
nd

 
co

nt
in

ue
 in

 tu
nn

el
 to

 A
pp

ia
n 

W
ay

. T
he

 
al

ig
nm

en
t w

ou
ld

 fo
llo

w
 th

e 
I-8

0 
co

rr
id

or
, 

on
 s

tru
ct

ur
e,

 fr
om

 A
pp

ia
n 

W
ay

 to
 th

e 
H

er
cu

le
s 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r.

Fi
gu

re
 5

-1
1 

an
d 

Fi
gu

re
 5

-1
2 

ill
us

tra
te

 
th

e 
re

fin
ed

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

, t
he

ir 
ke

y 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s,
 a

nd
 c

os
ts

. C
os

t e
st

im
at

es
 

w
er

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fro
m

 th
e 

re
fin

ed
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 a
nd

 w
er

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
ed

 to
 

re
fle

ct
 th

e 
co

st
s 

ov
er

 ti
m

e 
to

 s
ho

w
 h

ow
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

in
 th

e 
sh

or
t-t

er
m

 fo
r l

ow
 c

os
ts

, w
ith

 th
e 

fu
ll 

co
st

s 
of

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 n
ot

 re
al

iz
ed

 
un

til
 fu

ll 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

oc
cu

rs
. B

ec
au

se
 

th
e 

co
st

 e
st

im
at

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

at
 s

uc
h 

an
 e

ar
ly

 s
ta

ge
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t (
ab

ou
t 5

 p
er

ce
nt

 d
es

ig
n)

, 
th

e 
ra

ng
e 

in
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

is
 h

ig
h 

(fr
om

 -5
0%

 
to

 +
10

0%
, b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

A
AC

E 
Es

tim
at

e 
C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r c

os
t e

st
im

at
es

) a
nd

 
a 

hi
gh

 c
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

fa
ct

or
 is

 a
pp

lie
d 

to
 c

om
pe

ns
at

e 
fo

r t
hi

s 
va

ria
bi

lit
y.

 A
s 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

of
 th

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 a

dv
an

ce
s 

an
d 

th
e 

de
si

gn
 is

 m
or

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d,

 th
e 

co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 g
o 

do
w

n 
an

d 
th

e 
le

ve
l o

f a
cc

ur
ac

y 
of

 th
e 

co
st

 e
st

im
at

es
 w

ou
ld

 im
pr

ov
e.

C
o

m
p

a
ra

b
le

 C
a

p
it

a
l 

C
o

st
s 

fo
r 

B
A

R
T

 E
x

te
n

si
o

n
s

W
A

RM
 S

PR
IN

G
S 

EX
TE

N
SI

O
N

5.
4 

m
ile

s 
(o

ne
 s

ta
tio

n)
$1

65
 m

ill
io

n 
pe

r m
ile

SI
LI

C
O

N
 V

A
LL

EY
 E

X
TE

N
SI

O
N

 (V
TA

)
Ph

as
e 

1: 
W

ar
m

 S
pr

in
gs

 to
 B

er
ry

es
sa

10
 m

ile
s 

(tw
o 

st
at

io
ns

)
$2

30
 m

ill
io

n 
pe

r m
ile

Ph
as

e 
2:

 B
er

ry
es

sa
 to

 S
an

ta
 C

la
ra

6 
m

ile
s 

(fo
ur

 s
ta

tio
ns

)
$7

83
 m

ill
io

n 
pe

r m
ile

H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

BA
RT

 E
X

TE
N

SI
O

N
 T

O
 H

ER
C

U
LE

S
8 

m
ile

s 
(th

re
e 

st
at

io
ns

)
$4

70
 m

ill
io

n 
pe

r m
ile

So
ur

ce
s:

 W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff
ht

tp
s:

//w
w

w
.b

ar
t.g

ov
/a

bo
ut

/p
ro

je
ct

s/
w

sx
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.v

ta
.o

rg
/b

ar
t/

fin
an

ci
al

ht
tp

://
vt

ao
rg

co
nt

en
t.s

3-
us

-w
es

t-1
.a

m
az

on
aw

s.
co

m
/S

ite
_C

on
te

nt
FS

-0
11

91
7-

BA
RT



A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

DR
AF

T

7B-33



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
32

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

Ti
m

e 
H

or
iz

on
C

ap
ita

l C
os

t (
20

17
 $

)

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$5

6 
m

C
on

ce
pt

ua
l e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 

Pr
og

ra
m

-le
ve

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l c
le

ar
an

ce

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$7
4 

m

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Pr
oj

ec
t-l

ev
el

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l c
le

ar
an

ce

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$3
,4

52
 m

BA
RT

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 H

er
cu

le
s

Ve
hi

cl
e 

ac
qu

is
iti

on
 (6

0 
ca

rs
)

St
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 te
rm

in
al

 y
ar

d

To
ta

l
$3

,5
82

 m
So

ur
ce

: W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff 
w

ith
 M

 L
ee

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n,

 2
01

7

Fi
gu

re
 5

-1
1:

 R
efi

ne
d 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

6A
: B

A
RT

 E
xt

en
si

on
 fr

om
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

St
at

io
n 

to
 

H
er

cu
le

s 
vi

a 
Ru

m
ril

l B
ou

le
va

rd

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff,

 2
01

6 
N

ot
e:

 O
nl

y 
on

e 
or

 tw
o 

BA
RT

 s
to

ps
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

bu
ilt

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

DR
AF

T

7B-34



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
33

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

Ti
m

e 
H

or
iz

on
C

ap
ita

l C
os

t (
20

17
 $

)

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$6

9 
m

C
on

ce
pt

ua
l e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 

Pr
og

ra
m

-le
ve

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l c
le

ar
an

ce

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$9
2 

m

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Pr
oj

ec
t-l

ev
el

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l c
le

ar
an

ce

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$3
,9

95
 m

BA
RT

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 H

er
cu

le
s

Ve
hi

cl
e 

ac
qu

is
iti

on
 (6

0 
ca

rs
)

St
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 te
rm

in
al

 y
ar

d

To
ta

l
$4

,16
1 m

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff 

w
ith

 M
 L

ee
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n,
 2

01
7

Fi
gu

re
 5

-1
2:

 R
efi

ne
d 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

6B
: B

A
RT

 E
xt

en
si

on
 fr

om
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

St
at

io
n 

to
 

H
er

cu
le

s 
vi

a 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff,

 2
01

6 
N

ot
e:

 O
nl

y 
on

e 
or

 tw
o 

BA
RT

 s
to

ps
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

bu
ilt

DR
AF

T

7B-35



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
34

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

5.
2.

2 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 R

efi
ne

d 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
Th

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 th

e 
re

fin
ed

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

m
or

e 
da

ta
 fo

r t
he

 
st

ud
y 

te
am

 fo
r u

se
 in

 th
e 

ev
al

ua
tio

n,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
rid

er
sh

ip
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 

ca
pi

ta
l c

os
t e

st
im

at
es

. C
on

se
qu

en
tly

, 
th

e 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
re

fin
ed

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 
co

ns
is

te
d 

of
 m

or
e 

qu
an

tit
at

iv
e 

cr
ite

ria
 

an
d 

m
ea

su
re

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

to
ta

l a
nd

 n
et

 
ne

w
 ri

de
rs

hi
p 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
ca

pi
ta

l a
nd

 
op

er
at

in
g 

co
st

 a
nd

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
. Q

ua
lit

at
iv

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

of
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 
be

 im
po

rt
an

t a
s 

w
el

l. 
Th

es
e 

ca
pt

ur
e 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 s
pe

ed
 a

nd
 

re
lia

bi
lit

y 
of

 tr
an

si
t s

er
vi

ce
, c

on
si

st
en

cy
 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l p
la

ns
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

ie
s,

 o
ffe

r 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 e

co
no

m
ic

 a
nd

 tr
an

si
t-

or
ie

nt
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
an

d 
th

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 
of

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 s
up

po
rt

. 
Th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
cr

ite
ria

 a
nd

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
ea

su
re

s 
us

ed
 in

 th
e 

se
co

nd
 ro

un
d 

of
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
ar

e 
sh

ow
n 

in
 

Fi
gu

re
 5

-1
3.

In
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 ro
un

d 
of

 e
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

BR
T 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 o
nc

e 
ag

ai
n 

em
er

ge
d 

as
 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 fo
llo

w
ed

 
by

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

. T
he

 C
om

m
ut

er
 R

ai
l 

an
d 

th
e 

BA
RT

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 w
er

e 
ra

te
d 

hi
gh

ly
 in

 m
an

y 
ca

te
go

rie
s,

 b
ut

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 

po
or

ly
 in

 o
th

er
s.

 F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
th

e 
BA

RT
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 ra
te

d 
hi

gh
 in

 th
e 

rid
er

sh
ip

 
ca

te
go

rie
s,

 b
ut

 p
oo

rly
 in

 th
e 

co
st

s 
an

d 
co

st
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s,

 w
hi

le
 th

e 
C

om
m

ut
er

 R
ai

l r
at

ed
 h

ig
h 

in
 th

e 
co

st
 

ca
te

go
rie

s,
 b

ut
 lo

w
 in

 th
e 

rid
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 
co

st
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s.

 F
ig

ur
e 

5-
14

 
su

m
m

ar
iz

es
 th

e 
ra

tin
g 

fo
r a

ll 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
.

BR
T 

on
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 a
nd

 M
ac

do
na

ld
 

Av
en

ue
s 

ra
nk

s 
hi

gh
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 u
nd

er
-s

er
ve

d 
tra

ns
it 

m
ar

ke
ts

, 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 re
gi

on
al

 tr
an

si
t c

en
te

rs
 a

nd
 

pr
io

rit
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

re
as

 (P
D

A
s)

, 
an

nu
al

iz
ed

 c
os

t p
er

 ri
de

r, 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

r s
up

po
rt

. T
he

 B
RT

 o
n 

23
rd

 
St

re
et

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

pe
rfo

rm
ed

 w
el

l a
ga

in
st

 
cr

ite
ria

 re
la

te
d 

to
 q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

tra
ns

it 
co

nn
ec

tio
ns

, a
nn

ua
liz

ed
 c

os
t p

er
 

to
ta

l r
id

er
, a

nd
 p

ro
xi

m
ity

 to
 P

D
A

s.
 T

he
 

BR
T 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 w
er

e 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
in

 
te

rm
s 

of
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 ri
de

rs
hi

p.

Th
e 

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

ha
d 

a 
m

od
er

at
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f h
ig

h 
an

d 
m

od
er

at
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 ra

tin
gs

. I
t f

ai
re

d 
hi

gh
 in

 th
e 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
of

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

co
st

s,
 ti

m
e 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t, 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
r s

up
po

rt
. I

t s
co

re
d 

m
od

er
at

e 
in

 m
os

t o
th

er
 c

at
eg

or
ie

s 
ex

ce
pt

 n
et

 n
ew

 
rid

er
s 

an
d 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
ra

ns
it 

co
nn

ec
tio

ns
, 

w
he

re
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

as
 ra

te
d 

lo
w

.

Th
e 

C
om

m
ut

er
 R

ai
l a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
pe

rfo
rm

ed
 

w
el

l i
n 

th
e 

cr
ite

ria
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

tra
ve

l 
sp

ee
d 

an
d 

re
lia

bi
lit

y,
 a

s 
co

m
m

ut
er

 
ra

il’
s 

de
di

ca
te

d 
rig

ht
s-

of
-w

ay
 re

du
ce

 
tra

ns
it 

tra
ve

l t
im

e 
an

d 
de

la
ys

. I
t a

ls
o 

pe
rfo

rm
ed

 w
el

l i
n 

qu
al

ity
 o

f c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

, 
as

 C
ap

ita
l C

or
rid

or
/A

m
tra

k 
st

at
io

ns
 a

re
 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
w

el
l-s

er
ve

d 
by

 o
th

er
 tr

an
si

t 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

an
d 

tim
e 

to
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

(th
e 

fa
re

 s
ub

si
dy

 d
oe

s 
no

t i
nv

ol
ve

 fu
rt

he
r 

pr
oj

ec
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
t).

 T
he

 C
om

m
ut

er
 

Ra
il 

ca
pi

ta
l a

nd
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

co
st

s,
 a

re
 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
lo

w
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
ot

he
r 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 h
ig

h 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 
op

tim
al

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

. I
t, 

ho
w

ev
er

, r
an

ks
 

lo
w

 in
 ri

de
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

co
st

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
.

Th
e 

tw
o 

BA
RT

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 re
ce

iv
ed

 
hi

gh
 ra

tin
gs

 fo
r t

ot
al

 a
nd

 n
et

 ri
de

rs
hi

p 
in

cr
ea

se
s;

 tr
an

si
t t

im
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 

re
lia

bi
lit

y 
as

 h
ea

vy
 ra

il’
s 

de
di

ca
te

d 
rig

ht
s-

of
-w

ay
 a

re
 c

on
du

ci
ve

 to
 fa

st
er

 tr
av

el
. 

BA
RT

 a
ls

o 
pr

ov
id

es
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 

nu
m

be
r o

f t
ra

ns
it 

co
nn

ec
tio

ns
. B

ut
 b

ot
h 

BA
RT

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 p
oo

r p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
n 

co
st

 a
nd

 c
os

t e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
tim

e 
to

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

pu
lle

d 
do

w
n 

th
ei

r o
ve

ra
ll 

ra
tin

gs
.

Lo
ca

l j
ur

is
di

ct
io

ns
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 a

re
 

co
nc

er
ne

d 
ab

ou
t h

ow
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 fi
t w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 
id

en
tifi

ed
 P

D
A

s.

Fi
gu

re
 5

-1
3:

 E
va

lu
at

io
n 

C
rit

er
ia

 a
nd

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r E

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 R
efi

ne
d 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
es

So
ur

ce
: K

itt
el

so
n 

& 
A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 2

01
7

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

DR
AF

T

7B-36



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
35

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

Fi
gu

re
 5

-1
4:

 E
va

lu
at

io
n 

C
rit

er
ia

 a
nd

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
ea

su
re

s 
fo

r E
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 R

efi
ne

d 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff,

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

6
*M

ea
su

re
s 

on
ly

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

re
gi

on
al

 tr
an

si
t c

en
te

rs
. B

ot
h 

ra
il 

sy
st

em
s 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
hi

gh
 le

ve
l o

f c
on

ne
ct

iv
ity

 to
 re

gi
on

al
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t c

en
te

rs
.

0
	

	
2
	

	
4

Lo
w

 P
er

fo
rm

in
g 

H
ig

h 
Pe

rf
or

m
in

g

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

DR
AF

T

7B-37



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
36

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

5.
2.

3 
Ri

de
rs

hi
p 

Fo
re

ca
st

s
Ri

de
rs

hi
p 

fo
re

ca
st

s 
ar

e 
on

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

m
et

ric
s 

fo
r e

va
lu

at
in

g 
th

e 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 o

f a
 tr

an
si

t i
nv

es
tm

en
t a

nd
 

fo
r a

llo
ca

tin
g 

fu
nd

in
g.

 T
he

 ri
de

rs
hi

p 
nu

m
be

rs
 h

el
p 

de
ci

si
on

-m
ak

er
s 

de
te

rm
in

e 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t b
en

efi
ts

 a
nd

 
as

se
ss

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

se
cu

re
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

. T
he

 ri
de

rs
hi

p 
fo

re
ca

st
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

r t
he

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
St

ud
y 

ar
e 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

fo
re

ca
st

s 
th

at
 w

ill
 

as
si

st
 W

C
C

TA
C

 B
oa

rd
 m

em
be

rs
, l

oc
al

 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

ns
, a

nd
 tr

an
si

t a
ge

nc
ie

s 
to

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 a
dv

an
ce

d 
fo

r 
fu

rt
he

r s
tu

dy
. 

A
fte

r s
er

ie
s 

of
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 w

ith
 th

e 
St

ud
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

, t
he

 W
C

C
TA

C
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l A
dv

is
or

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

, a
nd

 
th

e 
W

C
C

TA
C

 B
oa

rd
, i

t w
as

 a
gr

ee
d 

th
at

 
a 

to
ta

l o
f fi

ve
 tr

affi
c 

m
od

el
 ru

ns
 w

ou
ld

 
be

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n.

 W
ith

 th
e 

br
oa

d 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 id

en
tifi

ed
 in

 th
is

 s
tu

dy
 

an
d 

a 
lim

ite
d 

nu
m

be
r o

f m
od

el
 ru

ns
, t

he
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 w
er

e 
as

se
m

bl
ed

 in
to

 p
ac

ka
ge

s 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

sh
or

t-t
er

m
 a

nd
 m

ed
iu

m
- a

nd
 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

. W
hi

le
 th

is
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 d
id

 n
ot

 a
llo

w
 a

n 
ab

so
lu

te
ly

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f e
ac

h 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e,
 it

 s
ho

w
s 

ho
w

 in
cr

em
en

ta
l 

bu
ild

-u
p 

of
 a

 tr
an

si
t n

et
w

or
k 

ca
n 

im
pr

ov
e 

ov
er

al
l t

ra
ns

it 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 

rid
er

sh
ip

 o
ve

r t
im

e.
 R

id
er

sh
ip

 fo
re

ca
st

s 
w

er
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
fo

r t
he

 p
ac

ka
ge

s 
of

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 y

ea
rs

 o
f 2

02
0 

an
d 

20
40

:

20
20

 P
ac

ka
ge

s
 •

Pa
ck

ag
e 

A:
 E

xp
re

ss
 B

us
 +

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
/

M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

es
 B

RT

 •
Pa

ck
ag

e 
B:

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

 +
 2

3r
d 

St
re

et
 

BR
T

20
40

 P
ac

ka
ge

s
 •

Pa
ck

ag
e 

C
: R

IT
C

 +
 E

xp
re

ss
 B

us
 +

 S
an

 
Pa

bl
o/

M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

es
 B

RT
+ 

23
rd

 
St

re
et

 B
RT

 +
 B

AR
T 

Ru
m

ril
l B

ou
le

va
rd

 
al

ig
nm

en
t

 •
Pa

ck
ag

e 
D

: R
IT

C
 +

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

 +
 S

an
 

Pa
bl

o/
M

ac
do

na
ld

 A
ve

nu
es

 B
RT

 +
 2

3r
d 

St
re

et
 B

RT
 +

 B
AR

T 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 
al

ig
nm

en
t

 •
Pa

ck
ag

e 
E:

 R
IT

C
 +

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

 +
 S

an
 

Pa
bl

o/
M

ac
do

na
ld

 A
ve

nu
es

 B
RT

 +
 2

3r
d 

St
re

et
 B

RT

Th
e 

rid
er

sh
ip

 e
st

im
at

es
 fo

r 2
02

0 
sh

ow
 

th
e 

re
la

tiv
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
w

ith
 e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
BR

T 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 in

 
th

e 
sh

or
t-t

er
m

. T
he

 2
04

0 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

sh
ow

 h
ow

 tr
an

si
t r

id
er

sh
ip

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
im

pa
ct

ed
 w

ith
 a

nd
 w

ith
ou

t a
 B

A
RT

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t. 
In

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 y

ea
rs

, 
th

e 
rid

er
sh

ip
 fo

re
ca

st
s 

w
er

e 
m

ad
e 

w
ith

 a
nd

 w
ith

ou
t t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
. E

xi
st

in
g 

rid
er

sh
ip

 is
 a

ls
o 

sh
ow

n 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 

co
nt

ex
t f

or
 h

ow
 m

uc
h 

tra
ns

it 
rid

er
sh

ip
 is

 
lik

el
y 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f p
op

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t g

ro
w

th
 in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
 

re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f w
he

th
er

 a
ny

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
ar

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.

W
hi

le
 th

e 
fo

re
ca

st
s 

off
er

 a
 s

ou
nd

 re
la

tiv
e 

co
m

pa
ris

on
 o

f t
he

 ri
de

rs
hi

p 
th

at
 m

ig
ht

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 w
ith

 e
ac

h 
se

t o
f i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, 
th

ey
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t b
e 

ta
ke

n 
as

 th
e 

fin
al

 
es

tim
at

e 
of

 ri
de

rs
hi

p 
po

te
nt

ia
l. 

W
ith

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 th
at

 w
er

e 
be

in
g 

ev
al

ua
te

d,
 it

 w
as

 n
ot

 p
os

si
bl

e 
to

 g
et

 th
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

an
al

ys
es

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ne

ed
ed

 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l e

va
lu

at
io

n 

an
d 

se
cu

re
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r a
 p

ro
je

ct
. I

n 
fu

tu
re

 p
ha

se
s 

of
 th

es
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

, r
id

er
sh

ip
 

fo
re

ca
st

s 
w

ou
ld

 m
or

e 
cl

ea
rly

 b
e 

ab
le

 
to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

rid
er

sh
ip

 o
f 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

de
si

gn
 tr

ea
tm

en
ts

, a
lig

nm
en

t 
va

ria
tio

ns
, a

nd
 s

ta
tio

n 
lo

ca
tio

ns
.

Ta
bl

e 
5-

4 
an

d 
Ta

bl
e 

5-
5 

pr
ov

id
e 

su
m

m
ar

ie
s 

of
 tr

an
si

t r
id

er
sh

ip
 in

 2
02

0 
an

d 
20

40
 w

ith
 a

nd
 w

ith
ou

t t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
tra

ns
it 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. T
he

re
 a

re
 a

 fe
w

 
br

oa
d 

co
nc

lu
si

on
s 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

dr
aw

n 
fro

m
 a

 c
om

pa
ris

on
 o

f t
he

 ri
de

rs
hi

p 
pr

oj
ec

tio
ns

.

 •
D

em
an

d 
fo

r t
ra

ns
it 

se
rv

ic
es

 is
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

ne
ar

-te
rm

 a
nd

 
in

 th
e 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 (2
04

0)
 a

s 
gr

ow
th

 in
 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t i
n 

W
es

t 
C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
th

e 
re

gi
on

 c
on

tin
ue

s.
 

Th
is

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 d

em
an

d 
fo

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
is

 a
lre

ad
y 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 
cr

ow
di

ng
 o

n 
bu

s 
an

d 
ra

il 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

It 
is

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 a
cu

te
 o

n 
th

e 
BA

RT
 

sy
st

em
. T

he
 fo

re
ca

st
ed

 g
ro

w
th

 in
 

tra
ns

it 
rid

er
sh

ip
 o

f n
ea

rly
 19

,0
00

 fr
om

 
38

,8
80

 c
ur

re
nt

 ri
de

rs
 to

 2
04

0 
ca

nn
ot

 
be

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

ed
 w

ith
ou

t s
ub

st
an

tia
l 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
tra

ns
it.

 •
Th

e 
BA

RT
 s

ys
te

m
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, w

hi
ch

 
in

cl
ud

e 
up

gr
ad

ed
 tr

ai
n 

co
nt

ro
ls

, n
ew

 
ve

hi
cl

es
, a

nd
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

H
ay

w
ar

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 fa

ci
lit

y, 
m

us
t b

e 
pu

rs
ue

d 
in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 n
ew

 s
ys

te
m

 
ex

te
ns

io
ns

. W
ith

ou
t m

aj
or

 s
ys

te
m

 
up

gr
ad

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

of
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 th

at
 in

cr
ea

se
 tr

an
sb

ay
 

an
d 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o 

st
at

io
n 

ca
pa

ci
ty

, t
he

 B
AR

T 
sy

st
em

 e
xt

en
si

on
s 

w
ou

ld
 o

pe
ra

te
 w

ith
 s

ev
er

e 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

.

 •
In

 th
e 

sh
or

t-t
er

m
, i

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 in

 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, s

uc
h 

as
 

in
tro

du
ci

ng
 n

ew
 d

ire
ct

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 B
er

ke
le

y, 
Em

er
yv

ill
e,

 a
nd

 
O

ak
la

nd
, e

xp
an

di
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 S

an
 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o,
 a

nd
 in

tro
du

ci
ng

 n
ew

 tr
an

si
t 

pr
io

rit
y 

tre
at

m
en

ts
 o

n 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o/

M
ac

do
na

ld
 A

ve
nu

es
 a

nd
 2

3r
d 

St
re

et
, 

w
ou

ld
 h

el
p 

to
 a

lle
vi

at
e 

cr
ow

di
ng

 o
n 

cu
rre

nt
 b

us
 tr

an
si

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 a
ttr

ac
t n

ew
 ri

de
rs

. T
he

se
 n

ew
 b

us
 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
ou

ld
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

n 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
to

 d
riv

in
g 

on
 I-

80
 a

nd
 w

ou
ld

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
tra

ns
it 

m
ob

ili
ty

 in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y. 

 •
In

 2
04

0,
 th

e 
fu

ll 
BR

T 
an

d 
Ex

pr
es

s 
Bu

s 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

ou
ld

 p
ro

vi
de

 
ne

w
 c

ap
ac

ity
 to

 m
ee

t g
ro

w
in

g 
tra

ns
it 

de
m

an
d 

an
d 

at
tra

ct
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 n
ew

 
rid

er
s.

 T
he

se
 b

us
 s

er
vi

ce
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

cr
iti

ca
l p

ar
t o

f m
ee

tin
g 

fu
tu

re
 tr

an
si

t d
em

an
d.

 T
he

 e
xt

en
si

on
 

of
 th

e 
BA

RT
 li

ne
 fr

om
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

to
 

th
e 

H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r w

ou
ld

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l n

ew
 c

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 

be
tte

r b
al

an
ce

 th
e 

de
m

an
d 

at
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
BA

RT
 s

ta
tio

ns
 in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y. 

It 
w

ou
ld

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 m

or
e 

no
rth

er
ly

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 th

e 
BA

RT
 s

ys
te

m
, t

he
re

by
 

ca
us

in
g 

di
ve

rs
io

n 
an

d 
re

du
ci

ng
 th

e 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r t
ra

ve
l o

n 
th

e 
I-8

0 
co

rri
do

r 
an

d 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 in
 th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f t
he

 E
l 

C
er

rit
o 

de
l N

or
te

 B
AR

T 
st

at
io

n.
 T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

de
m

an
d 

at
 th

e 
El

 
C

er
rit

o 
de

l N
or

te
 S

ta
tio

n,
 im

pr
ov

e 
lo

ca
l 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 fr
ee

 u
p 

ar
ea

 fo
r t

he
 C

ity
 

of
 E

l C
er

rit
o 

to
 p

ur
su

e 
pl

an
s 

fo
r t

ra
ns

it 
or

ie
nt

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t.

 •
Th

e 
rid

er
sh

ip
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
 s

ho
w

 th
at

 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

in
tro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 B

RT
 s

er
vi

ce
 

w
ou

ld
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

rid
er

sh
ip

 o
n 

lo
ca

l 

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

DR
AF

T

7B-38



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
37

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

Ta
bl

e 
5-

4:
 2

02
0 

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
W

ee
kd

ay
 D

ai
ly

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ri
de

rs
hi

p 
(B

oa
rd

in
gs

)

So
ur

ce
: B

A
RT

, 2
01

5 
ob

se
rv

ed
 d

at
a,

 w
w

w
.b

ar
t.g

ov
/a

bo
ut

/re
po

rt
s/

rid
er

sh
ip

So
ur

ce
: A

C
 T

ra
ns

it 
ob

se
rv

ed
 d

at
a,

 2
01

4 
A

nn
ua

l R
ou

te
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ep
or

t
So

ur
ce

: W
es

tC
AT

 o
bs

er
ve

d 
da

ta
, E

m
ai

l C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

fro
m

 C
ha

rle
s 

A
nd

er
so

n,
 G

M
, W

es
tC

AT
, M

ay
 2

01
5,

 &
 W

es
tC

AT
 w

eb
si

te
 w

w
w

.w
es

tc
at

.o
rg

/s
ch

ed
ul

es
/fi

xe
dr

ou
te

.h
tm

l#
ex

pr
es

s
N

ot
e:

 T
he

se
 ri

de
rs

hi
p 

fo
re

ca
st

s 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 g

on
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

A
m

tr
ak

 In
te

rc
ity

 R
id

er
sh

ip
 M

od
el

in
g

Ta
bl

e 
5-

5:
 2

04
0 

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
W

ee
kd

ay
 D

ai
ly

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ri
de

rs
hi

p 
(B

oa
rd

in
gs

)

Se
rv

ic
e

20
14

/2
01

5 
O

bs
er

ve
d

20
20

 N
o 

B
ui

ld
N

et
 C

ha
ng

e 
20

20
 N

o 
B

ui
ld

 
to

 2
01

4/
15

20
20

 P
ac

ka
ge

 
A

N
et

 C
ha

ng
e 

20
20

 P
ac

ka
ge

 
A

 to
 N

o 
B

ui
ld

20
20

 P
ac

ka
ge

 
B

N
et

 C
ha

ng
e 

Pa
ck

ag
e 

B 
to

 
N

o 
B

ui
ld

BA
RT

17
,6

40
21

,10
0

3,
46

0
21

,9
80

   
  8

80
20

,8
80

(2
20

)

A
C

 T
ra

ns
ba

y
 2

,16
0

 2
,4

40
   

28
0

 3
,16

0
   

  7
20

 3
,5

90
1,1

50

A
C

 B
RT

-
-

-
 8

,6
60

  8
,6

60
 4

,7
00

4,
70

0

A
C

 L
oc

al
14

,0
80

15
,9

40
1,8

60
 9

,19
0

(6
,7

50
)

13
,2

30
(2

,7
10

)

W
es

tC
AT

 5
,0

00
 5

,6
80

   
68

0
 6

,4
20

   
  7

40
 6

,4
20

   
74

0

Ex
pr

es
s 

B
us

es
-

-
-

 1,
12

0
  1

,12
0

 1,
23

0
1,2

30

To
ta

l
38

,8
80

45
,16

0
6,

28
0

50
,5

30
  5

,3
70

50
,0

50
4,

89
0

So
ur

ce
: B

A
RT

, 2
01

5 
ob

se
rv

ed
 d

at
a,

 w
w

w
.b

ar
t.g

ov
/a

bo
ut

/re
po

rt
s/

rid
er

sh
ip

So
ur

ce
: A

C
 T

ra
ns

it 
ob

se
rv

ed
 d

at
a,

 2
01

4 
A

nn
ua

l R
ou

te
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ep
or

t
So

ur
ce

: W
es

tC
AT

 o
bs

er
ve

d 
da

ta
, E

m
ai

l C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

fro
m

 C
ha

rle
s 

A
nd

er
so

n,
 G

M
, W

es
tC

AT
, M

ay
 2

01
5,

 &
 W

es
tC

AT
 w

eb
si

te
 w

w
w

.w
es

tc
at

.o
rg

/s
ch

ed
ul

es
/fi

xe
dr

ou
te

.h
tm

l#
ex

pr
es

s
N

ot
e:

 C
ap

ita
l C

or
rid

or
 a

nd
 A

m
tr

ak
 b

oa
rd

in
gs

 a
t t

he
 R

IT
C

 w
er

e 
de

riv
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

H
er

cu
le

s 
In

te
rm

od
al

 T
ra

ns
it 

C
en

te
r S

tu
dy

, p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 D
KS

 a
nd

 H
D

R,
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

10
, 2

01
0.

 T
he

se
 ri

de
rs

hi
p 

fo
re

ca
st

s 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 g

on
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

A
m

tr
ak

 In
te

rc
ity

 R
id

er
sh

ip
 M

od
el

in
g

Se
rv

ic
e

20
14

 / 
20

15
 

O
bs

er
ve

d
20

40
 N

o 
B

ui
ld

N
et

 
C

ha
ng

e 
20

40
 N

o 
B

ui
ld

 to
 

20
14

/1
5

20
40

 
Pa

ck
ag

e 
C

N
et

 
C

ha
ng

e 
20

40
 

Pa
ck

ag
e 

C
 

to
 N

o 
B

ui
ld

20
40

 
Pa

ck
ag

e 
D

N
et

 
C

ha
ng

e 
20

40
 

Pa
ck

ag
e 

D
 

to
 N

o 
B

ui
ld

20
40

 
Pa

ck
ag

e 
E

N
et

 
C

ha
ng

e 
20

40
 

Pa
ck

ag
e 

E 
to

 N
o 

B
ui

ld

BA
RT

17
,6

40
26

,16
0

8,
52

0
32

,5
30

6,
37

0
32

,17
0

6,
01

0
27

,2
20

1,0
60

A
C

 T
ra

ns
ba

y
2,

16
0

 3
,0

10
85

0
 3

,3
80

37
0

3,
77

0
76

0
3,

78
0

77
0

A
C

 B
RT

-
-

--
19

,17
0

  1
9,

07
0

17
,4

40
  1

7,
44

0
17

,2
70

17
,2

70

A
C

 L
oc

al
14

,0
80

21
,0

80
7,

00
0

10
,0

70
(11

,0
10

)
10

,3
90

(10
,6

90
)

9,
73

0
(11

,3
50

)

W
es

tC
AT

5,
00

0
7,

41
0

2,
41

0
 6

,6
50

(7
60

)
8,

48
0

1,0
70

7,
33

0
(8

0)

Ex
pr

es
s 

B
us

es
-

-
--

 1,
58

0
1,5

80
1,5

60
1,5

60
2,

06
0

2,
06

0

C
om

m
ut

er
 R

ai
l -

 R
IT

C
--

--
--

43
0

43
0

43
0

43
0

44
0

44
0

To
ta

l
38

,8
80

57
,6

60
 1

8,
78

0
73

,7
10

16
,0

50
74

,2
40

  1
6,

58
0

67
,8

30
10

,17
0

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

DR
AF

T

7B-39



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
38

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
M

O
V

IN
G

 F
O

RW
A

RD
BA

C
KG

RO
U

N
D

EX
EC

U
TI

V
E 

SU
M

M
A

RY
A

C
RO

N
YM

S

bu
s 

lin
es

, t
he

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

, B
RT

, a
nd

 
BA

RT
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

ou
ld

 a
ll 

ge
ne

ra
te

 
ro

bu
st

 ri
de

rs
hi

p 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
. T

he
 

co
m

pl
em

en
t o

f t
ra

ns
it 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
or

k 
to

ge
th

er
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 m

or
e 

vi
ab

le
 

tra
ns

it 
ne

tw
or

k 
fo

r t
he

 fu
tu

re
 o

f W
es

t 
C

ou
nt

y.

O
ne

 o
f t

he
 b

en
efi

ts
 o

f t
ra

ns
it 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
is

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

re
du

ce
 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l v

eh
ic

le
 m

ile
s 

tra
ve

le
d.

 A
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 v
eh

ic
le

 m
ile

s 
tra

ve
le

d 
ca

n 
tra

ns
la

te
 to

 a
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 to

ta
l h

ou
rs

 
sp

en
t t

ra
ve

lin
g 

an
d 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 g

as
 e

m
is

si
on

s.
 W

ith
 th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
tra

ns
it 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

, t
he

 o
ve

ra
ll 

ro
ad

w
ay

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

in
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y,
 a

s 
su

m
m

ar
iz

ed
 

in
 F

ig
ur

e 
5-

15
 a

nd
 F

ig
ur

e 
5-

16
.

W
H

AT
 IS

 V
M

T 
A

N
D

 V
H

T?

V
M

T 
is

 a
 m

ea
su

re
 o

f t
he

 m
ile

s 
tra

ve
le

d 
by

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 s

pe
ci

fic
 a

re
a 

fo
r a

 
se

t t
im

e 
pe

rio
d.

V
H

T 
is

 a
 m

ea
su

re
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l v
eh

ic
le

 
ho

ur
s 

sp
en

t t
ra

ve
lin

g 
in

 a
 s

pe
ci

fic
 a

re
a 

fo
r a

 s
et

 ti
m

e 
pe

rio
d.

Th
e 

da
ta

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 h

er
e 

is
 fo

r W
es

t 
C

ou
nt

y 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

A
M

 p
ea

k 
fo

ur
 h

ou
r 

pe
rio

d.

50
0,

00
0

1,
00

0,
00

0

1,
50

0,
00

0

2,
00

0,
00

0

20
40

B
ui

ld
 P

ac
ka

ge
 

C/
D

20
40

N
o 

B
ui

ld
20

20
B

ui
ld

 P
ac

ka
ge

A
/B

20
20

N
o 

B
ui

ld
20

13
Ex

is
tin

g

Fi
gu

re
 5

-1
5:

 V
M

T 
A

M
 P

ea
k 

4-
H

ou
r P

er
io

d

So
ur

ce
: K

itt
el

so
n 

an
d 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
s,

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
7

10
,0

00

20
,0

00

30
,0

00

40
,0

00

50
,0

00

60
,0

00

70
,0

00

20
40

 
B

ui
ld

 P
ac

ka
ge

C/
D

20
40

 
N

o 
B

ui
ld

20
20

B
ui

ld
 P

ac
ka

ge
A

/B

20
20

N
o 

B
ui

ld
20

13
Ex

is
tin

g

So
ur

ce
: K

itt
el

so
n 

an
d 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
s,

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
7

Fi
gu

re
 5

-1
6:

 V
H

T 
A

M
 P

ea
k 

4-
H

ou
r P

er
io

dA
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

DR
AF

T

7B-40



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
39

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

6.
1 W

ha
t H

av
e 

W
e 

Le
ar

ne
d 

fr
om

 th
is

 
St

ud
y?

Th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
co

ur
se

 o
f t

hi
s 

st
ud

y,
 

ce
rt

ai
n 

id
ea

s 
ha

ve
 e

m
er

ge
d 

th
at

 
ca

n 
gu

id
e 

th
e 

ne
xt

 s
te

ps
 o

f t
ra

ns
it 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 fo
r W

es
t C

ou
nt

y.
 A

 
ge

ne
ra

l s
um

m
ar

y 
of

 th
es

e 
id

ea
s 

is
 

ca
pt

ur
ed

 h
er

e.

 •
D

em
an

d 
fo

r t
ra

ns
it 

is
 g

ro
w

in
g 

in
 W

es
t 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

th
e 

de
m

an
d 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
m

et
 

w
ith

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

tra
ns

it 
ne

tw
or

k.
 S

ev
er

e 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

on
 I-

80
 w

ill
 o

nl
y 

ge
t w

or
se

 if
 

m
aj

or
 tr

an
si

t i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 a
re

 n
ot

 m
ad

e.

 •
Th

er
e 

is
 n

ot
 o

ne
 s

in
gl

e 
tr

an
si

t 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t t
ha

t c
an

, o
n 

its
 o

w
n,

 
m

ee
t t

he
 d

em
an

d 
fo

r t
ra

ns
it 

in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

. A
 tr

an
si

t s
ys

te
m

, c
om

pr
is

ed
 o

f 
bu

s 
an

d 
ra

il 
ne

tw
or

ks
 th

at
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
w

or
ks

 to
ge

th
er

, c
an

 h
av

e 
an

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 in

 W
es

t 
C

ou
nt

y.

 •
Th

e 
tr

an
si

t i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 p
ro

po
se

d 
in

 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
m

us
t w

or
k 

in
 c

on
ce

rt
 

w
ith

 tr
an

si
t s

ys
te

m
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 to
 b

e 
eff

ec
tiv

e.
 

Fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e,

 a
 B

AR
T 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
in

 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
ca

nn
ot

 w
or

k 
un

le
ss

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

to
 th

e 
BA

RT
 

sy
st

em
.

 •
Th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f d
ai

ly
 tr

ip
s 

st
ay

 w
ith

in
 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

ne
ed

 v
ia

bl
e 

tr
an

si
t 

op
tio

ns
 a

s 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

to
 th

e 
au

to
. 

Th
e 

si
ng

le
 la

rg
es

t t
ra

ve
l m

ar
ke

ts
 to

 
an

d 
fro

m
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
ar

e 
to

 n
or

th
er

n 
Al

am
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
– 

Be
rk

el
ey

, E
m

er
yv

ill
e,

 
an

d 
O

ak
la

nd
. B

ot
h 

of
 th

es
e 

tra
ns

it 
m

ar
ke

ts
 n

ee
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 to
 c

ap
tu

re
 

ne
w

 tr
an

si
t r

id
er

s

 •
El

 C
er

rit
o,

 R
ic

hm
on

d,
 a

nd
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 
ha

ve
 d

en
si

tie
s 

th
at

 c
an

 s
up

po
rt

 a
 

hi
gh

 le
ve

l o
f t

ra
ns

it 
se

rv
ic

e.
 A

s 
gr

ow
th

 
oc

cu
rs

, t
he

 d
en

si
fic

at
io

n 
of

 th
es

e 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

Pi
no

le
 a

nd
 

H
er

cu
le

s 
w

ill
 m

ak
e 

tra
ns

it 
a 

m
or

e 
vi

ab
le

 
op

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

, i
f l

an
d 

us
e 

po
lic

ie
s 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 tr

an
si

t i
nv

es
tm

en
t.

 •
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 m

aj
or

 tr
an

si
t 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 h
av

e 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

to
 re

du
ce

 V
M

T 
an

d 
gr

ee
nh

ou
se

 
ga

s 
em

is
si

on
s 

an
d 

off
er

 a
 d

iff
er

en
t 

fu
tu

re
 fo

r W
es

t C
ou

nt
y. 

O
ve

ra
ll 

tra
ffi

c 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

is
 re

du
ce

d 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

by
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 to
 d

riv
in

g.
 

W
hi

le
 I-

80
, m

ay
 s

til
l b

e 
co

ng
es

te
d 

du
e 

to
 la

te
nt

 d
em

an
d,

 th
e 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
on

 
su

rfa
ce

 s
tre

et
s 

w
ou

ld
 im

pr
ov

e 
as

 fe
w

er
 

tri
ps

 a
re

 d
iv

er
te

d 
fro

m
 th

e 
fre

ew
ay

 
sy

st
em

.

H
ow

 d
o 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 tr

an
si

t p
ro

je
ct

s 
ev

al
ua

te
d 

in
 th

e 
H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 S
tu

dy
 fi

t 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 p

la
ns

 fo
r W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
w

ha
t r

ol
e 

w
ill

 th
ey

 p
la

y 
in

 re
al

iz
in

g 
a 

di
ffe

re
nt

 fu
tu

re
 fo

r t
he

 c
ou

nt
y?

Th
e 

tra
ve

l m
ar

ke
t a

ss
es

sm
en

t i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 

a 
la

rg
e 

tra
ve

l m
ar

ke
t t

o 
an

d 
fro

m
 

Be
rk

el
ey

, E
m

er
yv

ill
e,

 a
nd

 O
ak

la
nd

 th
at

 
ca

n 
be

 ta
pp

ed
 in

to
 w

ith
 th

e 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 

di
re

ct
 b

us
 s

er
vi

ce
 to

 th
es

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
. B

us
 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 a

 v
ia

bl
e 

an
d 

lo
w

 c
os

t o
pt

io
n 

fo
r s

up
pl

em
en

tin
g 

BA
RT

 s
er

vi
ce

, w
hi

ch
 

is
 o

ve
rs

ub
sc

rib
ed

. B
ec

au
se

 b
us

 s
er

vi
ce

 
is

 m
or

e 
fle

xi
bl

e 
th

an
 ra

il 
tra

ns
it,

 it
 c

an
 

be
 m

od
ifi

ed
 a

s 
de

m
an

d 
gr

ow
s 

an
d 

ne
w

 
se

rv
ic

es
 c

an
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
ea

si
ly

 a
nd

 
at

 lo
w

er
 c

os
t t

ha
n 

ra
il.

G
iv

en
 th

e 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

on
 I-

80
, i

t i
s 

cr
iti

ca
l n

ow
, m

or
e 

th
an

 e
ve

r, 
fo

r f
re

ew
ay

 
op

er
at

io
ns

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 E

xp
re

ss
 B

us
. F

or
 

Ex
pr

es
s 

Bu
s 

to
 b

e 
eff

ec
tiv

e 
th

er
e 

ha
s 

to
 b

e 
a 

hi
gh

 fu
nc

tio
ni

ng
 b

us
 la

ne
 o

n 
th

e 
fre

ew
ay

. 

Th
e 

Ba
y 

A
re

a 
do

es
 n

ot
 y

et
 h

av
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
on

 h
ow

 B
RT

 w
ill

 p
er

fo
rm

, 
bu

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 o

th
er

 c
iti

es
 h

as
 s

ho
w

n 
BR

T 
to

 b
e 

eff
ec

tiv
e 

in
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 tr
an

si
t 

rid
er

sh
ip

 b
y 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
tra

ns
it 

tra
ve

l 
tim

es
 a

nd
 re

lia
bi

lit
y.

 T
he

 tr
an

si
t m

ar
ke

t 
as

se
ss

m
en

t s
ho

w
ed

 th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

tra
ns

it 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r t

he
 tr

ip
s 

th
at

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
w

ith
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

ev
er

y 
da

y.
 T

he
 ri

de
rs

hi
p 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
 

in
di

ca
te

 th
at

 B
RT

 c
an

 w
or

k 
w

ith
in

 W
es

t 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

W
C

C
TA

C
’s

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

up
co

m
in

g 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
en

ue
 

M
ul

tim
od

al
 C

or
rid

or
 S

tu
dy

 w
ill

 a
dv

an
ce

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

he
 S

an
 

Pa
bl

o 
BR

T 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e.
 T

he
 s

uc
ce

ss
 o

f 
th

e 
Ra

pi
d 

Bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

on
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 
Av

en
ue

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
an

 e
ar

ly
 in

di
ca

tio
n 

of
 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
re

al
iz

ed
 w

ith
 B

RT
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
, b

ut
 th

e 
re

al
 a

dv
an

ta
ge

s 
fo

r t
ra

ns
it 

pr
io

rit
y 

w
ill

 
co

m
e 

on
ly

 w
ith

 p
rio

rit
y 

be
in

g 
gi

ve
n 

to
 

m
ov

in
g 

pe
op

le
 ra

th
er

 th
an

 c
ar

s 
al

on
g 

th
e 

BR
T 

co
rr

id
or

s.

W
ith

 th
e 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 o

pe
ni

ng
 o

f 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

fe
rr

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
in

 2
01

8,
 2

3r
d 

St
re

et
 w

ill
 b

ec
om

e 
an

 e
ve

n 
m

or
e 

im
po

rt
an

t t
ra

ns
it 

co
rr

id
or

 th
an

 it
 h

as
 

be
en

. T
he

 2
3r

d 
St

re
et

 B
RT

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 
fe

ed
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 th

e 
he

ar
t o

f R
ic

hm
on

d 
an

d 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

an
d 

m
ak

e 
tra

ve
lin

g 
w

ith
ou

t a
 c

ar
 m

or
e 

co
nv

en
ie

nt
 a

nd
 

qu
ic

ke
r. 

Ea
rli

er
 s

tu
di

es
 o

f c
om

m
ut

er
 ra

il 
su

gg
es

te
d 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 D
M

U
s 

as
 

a 
lo

w
 c

os
t a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
to

 c
on

ve
nt

io
na

l 
ra

il 
fo

r t
he

 U
PR

R 
or

 th
e 

BN
SF

 c
or

rid
or

s.
 

Th
e 

H
C

T 
st

ud
y 

co
nc

lu
de

d 
th

at
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

ra
ilr

oa
d 

rig
ht

-o
f-w

ay
 

(R
O

W
) i

s 
pr

ob
le

m
at

ic
 b

ec
au

se
 th

er
e 

is
 e

ith
er

 n
o 

(U
PR

R)
 o

r l
im

ite
d 

(B
N

SF
) 

ad
di

tio
na

l p
as

se
ng

er
 c

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 it

 is
 

ve
ry

 e
xp

en
si

ve
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 it
. C

re
at

io
n 

M
ov

in
g 

Fo
rw

ar
d

6
Ex

pr
es

s 
Bu

s

B
us

 R
ap

id
 T

ra
ns

it
C

om
m

ut
er

 R
ai

l

DR
AF

T

7B-41



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
40

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

of
 a

 n
ew

 p
as

se
ng

er
 ra

il 
RO

W
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

pr
oh

ib
iti

ve
ly

 e
xp

en
si

ve
 a

nd
 w

ou
ld

 li
ke

ly
 

in
cu

r c
os

ts
 s

im
ila

r t
o 

BA
RT

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
to

po
gr

ap
hy

 o
f t

he
 s

tu
dy

 a
re

a.
 C

ha
ng

es
 to

 
pa

ss
en

ge
r c

ap
ac

ity
 a

ls
o 

in
vo

lv
e 

le
ng

th
y 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 w

ith
 th

e 
ra

il 
ow

ne
rs

 to
 

se
cu

re
 n

ew
 p

as
se

ng
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 ri
gh

ts
.

W
hi

le
 e

xp
an

di
ng

 c
ap

ac
ity

 o
n 

on
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ra

ilr
oa

ds
 m

ay
 b

e 
a 

w
or

th
w

hi
le

 
pu

rs
ui

t, 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
is

 o
nl

y 
on

e 
pi

ec
e 

of
 th

e 
pu

zz
le

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 re
al

iz
e 

th
e 

go
al

. W
C

C
TA

C
 c

an
 s

er
ve

 
as

 a
 p

ar
tn

er
 a

nd
 a

dv
oc

at
e 

fo
r s

uc
h 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. A
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

es
e 

ob
st

ac
le

s,
 th

e 
H

C
T 

st
ud

y 
fo

cu
se

d 
on

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
co

m
m

ut
er

 ra
il 

sy
st

em
 b

y 
th

e 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 a
 n

ew
 H

er
cu

le
s 

st
at

io
n 

(R
IT

C
), 

an
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t t

ha
t h

as
 a

lre
ad

y 
be

en
 

ad
va

nc
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ity

 o
f H

er
cu

le
s,

 a
nd

 
ev

al
ua

tin
g 

fa
re

 s
ub

si
di

es
 fo

r s
ho

rt
 

di
st

an
ce

 tr
ip

s 
fo

r W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

re
si

de
nt

s.

Th
e 

H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
St

ud
y 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 th

at
 B

A
RT

 is
 fe

as
ib

le
 in

 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y,
 b

ut
 v

er
y 

ex
pe

ns
iv

e 
to

 
im

pl
em

en
t. 

BA
RT

 d
oe

s 
ha

ve
 s

om
e 

su
pp

or
t f

ro
m

 lo
ca

l j
ur

is
di

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

, b
ut

 th
er

e 
is

 a
ls

o 
co

nc
er

n 
ab

ou
t 

th
e 

hi
gh

 c
os

t o
f p

ro
vi

di
ng

 B
A

RT
 s

er
vi

ce
. 

A 
BA

RT
 e

xt
en

si
on

 fr
om

 th
e 

El
 C

er
rit

o 
de

l 
N

or
te

 s
ta

tio
n 

w
as

 n
ot

 p
op

ul
ar

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l 
offi

ci
al

s;
 th

ou
gh

 m
or

e 
di

re
ct

, i
t d

id
 n

ot
 

sa
ve

 m
on

ey
; r

ai
se

d 
op

er
at

io
na

l c
on

ce
rn

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 s
pl

it 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

ith
 B

A
RT

; 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o

nl
y 

m
in

or
 ti

m
e 

sa
vi

ng
s;

 a
nd

 
by

pa
ss

ed
 th

e 
m

aj
or

 a
ct

iv
ity

 c
en

te
rs

 in
 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
an

d 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o.

 A
 d

ec
is

io
n 

w
as

 

m
ad

e 
to

 fo
cu

s 
on

 a
n 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
fro

m
 th

e 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

St
at

io
n.

G
iv

en
 th

e 
co

m
pl

ex
iti

es
 a

nd
 c

ha
lle

ng
es

 
of

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l r
ou

te
s 

an
d 

th
e 

co
st

, 
qu

es
tio

ns
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 o
f t

he
 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ra
is

ed
. I

f a
 B

A
RT

 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

is
 to

 b
e 

fu
rt

he
r p

ur
su

ed
, t

he
re

 
ar

e 
fu

nd
am

en
ta

l i
ss

ue
s 

th
at

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d:
  

1) 
ho

w
 d

oe
s 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

cr
ea

te
 a

 
fo

cu
se

d,
 e

nt
hu

si
as

tic
, a

nd
 p

er
si

st
en

t 
vo

ic
e 

fo
r a

 B
A

RT
 e

xt
en

si
on

  
2)

 h
ow

 w
ill

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

cr
ea

te
 a

 v
ia

bl
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r a

 B
A

RT
 e

xt
en

si
on

 
(a

 s
in

gl
e 

st
at

io
n 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 B
A

RT
 to

 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

m
ig

ht
 b

e 
w

or
th

 e
xp

lo
rin

g 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 g

iv
en

 th
e 

lo
w

er
 c

os
t a

nd
 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 g
re

at
er

 p
ol

iti
ca

l s
up

po
rt

; 
th

is
 in

cr
em

en
ta

l m
ov

em
en

t o
f B

A
RT

 is
 a

 
co

m
m

on
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

) a
nd

  
3)

 h
ow

 w
ill

 th
is

 n
ew

 e
xt

en
si

on
 fi

t w
ith

 
BA

RT
’s

 p
ro

gr
am

 fo
r c

or
e 

sy
st

em
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.  

BA
RT

’s
 s

tru
gg

le
s 

to
 fu

nd
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

ei
r c

or
e 

sy
st

em
, 

w
hi

ch
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

at
 c

ru
sh

 
lo

ad
s 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
pe

ak
 tr

av
el

 p
er

io
ds

, 
m

ak
e 

th
e 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 B
A

RT
 e

ve
n 

m
or

e 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g.
 N

ew
 s

ta
tio

ns
 c

an
 b

e 
ad

de
d,

 
bu

t i
f t

he
 tr

ai
ns

 a
re

 a
t c

ap
ac

ity
, i

t w
ill

 n
ot

 
be

 a
 v

al
ua

bl
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r W

es
t C

ou
nt

y.
 

Th
e 

BA
RT

 e
xt

en
si

on
, a

s 
w

ith
 a

ll 
of

 th
es

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
s,

 n
ee

d 
lo

ca
l c

ha
m

pi
on

s 
to

 s
uc

ce
ed

.

6.
2 

W
ha

t i
s 

th
e 

Fu
nd

in
g 

St
ra

te
gy

?
If 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

is
 to

 m
ak

e 
so

m
e 

of
 

th
es

e 
tra

ns
it 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
 re

al
ity

, a
 

so
un

d 
fu

nd
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 is

 n
ee

de
d.

 
Th

e 
lis

t o
f i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 id
en

tifi
ed

 
in

 th
e 

H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
St

ud
y 

w
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l i

nv
es

tm
en

t 
in

 u
pc

om
in

g 
ye

ar
s.

 T
he

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 

fu
nd

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 is
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

 
gr

ea
te

st
 c

ha
lle

ng
es

 fo
r i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

. T
he

 
st

ud
y 

id
en

tifi
ed

 th
e 

fu
nd

 s
ou

rc
es

 w
ith

 
th

e 
gr

ea
te

st
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 g

en
er

at
in

g 
tra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

re
ve

nu
e 

fo
r W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 lo

ok
 a

t 
fu

nd
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 fo

r e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

.

In
 g

en
er

al
, t

he
 s

ha
re

 o
f f

ed
er

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 to

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

is
 d

ec
re

as
in

g 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

co
m

pe
tit

io
n 

fo
r 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fu

nd
s 

is
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

. A
 g

re
at

 
de

al
 o

f u
nc

er
ta

in
ty

 a
ls

o 
ex

is
ts

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
ne

w
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 s
ee

ki
ng

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

 re
du

ce
 fe

de
ra

l s
pe

nd
in

g.
 

Th
is

 m
ay

 c
ha

ng
e 

th
e 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 

fe
de

ra
l f

un
ds

 in
 th

e 
sh

or
t t

er
m

, b
ut

 a
s 

th
e 

tim
ef

ra
m

e 
fo

r f
un

di
ng

 th
es

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 

ex
te

nd
s 

be
yo

nd
 th

e 
te

rm
(s

) o
f t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
th

er
e 

m
ay

 s
til

l b
e 

lo
ng

er
 

te
rm

 fe
de

ra
l f

un
di

ng
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

St
at

e 
fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

al
so

 o
ve

rs
ub

sc
rib

ed
 in

 
m

an
y 

pr
og

ra
m

s,
 a

lth
ou

gh
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

’s
 

ca
p-

an
d-

tra
de

 p
ro

gr
am

 o
ffe

rs
 a

 
po

te
nt

ia
l n

ew
 s

ou
rc

e 
of

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
fu

nd
in

g.
 T

he
 p

ro
gr

am
 is

 a
 m

ar
ke

t-b
as

ed
 

re
gu

la
tio

n 
th

at
 is

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 re
du

ce
 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 g

as
es

 (G
H

G
s)

 fr
om

 m
ul

tip
le

 
so

ur
ce

s 
by

 s
et

tin
g 

a 
st

at
ew

id
e 

lim
it 

on
 

so
ur

ce
s 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

an
d 

es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

 a
 p

ric
e 

si
gn

al
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 d
riv

e 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

cl
ea

ne
r 

fu
el

s 
an

d 
m

or
e 

effi
ci

en
t u

se
 o

f e
ne

rg
y.

 
Th

e 
re

ve
nu

e 
flo

w
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

vo
la

til
e 

to
 

da
te

 a
nd

 c
om

pe
tit

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 fu

nd
s 

w
ill

 
al

so
 b

e 
m

or
e 

in
te

ns
e 

un
de

r t
he

 n
ew

 
po

lit
ic

al
 c

lim
at

e.
 T

he
se

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 re

qu
ire

 
hi

gh
er

 le
ve

ls
 o

f fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

by
 

re
gi

on
al

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l a
ge

nc
ie

s 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

pr
oj

ec
t d

el
iv

er
y.

A
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 
lis

t o
f f

ed
er

al
, s

ta
te

, r
eg

io
na

l, 
an

d 
lo

ca
l 

fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s 

w
as

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

to
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
w

hi
ch

 s
ou

rc
es

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
th

e 
m

os
t v

ia
bl

e 
to

 fu
nd

 h
ig

h-
ca

pa
ci

ty
 

tra
ns

it 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. T

he
 re

su
lts

 a
re

 
do

cu
m

en
te

d 
in

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 M

em
or

an
du

m
 

#1
4,

 F
un

di
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

.24
  E

va
lu

at
io

n 
cr

ite
ria

 in
cl

ud
ed

 re
ve

nu
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l, 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 k

ee
p 

pa
ce

 w
ith

 in
fla

tio
n,

 e
qu

ity
, 

ne
xu

s 
w

ith
 b

en
efi

ci
ar

ie
s,

 le
ga

l a
ut

ho
rit

y,
 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
co

st
s,

 a
nd

 p
ol

iti
ca

l 
su

pp
or

t.

Ta
bl

e 
6-

1 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ta

bl
e 

6-
4 

su
m

m
ar

iz
e 

th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 b

y 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
fo

r t
hr

ee
 fu

nd
in

g 
sc

en
ar

io
s,

 w
hi

ch
 

as
su

m
e 

hi
gh

, m
od

er
at

e,
 a

nd
 n

o 
fe

de
ra

l 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n.

 

In
 th

e 
sh

or
t-t

er
m

, l
oc

al
 a

nd
 re

gi
on

al
 

fu
nd

in
g 

ar
e 

th
e 

m
os

t v
ia

bl
e 

op
tio

ns
 to

 
fu

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 lo

w
-

co
st

 c
ap

ita
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, s
uc

h 
as

 b
us

 
ac

qu
is

iti
on

 o
r t

ra
ns

it 
pr

io
rit

y 
tre

at
m

en
ts

. 
Lo

ca
l a

ge
nc

ie
s 

an
d 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
ns

 c
an

 
m

ov
e 

ah
ea

d 
w

ith
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

ou
t 

ha
vi

ng
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 m
or

e 
st

rin
ge

nt
 c

rit
er

ia
 

th
at

 a
pp

ly
 fo

r c
om

pe
tit

iv
e 

re
gi

on
al

, s
ta

te
, 

an
d 

fe
de

ra
l f

un
di

ng
 s

ou
rc

es
. L

oc
al

 s
al

es
 

ta
x 

m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
re

gi
on

al
 d

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

 
fu

nd
s 

of
te

n 
se

rv
e 

as
 th

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r p
ro

je
ct

 in
iti

at
io

n.

BA
RT

 E
xt

en
si

on

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

DR
AF

T

7B-42



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
41

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

1 
– 

Ex
pr

es
s 

B
us

 
Re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l f

un
di

ng
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ta
pp

ed
 to

 in
iti

at
e 

ea
rly

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 o

n 
Ex

pr
es

s 
Bu

s 
(s

ee
 T

ab
le

 6
-1

). 
Sh

or
t-t

er
m

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 s

uc
h 

as
 b

us
 p

rio
rit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
fre

qu
en

t s
er

vi
ce

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
fu

nd
ed

 fr
om

 
re

ad
ily

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l 

so
ur

ce
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 d
ev

el
op

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

fro
m

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

ST
M

P.
 M

ed
iu

m
-te

rm
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
fu

nd
ed

 fr
om

 a
 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
st

at
e 

ca
p-

an
d-

tra
de

 
pr

og
ra

m
 a

nd
 re

gi
on

al
/lo

ca
l s

ou
rc

es
. 

Th
e 

ca
p-

an
d-

tra
de

 p
ro

gr
am

 m
ay

 
pr

ov
id

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
5 

an
d 

50
 p

er
ce

nt
 o

f 
th

e 
fu

nd
in

g,
 d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t’s

 
co

m
pe

tit
iv

en
es

s,
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 re

ve
nu

es
, 

an
d 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 re
au

th
or

iz
at

io
n.

 T
he

 
re

m
ai

nd
er

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
w

ith
 

re
gi

on
al

/lo
ca

l f
un

di
ng

 s
ou

rc
es

.

Re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
fe

de
ra

l f
un

di
ng

 
so

ur
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 E
xp

re
ss

 B
us

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

re
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
In

ve
st

m
en

t G
en

er
at

in
g 

Ec
on

om
ic

 R
et

ur
n 

(T
IG

ER
) f

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 S

ec
tio

n 
53

39
 B

us
 

an
d 

Bu
s 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
gr

an
ts

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
is

 m
os

t a
lig

ne
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
 c

rit
er

ia
 

fo
r t

he
se

 p
ro

gr
am

s.
 U

nd
er

 a
 h

ig
h 

fe
de

ra
l 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
sc

en
ar

io
, t

he
se

 g
ra

nt
s 

co
ul

d 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 p
ro

vi
de

 u
p 

to
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
$2

5 
m

ill
io

n 
in

 fu
nd

in
g,

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 

sh
ar

es
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 re

gi
on

al
/lo

ca
l 

so
ur

ce
s.

 T
he

se
 fe

de
ra

l f
un

di
ng

 le
ve

ls
 a

re
 

m
uc

h 
le

ss
 th

an
 th

e 
80

 p
er

ce
nt

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

m
ax

im
um

 s
ha

re
 o

f f
ed

er
al

 fu
nd

in
g,

 b
ut

 
ar

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

sc
al

e 
of

 g
ra

nt
s 

fo
r 

th
es

e 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

aw
ar

de
d 

by
 th

e 
fe

de
ra

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t i
n 

re
ce

nt
 y

ea
rs

.

B
as

e 
Ye

ar
 

D
ol

la
rs

 
(m

ill
io

ns
)

To
ta

l 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

C
ap

ita
l C

os
t

Fe
de

ra
l F

un
di

ng
St

at
e 

Fu
nd

in
g

Re
gi

on
al

 / 
Lo

ca
l F

un
di

ng

TI
G

ER
 G

ra
nt

s
53

39
 G

ra
nt

s
C

ap
 a

nd
 T

ra
de

C
om

bi
na

tio
n

Lo
w

 E
nd

H
ig

h 
En

d
Lo

w
 E

nd
H

ig
h 

En
d

Sc
en

ar
io

 1
: H

ig
h 

Fe
de

ra
l (

35
%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

1
$2

45
 

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$1

1
 

$1
1(

10
0%

)

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$9
1

$5
 (5

%
)

$4
6 

(5
0%

)
 

$4
6

(5
0%

)
 

$8
7

(9
5%

)

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$1
43

 
$2

5 
(17

%
)

$2
5 

(17
%

)
 

$9
3

 (6
5%

)
 

$9
3

(6
5%

)

Sc
en

ar
io

 2
: M

od
er

at
e 

Fe
de

ra
l (

20
%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

1
$2

45
 

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$1

1
 

$1
1(

10
0%

)

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$9
1

$5
 (5

%
)

$4
6 

(5
0%

)
 

$4
6

(5
0%

)
 

$8
7

(9
5%

)

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$1
43

$1
5 

(10
%

)
$1

5.
0 

(10
%

)
 

$1
13

(8
0%

)
 

$1
13

(8
0%

)

Sc
en

ar
io

 3
: N

o 
Fe

de
ra

l (
0%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

1
$2

45
 

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$1

1
 

$1
1(

10
0%

)

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$9
1 

$5
 (5

%
)

$4
6 

(5
0%

)
 

$4
6

(5
0%

)
 

$8
7

(9
5%

)

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$1
43

 
 

$1
43

(10
0%

)
 

$1
43

(10
0%

)

Ta
bl

e 
6-

1:
 F

un
di

ng
 A

pp
ro

ac
h 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

1 –
 E

xp
re

ss
 B

us
 ($

 m
ill

io
ns

)

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

DR
AF

T

7B-43



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
42

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

A
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 2
 a

nd
 3

 - 
B

RT
BR

T 
sh

or
t-t

er
m

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
ill

 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 w

ith
 re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 

lo
ca

l s
ou

rc
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pe
r 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 o
r W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
ST

M
P 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

m
pa

ct
 fe

es
. M

ed
iu

m
-te

rm
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 re

ce
iv

e 
up

 to
 5

0 
pe

rc
en

t o
f t

he
 fu

nd
in

g 
fro

m
 S

m
al

l S
ta

rt
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
m

ai
nd

er
 fr

om
 re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 

lo
ca

l s
ou

rc
es

 to
 fu

nd
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 s

uc
h 

as
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 b
us

-
on

ly
 la

ne
s 

an
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

at
 th

e 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 a
nd

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
rs

. 

Lo
ng

-te
rm

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
fu

nd
ed

 fr
om

 a
 c

om
bi

na
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ca
p-

an
d-

tra
de

 p
ro

gr
am

 a
nd

 re
gi

on
al

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l 
so

ur
ce

s.
 T

he
 c

ap
-a

nd
-tr

ad
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 
m

ay
 p

ro
vi

de
 b

et
w

ee
n 

5 
pe

rc
en

t a
nd

 5
0 

pe
rc

en
t o

f t
he

 fu
nd

in
g.

 T
he

 re
m

ai
nd

er
 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
w

ith
 re

gi
on

al
 

an
d 

lo
ca

l f
un

di
ng

 s
ou

rc
es

. T
ab

le
 6

-2
 a

nd
 

Ta
bl

e 
6-

3 
pr

es
en

t t
he

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
un

di
ng

 
so

ur
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 B
RT

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 w
ith

 
th

re
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

sc
en

ar
io

s,
 h

ig
h,

 m
od

er
at

e,
 

an
d 

no
 fe

de
ra

l p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n.
 M

od
er

at
e 

fe
de

ra
l p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

is
 p

ro
ba

bl
y 

a 
m

or
e 

re
al

is
tic

 s
ce

na
rio

 fo
r t

he
se

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

.

B
as

e 
Ye

ar
 

D
ol

la
rs

 
(m

ill
io

ns
)

To
ta

l 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

C
ap

ita
l C

os
t

Fe
de

ra
l F

un
di

ng
St

at
e 

Fu
nd

in
g

Re
gi

on
al

 / 
Lo

ca
l F

un
di

ng

Sm
al

l S
ta

rt
s 

G
ra

nt
s

C
ap

 a
nd

 T
ra

de
C

om
bi

na
tio

n

Lo
w

 E
nd

H
ig

h 
En

d
Lo

w
 E

nd
H

ig
h 

En
d

Sc
en

ar
io

 1
: H

ig
h 

Fe
de

ra
l (

50
%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

2
$2

43

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$3

 
$3

(10
0%

)
 

$3
(10

0%
)

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$1
80

$9
0 

(5
0%

)
 

$9
0

 (5
0%

)
 

$9
0

(5
0%

)

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$6
0

$3
 (5

%
)

$3
0 

(5
0%

)
 

$3
0

(5
0%

)
 

$5
7

(9
5%

)

Sc
en

ar
io

 2
: M

od
er

at
e 

Fe
de

ra
l (

30
%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

2
$2

43

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$3

 
$3

(10
0%

)
 

$3
 (1

00
%

)

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$1
80

$5
4 

(3
0%

)
 

$1
26

(7
0%

)
 

$1
26

(7
0%

)

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$6
0

$3
 (5

%
)

$3
0 

(5
0%

)
 

$3
0

(5
0%

)
 

$5
7

(9
5%

)

Sc
en

ar
io

 3
: N

o 
Fe

de
ra

l (
0%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

2
$2

45
 

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$1

1 
 

$3
(10

0%
)

 
$3

(10
0%

)

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$9
1 

 
$1

80
(10

0%
)

 
$1

80
(10

0%
)

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$1
43

 
$3

 (5
%

)
$3

0 
(5

0%
)

 
$3

0
(5

0%
)

 
$5

7
(9

5%
)

Ta
bl

e 
6-

2:
 F

un
di

ng
 A

pp
ro

ac
h 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

2 
– 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o/
M

ac
do

na
ld

 B
RT

 ($
 m

ill
io

ns
) 

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

DR
AF

T

7B-44



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
43

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

A
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 2
 a

nd
 3

 - 
B

RT
(C

on
tin

ue
d)

Ta
bl

e 
6-

3:
 F

un
di

ng
 A

pp
ro

ac
h 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

3 
– 

23
rd

 S
tr

ee
t B

RT
 ($

 m
ill

io
ns

) 

B
as

e 
Ye

ar
 

D
ol

la
rs

 
(m

ill
io

ns
)

To
ta

l 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

C
ap

ita
l C

os
t

Fe
de

ra
l F

un
di

ng
St

at
e 

Fu
nd

in
g

Re
gi

on
al

 / 
Lo

ca
l F

un
di

ng

Sm
al

l S
ta

rt
s 

G
ra

nt
s

C
ap

 a
nd

 T
ra

de
C

om
bi

na
tio

n

Lo
w

 E
nd

H
ig

h 
En

d
Lo

w
 E

nd
H

ig
h 

En
d

Sc
en

ar
io

 1
: H

ig
h 

Fe
de

ra
l (

50
%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

3
$1

79

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$1

7
 

$1
7

(10
0%

)
 

$1
7

(10
0%

)

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$9
9

$5
0 

(5
0%

)
 

$5
0

(5
0%

)
 

$5
0

(5
0%

)

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$6
3

$3
 (5

%
)

$3
2 

(5
0%

)
 

$3
2

(5
0%

)
 

$6
0

(9
5%

)

Sc
en

ar
io

 2
: M

od
er

at
e 

Fe
de

ra
l (

30
%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

3
$1

79

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$1

7
 

$1
7

(10
0%

)
 

$1
7

(10
0%

)

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$9
9

$3
0 

(3
0%

)
 

$6
9

(7
0%

)
 

$6
9

(7
0%

)

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$6
3

$3
 (5

%
)

$3
2 

(5
0%

)
 

$3
2

(5
0%

)
 

$6
0

(9
5%

)

Sc
en

ar
io

 3
: N

o 
Fe

de
ra

l (
0%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

3
$1

79

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$1

7
 

$1
7

(10
0%

)
 

$1
7 

(10
0%

)

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$9
9

 
$9

9
(10

0%
)

 
$9

9
(10

0%
)

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$6
3

$3
 (5

%
)

$3
2 

(5
0%

)
 

$3
2

(5
0%

)
 

$6
0

(9
5%

)

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

DR
AF

T

7B-45



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
44

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

4 
- C

om
m

ut
er

 R
ai

l –
 R

IT
C

Ta
bl

e 
6-

4 
pr

es
en

ts
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

un
di

ng
 

so
ur

ce
s,

 w
ith

 h
ig

h,
 m

od
er

at
e 

or
 n

o 
fe

de
ra

l p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n,
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

Re
gi

on
al

 In
te

rm
od

al
 T

ra
ns

it 
C

en
te

r 
co

m
po

ne
nt

 o
f t

hi
s 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e.

 M
uc

h 
of

 
th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
 h

as
 a

lre
ad

y 
se

cu
re

d 
fu

nd
in

g;
 

th
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 u

nf
un

de
d 

am
ou

nt
 is

 $
68

.6
 

m
ill

io
n.

 

TI
G

ER
 g

ra
nt

 fu
nd

in
g 

co
ul

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

15
 to

 2
5 

pe
rc

en
t o

f 
th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 7
5 

to
 

85
 p

er
ce

nt
 fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

a 
m

ix
 o

f s
ta

te
/

re
gi

on
al

/lo
ca

l s
ou

rc
es

. T
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

H
er

cu
le

s 
ap

pl
ie

d 
fo

r a
 T

IG
ER

 g
ra

nt
 fo

r 
th

e 
RI

TC
 in

 th
e 

20
16

 ro
un

d 
of

 g
ra

nt
s,

 b
ut

 
w

as
 n

ot
 s

el
ec

te
d.

 W
ith

 a
 ra

tin
g 

in
 th

e 
to

p 
th

re
e 

pe
rc

en
t o

f g
ra

nt
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
, t

he
re

 
is

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 s
uc

ce
ss

 w
ith

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 
to

 th
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. T
he

 C
ity

 m
ay

 s
ee

k 
a 

de
br

ie
f f

ro
m

 U
SD

O
T 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
ho

w
 to

 re
fin

e 
its

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 b

e 
m

or
e 

co
m

pe
tit

iv
e 

in
 fu

tu
re

 T
IG

ER
 g

ra
nt

 c
yc

le
s.

 

B
as

e 
Ye

ar
 D

ol
la

rs
 

(m
ill

io
ns

)

To
ta

l 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

C
ap

ita
l 

C
os

t

Fe
de

ra
l F

un
di

ng
C

om
m

itt
ed

St
at

e/
Re

gi
on

al
/ L

oc
al

 
Fu

nd
in

g*

U
ni

de
nt

ifi
ed

Re
gi

on
al

/ L
oc

al
 

Fu
nd

in
g*

TI
G

ER
 G

ra
nt

s
Va

rio
us

 S
ou

rc
es

C
om

bi
na

tio
n

Sc
en

ar
io

 1
: H

ig
h 

Fe
de

ra
l (

25
%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

4
$6

9

Sh
or

t/M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$6
9

$1
7 

(2
5%

)
$4

1 (
60

.3
%

)
$1

0 
(14

.7
%

)

Sc
en

ar
io

 2
: M

od
er

at
e 

Fe
de

ra
l (

15
%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

4
$6

9

Sh
or

t/M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$6
9

$1
0 

(15
%

)
$4

1 (
60

.3
%

)
$1

7 
(2

4.
7%

)

Sc
en

ar
io

 3
: N

o 
Fe

de
ra

l (
0%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

4
$6

9

Sh
or

t/M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$6
9

$4
1 (

60
.3

%
)

$2
7 

(3
9.

7%
)

Ta
bl

e 
6-

4:
 F

un
di

ng
 A

pp
ro

ac
h 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

4 
– 

RI
TC

 ($
 m

ill
io

ns
)

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

N
ot

e:
 A

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
$4

1.4
 m

ill
io

n 
in

 fu
nd

in
g 

ha
s 

al
re

ad
y 

be
en

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 to

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t b

y 
th

e 
St

at
e 

of
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

, r
eg

io
na

l p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d 
th

e 
C

ity
 o

f H
er

cu
le

s,
 le

av
in

g 
a 

fu
nd

in
g 

ga
p 

of
 $

27
.2

 m
ill

io
n.

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

DR
AF

T

7B-46



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
45

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

A
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 6
A

 a
nd

 6
B 

– 
BA

RT
 

Ex
te

ns
io

n
Ta

bl
e 

6-
5 

an
d 

Ta
bl

e 
6-

6 
su

m
m

ar
iz

e 
th

e 
co

m
bi

na
tio

n 
of

 fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r t

he
 c

ap
ita

l c
os

ts
 o

f A
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 6
A 

an
d 

6B
. T

hr
ee

 fu
nd

in
g 

sc
en

ar
io

s 
ar

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

as
su

m
in

g 
hi

gh
, m

od
er

at
e,

 a
nd

 
no

 fe
de

ra
l p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n.

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 fo

r t
he

se
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 

fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s 

re
ad

ily
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

at
 th

e 
re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l l

ev
el

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
ST

M
P.

 T
he

se
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

e 
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l r

ev
ie

w
 to

 s
el

ec
t a

lig
nm

en
t 

an
d 

po
te

nt
ia

l s
ta

tio
n 

lo
ca

tio
ns

, a
nd

 
ea

rly
 ri

gh
t-o

f-w
ay

 a
cq

ui
si

tio
n 

(w
ith

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
ar

an
ce

).

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, b
eg

in
ni

ng
 

of
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n,
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 a

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ca

p-
an

d-
tra

de
 p

ro
gr

am
 a

nd
 re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l 

so
ur

ce
s.

 T
he

 c
ap

-a
nd

-tr
ad

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 

m
ay

 p
ro

vi
de

 b
et

w
ee

n 
5 

pe
rc

en
t a

nd
 5

0 
pe

rc
en

t o
f t

he
 fu

nd
in

g.
 T

he
 re

m
ai

nd
er

 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

w
ith

 re
gi

on
al

 
an

d 
lo

ca
l f

un
di

ng
 s

ou
rc

es
.

N
ew

 S
ta

rt
s 

gr
an

ts
 c

ou
ld

 s
up

po
rt

 a
 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 c

os
ts

 o
f t

he
 

BA
RT

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

. I
n 

pr
ac

tic
e,

 h
ow

ev
er

, 
gr

an
t a

m
ou

nt
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
m

uc
h 

le
ss

 th
an

 
th

e 
st

at
ut

or
y 

m
ax

im
um

s,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 fo
r 

ve
ry

 c
os

tly
 p

ro
je

ct
s.

 H
is

to
ric

al
ly

, N
ew

 
St

ar
ts

 a
pp

lic
an

ts
 h

av
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 g
ra

nt
s 

eq
ua

l t
o 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
50

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l c

os
t o

f p
ro

je
ct

s,
 b

ut
 la

te
ly

, 
du

e 
to

 c
on

st
ra

in
ed

 n
at

ur
e 

of
 fe

de
ra

l 
fu

nd
s,

 th
e 

fe
de

ra
l p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

ra
te

 

in
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

w
ith

 a
 c

os
t g

re
at

er
 th

an
 $

1 
bi

lli
on

 h
as

 ra
ng

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

30
 a

nd
 4

5 
pe

rc
en

t. 
To

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

at
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

fe
de

ra
l g

ra
nt

 fu
nd

s 
aw

ar
de

d 
is

 lo
w

er
, t

he
 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 s

ha
re

 o
f c

ap
ita

l c
os

ts
 a

nd
 a

ll 
O

&M
 c

os
ts

 w
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 g
re

at
er

 s
ta

te
 

an
d 

lo
ca

l f
un

di
ng

. I
f a

 B
A

RT
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

er
e 

to
 s

uc
ce

ed
 in

 s
ec

ur
in

g 
a 

fe
de

ra
l N

ew
 

St
ar

ts
 g

ra
nt

 e
qu

al
 to

 3
0 

pe
rc

en
t o

f t
he

 
pr

oj
ec

t c
os

t, 
th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 7
0 

pe
rc

en
t 

or
 a

s 
m

uc
h 

as
 $

2 
bi

lli
on

 w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 

be
 c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
st

at
e,

 re
gi

on
al

, a
nd

 lo
ca

l 

fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 re

qu
ire

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t t

o 
be

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 a

s 
a 

re
gi

on
al

 
pr

io
rit

y 
to

 g
et

 th
e 

la
rg

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f s

ta
te

, 
re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l f

un
ds

 n
ee

de
d.

In
 th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
- a

nd
 lo

ng
-te

rm
, o

nc
e 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t i

s 
m

or
e 

cl
ea

rly
 d

efi
ne

d 
an

d 
a 

sc
he

du
le

 fo
r p

ro
je

ct
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 id

en
tifi

ed
, 

fe
de

ra
l a

nd
 s

ta
te

 fu
nd

s 
be

co
m

e 
m

or
e 

vi
ab

le
 fu

nd
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 if
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
pr

ov
es

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pe

tit
iv

e 
in

 te
rm

s 

of
 ri

de
rs

hi
p,

 c
os

t-e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s,
 a

nd
 

re
gi

on
al

 o
r s

ta
te

w
id

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e.
 T

he
 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 s
ho

w
 a

n 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

re
lie

vi
ng

 
tra

ve
l d

em
an

d 
on

 th
e 

I-8
0 

co
rr

id
or

, w
hi

ch
 

is
 o

f r
eg

io
na

l a
nd

 s
ta

te
w

id
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e,

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
cr

iti
ca

l f
ac

to
r i

n 
ad

va
nc

in
g 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 id
en

tifi
ed

 in
 th

e 
st

ud
y 

fo
r 

fu
nd

in
g.

B
as

e 
Ye

ar
 

D
ol

la
rs

 
(m

ill
io

ns
)

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 

C
ap

ita
l C

os
t

Fe
de

ra
l F

un
di

ng
St

at
e 

Fu
nd

in
g

Re
gi

on
al

 / 
Lo

ca
l F

un
di

ng

N
ew

 S
ta

rt
s 

G
ra

nt
s

C
ap

 a
nd

 T
ra

de
C

om
bi

na
tio

n

Lo
w

 E
nd

H
ig

h 
En

d
Lo

w
 E

nd
H

ig
h 

En
d

Sc
en

ar
io

 1
: H

ig
h 

Fe
de

ra
l (

50
%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

6A
$3

,5
82

 

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$5

6 
 

$5
6

(10
0%

)
$5

6
(10

0%
)

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$7
4 

$3
 (5

%
)

28
 (5

0%
)

 
$4

6 
(5

0%
)

$7
1

(9
5%

)

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$3
,4

52
 

$1
,7

26
 (5

0%
)

 
$1

,7
26

 
(5

0%
)

$1
,7

26
(5

0%
)

Sc
en

ar
io

 2
: M

od
er

at
e 

Fe
de

ra
l (

30
%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

6A
$3

,5
82

 

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$5

6 
$5

6
(10

0%
)

$5
6

(10
0%

)

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$7
4 

$3
 (5

%
)

28
 (5

0%
)

$4
6

(5
0%

)
$7

1
(9

5%
)

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$3
,4

52
 

$1
,0

36
 (3

0%
)

$2
,4

16
(7

0%
)

$2
,4

16
(7

0%
)

Sc
en

ar
io

 3
: N

o 
Fe

de
ra

l (
0%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

6A
$3

,5
82

 

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$5

6 
$5

6
(10

0%
)

$5
6

(10
0%

)

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$7
4 

$3
 (5

%
)

28
 (5

0%
)

$4
6

(5
0%

)
$7

1
(9

5%
)

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$3
,4

52
 

$3
,4

52
(10

0%
)

$3
,4

52
 (1

00
%

)

Ta
bl

e 
6-

5:
 F

un
di

ng
 A

pp
ro

ac
h 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

6A
 –

 B
A

RT
 E

xt
en

si
on

 v
ia

 R
um

ril
l B

ou
le

va
rd

 ($
 m

ill
io

ns
) 

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

DR
AF

T

7B-47



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
46

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

A
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 6
A

 a
nd

 6
B 

– 
BA

RT
 

Ex
te

ns
io

n
(C

on
tin

ue
d)

B
as

e 
Ye

ar
 

D
ol

la
rs

 
(m

ill
io

ns
)

To
ta

l 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

C
ap

ita
l C

os
t

Fe
de

ra
l F

un
di

ng
St

at
e 

Fu
nd

in
g

Re
gi

on
al

 / 
Lo

ca
l F

un
di

ng

N
ew

 S
ta

rt
s 

G
ra

nt
s

C
ap

 a
nd

 T
ra

de
C

om
bi

na
tio

n

Lo
w

 E
nd

H
ig

h 
En

d
Lo

w
 E

nd
H

ig
h 

En
d

Sc
en

ar
io

 1
: H

ig
h 

Fe
de

ra
l (

50
%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

6B
$4

,15
6 

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$6

9 
$6

9
(10

0%
)

$6
9

(10
0%

)

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$9
2 

$5
 (5

%
)

$4
6 

(5
0%

)
$4

6
(5

0%
)

$8
7

(9
5%

)

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$3
,9

95
 

$1
,9

98
 (5

0%
)

$1
,9

98
(5

0%
)

$1
,9

98
(5

0%
)

Sc
en

ar
io

 2
: M

od
er

at
e 

Fe
de

ra
l (

30
%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

6B
$4

,15
6 

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$6

9 
$6

9
(10

0%
)

$6
9

(10
0%

)

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$9
2 

$5
 (5

%
)

$4
6 

(5
0%

)
$4

6
(5

0%
)

$8
7

(9
5%

)

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$3
,9

95
 

$1
,19

9 
(3

0%
)

$2
,7

97
 (7

0%
)

$2
,7

97
(7

0%
)

Sc
en

ar
io

 3
: N

o 
Fe

de
ra

l (
0%

 s
ha

re
)

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

6B
$4

,15
6 

Sh
or

t-t
er

m
$6

9 
$6

9
(10

0%
)

$6
9

(10
0%

)

M
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

$9
2 

$5
 (5

%
)

$4
6 

(5
0%

)
$4

6
(5

0%
)

$8
7

(9
5%

)

Lo
ng

-te
rm

$3
,9

95
 

$3
,9

95
(10

0%
)

$3
,9

95
(10

0%
)

Ta
bl

e 
6-

6:
 F

un
di

ng
 A

pp
ro

ac
h 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

6B
 –

 B
A

RT
 E

xt
en

si
on

 v
ia

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 ($

 m
ill

io
ns

)  

So
ur

ce
: W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

DR
AF

T

7B-48



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
47

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

6.
3 

W
ha

t W
ill

 it
 T

ak
e 

to
 

A
dv

an
ce

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

?
Th

is
 F

in
al

 R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
St

ud
y 

is
 in

te
nd

ed
 

to
 s

er
ve

 a
s 

a 
re

so
ur

ce
 fo

r e
le

ct
ed

 o
ffi

ci
al

s 
an

d 
st

aff
 a

s 
th

ey
 a

dv
an

ce
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

fo
r e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
id

en
tifi

ed
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
. 

Ad
va

nc
in

g 
an

y 
of

 th
es

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 w

ill
 

lik
el

y 
re

qu
ire

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
st

ep
s:

 •
W

or
ki

ng
 to

ge
th

er
 in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

in
 

su
pp

or
t o

f e
ac

h 
ot

he
rs

’ t
ra

ns
it 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. 
W

ith
 e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
lo

ca
l j

ur
is

di
ct

io
ns

 
ha

vi
ng

 s
pe

ci
fic

 tr
an

si
t n

ee
ds

, i
t i

s 
so

m
et

im
es

 d
iffi

cu
lt 

to
 s

ee
 b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
lo

ca
l v

ie
w

. I
f t

ra
ns

it 
is

 to
 b

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y, 

th
en

 lo
ca

l l
ea

de
rs

 w
ill

 
ne

ed
 to

 w
or

k 
to

ge
th

er
, t

hi
nk

 re
gi

on
al

ly
 

an
d 

ad
vo

ca
te

 to
ge

th
er

 fo
r p

ro
je

ct
s 

th
at

 c
an

 fo
rm

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 tr

an
si

t n
et

w
or

k 
fo

r W
es

t C
ou

nt
y. 

It 
ta

ke
s 

a 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 

co
m

m
itm

en
t a

nd
 h

ar
d 

w
or

k 
to

 re
al

iz
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 s
uc

h 
as

 a
 B

AR
T 

ex
te

ns
io

n.

 •
En

ga
gi

ng
 e

xe
cu

tiv
e 

le
ve

l l
ea

de
rs

hi
p 

at
 th

e 
re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l l

ev
el

s 
to

 ra
is

e 
th

e 
pr

ofi
le

 o
f t

he
 H

C
T 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
nd

 
ad

vo
ca

te
 fo

r t
ra

ns
it.

 It
 ta

ke
s 

m
or

e 
th

an
 

de
di

ca
te

d 
st

aff
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 s
up

po
rt 

to
 

im
pl

em
en

t a
 p

ro
je

ct
. W

ith
ou

t s
tro

ng
 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 fr

om
 e

le
ct

ed
 o

ffi
ci

al
s,

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 d

o 
no

t g
et

 b
ui

lt.
 S

uc
ce

ss
 o

f 
th

es
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 w
ill

 h
in

ge
 o

n 
ha

vi
ng

 
vo

ca
l c

ha
m

pi
on

s 
th

at
 s

up
po

rt 
th

ei
r 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
 G

et
tin

g 
a 

m
aj

or
 tr

an
si

t 
in

ve
st

m
en

t, 
lik

e 
BR

T 
se

rv
ic

e 
on

 2
3r

d 
St

re
et

, i
n 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd
 ta

ke
s 

m
an

y 
ye

ar
s 

of
 c

on
ce

rte
d 

eff
or

ts
 fr

om
 m

an
y 

pl
ay

er
s.

 It
 is

 im
po

rta
nt

 to
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 th
at

 
ea

ch
 p

ro
je

ct
 h

as
 a

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
 

sp
on

so
r, 

lik
e 

th
e 

C
ity

 o
f H

er
cu

le
s 

w
ho

 
ha

s 
ch

am
pi

on
ed

 th
e 

RI
TC

, t
o 

le
ad

 th
e 

eff
or

t t
ow

ar
ds

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.

 •
Im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
la

nd
 u

se
 p

la
ns

 a
nd

 
po

lic
ie

s 
th

at
 s

up
po

rt
 tr

an
si

t w
ill

 m
ak

e 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 m

or
e 

co
m

pe
tit

iv
e 

fo
r f

ed
er

al
, s

ta
te

, a
nd

 re
gi

on
al

 fu
nd

s.
 

N
ot

 o
nl

y 
do

 th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

cr
ite

ria
 h

in
ge

 
on

 tr
an

si
t r

id
er

sh
ip

, b
ut

 m
an

y 
of

 th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s 

al
so

 re
qu

ire
 a

 d
ire

ct
 

lin
k 

to
 d

en
si

ty
 a

ro
un

d 
tra

ns
it 

st
at

io
ns

 
or

 a
lo

ng
 tr

an
si

t l
in

es
. T

he
 m

or
e 

cl
os

el
y 

al
ig

ne
d 

th
e 

lo
ca

l l
an

d 
us

e 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

w
ith

 P
rio

rit
y 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t A
re

as
, s

uc
h 

as
 a

lo
ng

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e 
or

 a
t t

he
 

H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r, 

an
d 

tra
ns

it 
or

ie
nt

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

at
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ol
le

ge
 o

r t
he

 
El

 C
er

rit
o 

de
l N

or
te

 B
AR

T 
st

at
io

n,
 th

e 
m

or
e 

co
m

pe
tit

iv
e 

th
e 

H
C

T 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 w

ill
 

be
 fo

r l
im

ite
d 

tra
ns

it 
fu

nd
s.

 

 •
Em

ph
as

iz
in

g 
th

e 
st

at
ew

id
e 

an
d 

re
gi

on
al

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 o
f I

-8
0 

w
ill

 
hi

gh
lig

ht
 th

e 
im

po
rta

nc
e 

of
 fu

nd
in

g 
tra

ns
it 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 fo
r t

hi
s 

fre
ew

ay
 

co
rri

do
r. 

I-8
0 

ca
rri

es
 in

te
rs

ta
te

, 
st

at
ew

id
e,

 re
gi

on
al

, a
nd

 lo
ca

l t
rip

s.
 T

he
 

tri
ps

 th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

m
os

t e
as

ily
 d

iv
er

te
d 

to
 tr

an
si

t a
nd

 a
re

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
co

nt
ro

l o
f 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

ar
e 

th
e 

lo
ca

l a
nd

 re
gi

on
al

 
tri

ps
. G

iv
en

 th
e 

im
po

rta
nc

e 
of

 I-
80

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
, i

t s
ho

ul
d 

re
ce

iv
e 

hi
gh

 p
rio

rit
y 

fo
r t

ra
ns

it 
fu

nd
in

g.
 A

 B
AR

T 
ex

te
ns

io
n,

 th
ou

gh
 h

ig
h 

co
st

, m
ay

 b
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

m
aj

or
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

re
du

ci
ng

 V
M

T 
in

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y. 

 •
En

ga
gi

ng
 C

C
TA

, M
TC

, a
nd

 C
al

tr
an

s 
in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
 re

gi
on

al
 

fu
nd

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 

ad
vo

ca
tin

g 
fo

r t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
at

 th
e 

st
at

e 
an

d 
fe

de
ra

l l
ev

el
 w

ith
 k

ey
 le

gi
sl

at
or

s.
 

Th
e 

le
ve

l o
f t

ra
ns

it 
in

ve
st

m
en

t t
ha

t 
is

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
in

 
W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
is

 n
ot

 a
 p

ro
bl

em
 th

at
 

ca
n 

be
 s

ol
ve

d 
so

le
ly

 b
y 

W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

el
ec

te
d 

offi
ci

al
s.

 It
 w

ill
 re

qu
ire

 re
gi

on
al

, 
st

at
ew

id
e,

 a
nd

 fe
de

ra
l a

ss
is

ta
nc

e.
 If

 th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 c

an
 s

pe
ak

 w
ith

 
on

e 
vo

ic
e 

in
 s

up
po

rt 
of

 p
ro

je
ct

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
BA

RT
 e

xt
en

si
on

, o
r t

he
 E

xp
re

ss
 

Bu
s 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, t
he

n 
th

e 
ch

an
ce

s 
fo

r s
ec

ur
in

g 
fu

nd
in

g 
at

 th
e 

st
at

e 
an

d 
fe

de
ra

l l
ev

el
 a

re
 e

nh
an

ce
d.

 •
C

re
at

in
g 

a 
m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r e

ac
h 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

w
ill

 
be

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 o
ve

r t
he

 lo
ng

-te
rm

. G
en

er
al

 
fu

nd
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

id
en

tifi
ed

 fo
r e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
, 

bu
t t

he
y 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

fo
llo

w
ed

 
by

 m
or

e 
co

nc
re

te
 fu

nd
in

g 
pl

an
s 

as
 

pr
oj

ec
t d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
co

st
 e

st
im

at
es

 
ar

e 
re

fin
ed

. O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r c
os

t 
sa

vi
ng

s,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 fo

r B
AR

T,
 p

ha
si

ng
 

of
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

lik
e 

th
e 

BR
T 

pr
oj

ec
ts

, a
nd

 
le

ve
ra

gi
ng

 o
f s

ta
te

 a
nd

 fe
de

ra
l f

un
ds

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pu
rs

ue
d.

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, s

pe
ci

fic
 s

te
ps

 c
an

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 fo

r e
ac

h 
pr

oj
ec

t t
o 

in
iti

at
e 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n.

 S
ho

rt
-te

rm
 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 c

an
 s

ee
 im

m
ed

ia
te

 b
en

efi
ts

, 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 s

tra
te

gi
es

 
w

ill
 ta

ke
 lo

ng
er

 to
 re

al
iz

e.

Ex
pr

es
s 

B
us

 •
En

ha
nc

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
Ex

pr
es

s 
Bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
fro

m
 W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
to

 S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
 

an
d 

in
tro

du
ce

 n
ew

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

 •
Pu

rc
ha

se
 s

ix
 n

ew
 b

us
es

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 

se
rv

ic
e 

fre
qu

en
cy

 to
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

 

 •
Id

en
tif

y 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 tr

an
si

t-p
rio

rit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

—
si

gn
al

iz
at

io
n 

an
d 

qu
eu

e 
ju

m
ps

 w
he

re
 

bu
se

s 
tra

ve
l o

n 
su

rfa
ce

 s
tre

et
s 

to
 

pi
ck

-u
p 

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
, f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

in
g 

th
e 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 

Tr
an

si
t C

en
te

r

 •
W

or
k 

w
ith

 A
C

 T
ra

ns
it 

an
d 

W
es

tC
AT

 
to

 c
on

fir
m

 a
n 

op
er

at
or

 fo
r t

he
 n

ew
 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
 (e

.g
., 

ro
ut

in
g,

 
sc

he
du

le
, s

to
p 

lo
ca

tio
ns

)

 •
Se

ek
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r a
 p

ilo
t p

ro
gr

am
 to

 
in

iti
at

e 
th

e 
ne

w
 s

er
vi

ce
 to

 A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y

 •
W

or
k 

w
ith

 M
TC

 a
nd

 C
al

tra
ns

 a
t t

he
 

re
gi

on
al

 le
ve

l t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ut
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
H

O
V 

la
ne

s 
on

 I-
80

 •
Ad

vo
ca

te
 fo

r m
or

e 
lim

ite
d 

ac
ce

ss
 

to
 th

e 
H

O
V 

la
ne

s 
so

 th
ey

 a
re

 m
or

e 
fu

nc
tio

na
l f

or
 b

us
es

 •
W

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f H

er
cu

le
s 

an
d 

C
al

tra
ns

 o
n 

th
ei

r p
la

ns
 fo

r u
pg

ra
di

ng
 

th
e 

I-8
0/

SR
 4

 in
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

to
 in

te
gr

at
e 

di
re

ct
 tr

an
si

t p
rio

rit
y 

la
ne

s 
to

 a
nd

 
fro

m
 th

e 
fre

ew
ay

 H
O

V 
la

ne
s.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 

m
ak

e 
it 

ea
si

er
 fo

r b
us

es
 to

 g
et

 to
 a

nd
 

fro
m

 th
e 

H
er

cu
le

s 
Tr

an
si

t C
en

te
r.

 •
Ad

va
nc

e 
th

e 
co

nc
ep

t o
f n

ew
 ra

m
ps

 
on

 th
e 

no
rth

 s
id

e 
of

 R
ic

hm
on

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
bu

s 
ac

ce
ss

 
be

tw
ee

n 
fre

ew
ay

 a
nd

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

pa
rk

-a
nd

-ri
de

 fa
ci

lit
y

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

DR
AF

T

7B-49



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
48

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

 •
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 p
re

lim
in

ar
y 

st
ud

ie
s 

to
 

ex
pa

nd
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pa
rk

-a
nd

-ri
de

 lo
ts

 a
t 

th
e 

H
er

cu
le

s 
an

d 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 
tra

ns
it 

ce
nt

er
 a

s 
de

m
an

d 
w

ar
ra

nt
s

 •
C

on
si

de
r t

he
 in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 
Ex

pr
es

s 
Bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
co

nn
ec

tio
ns

 fr
om

 W
es

t C
ou

nt
y 

to
 E

as
t 

an
d 

C
en

tra
l C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
vi

a 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

D
am

 R
oa

d

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o/
M

ac
do

na
ld

 A
ve

nu
es

 B
RT

 •
Ad

va
nc

e 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

Av
en

ue
 M

ul
tim

od
al

 
C

or
rid

or
 S

tu
dy

 •
Pa

rti
ci

pa
te

 in
 A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 s

tu
dy

 
(W

C
C

TA
C

 a
nd

 C
C

TA
 h

av
e 

al
re

ad
y 

co
nt

rib
ut

ed
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 th
e 

st
ud

y 
an

d 
ar

e 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tin

g 
in

 th
e 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l 
Ad

vi
so

ry
 C

om
m

itt
ee

)

 •
W

or
k 

w
ith

 E
l C

er
rit

o,
 R

ic
hm

on
d,

 a
nd

 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

an
d 

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 
a 

co
nc

ep
t a

nd
 p

re
lim

in
ar

y 
de

si
gn

 fo
r 

th
e 

co
rri

do
r

 •
Ex

te
nd

 7
2R

ap
id

 B
us

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 th

e 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 T
ra

ns
it 

C
en

te
r

 •
Pu

rc
ha

se
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
as

 
re

qu
ire

d

 •
Ex

pa
nd

 re
al

-ti
m

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ca

pa
bi

lit
ie

s

 •
W

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f R

ic
hm

on
d 

an
d 

AC
 

Tr
an

si
t t

o 
de

te
rm

in
e 

if 
th

e 
M

ac
do

na
ld

 
BR

T 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pu
rs

ue
d 

as
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
pr

oj
ec

t

 •
In

co
rp

or
at

e 
BR

T 
co

nc
ep

ts
 in

to
 E

l 
C

er
rit

o,
 R

ic
hm

on
d,

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
, P

in
ol

e,
 

an
d 

H
er

cu
le

s 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

in
to

 th
e 

W
es

tC
AT

 S
ho

rt-
Ra

ng
e 

Tr
an

si
t P

la
n

23
rd

 S
tr

ee
t B

RT
 •

W
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
ci

tie
s 

of
 R

ic
hm

on
d 

an
d 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
an

d 
AC

 T
ra

ns
it 

to
 in

iti
at

e 
th

e 
fir

st
 p

ha
se

 o
f a

 2
3r

d 
St

re
et

 B
RT

 p
ro

je
ct

 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

co
nn

ec
tio

ns
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
an

d 
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
di

st
ric

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Fe
rry

 
te

rm
in

al
 th

at
 is

 d
ue

 to
 o

pe
n 

in
 2

01
8.

 
Id

en
tif

y 
a 

le
ad

 a
ge

nc
y.

 •
D

ev
el

op
 p

ro
gr

am
 a

nd
 p

ha
si

ng
 o

f 
op

er
at

io
na

l a
nd

 p
hy

si
ca

l f
ac

ili
tie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
23

rd
 S

tre
et

 B
RT

 •
O

ut
lin

e 
a 

pi
lo

t p
ro

gr
am

 fo
r i

ni
tia

l 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 2

3r
d 

St
re

et
 R

ap
id

 B
us

 
se

rv
ic

e

 •
D

ev
el

op
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

la
n 

(e
.g

., 
ro

ut
in

g,
 

sc
he

du
le

, s
to

p 
lo

ca
tio

ns
) t

ha
t 

pr
ov

id
es

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
fe

rry
 s

er
vi

ce

 •
Se

ek
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r a
 p

ilo
t p

ro
gr

am

 •
Id

en
tif

y 
in

te
rfa

ce
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

at
 fe

rry
 te

rm
in

al
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
us

 b
ay

s,
 

si
gn

ag
e,

 e
tc

. f
or

 p
as

se
ng

er
 p

ic
k-

up
/

dr
op

-o
ff

 •
In

co
rp

or
at

e 
BR

T 
co

nc
ep

ts
 in

to
 W

es
tC

AT
 

an
d 

AC
 T

ra
ns

it 
Sh

or
t-R

an
ge

 T
ra

ns
it 

Pl
an

s 
an

d 
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

an
d 

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
ge

ne
ra

l p
la

ns

C
om

m
ut

er
 R

ai
l

 •
W

C
C

TA
C

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ap

ito
l 

C
or

rid
or

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l e
le

ct
ed

 o
ffi

ci
al

s 
to

 
co

nd
uc

t a
 m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

ec
on

om
ic

 a
nd

 
rid

er
sh

ip
 a

na
ly

si
s 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
co

st
s 

an
d 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 a

 C
ap

ito
l C

or
rid

or
 fa

re
 

su
bs

id
y 

fo
r W

es
t C

ou
nt

y 
tra

ve
le

rs

 •
Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
se

cu
re

 fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r p

ilo
t 

pr
oj

ec
t i

f i
t p

ro
ve

s 
vi

ab
le

 •
W

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f H

er
cu

le
s 

in
 

su
pp

or
t o

f t
he

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
bu

ild
ou

t o
f t

he
 

RI
TC  •
C

ity
 o

f H
er

cu
le

s 
to

 n
eg

ot
ia

te
 a

n 
ag

re
em

en
t w

ith
 C

ap
ito

l C
or

rid
or

 a
nd

 
Sa

n 
Jo

aq
ui

n 
Jo

in
t P

ow
er

s 
Au

th
or

ity
 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
ne

w
 re

gi
on

al
 s

ta
tio

n 
in

 
H

er
cu

le
s

BA
RT

 E
xt

en
si

on
 •

Pr
es

en
t i

ni
tia

l s
tu

dy
 fi

nd
in

gs
 to

 th
e 

BA
RT

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

or
s

 •
Id

en
tif

y 
fu

nd
in

g 
to

 in
iti

at
e 

co
nc

ep
tu

al
 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

pr
og

ra
m

-le
ve

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
 re

po
rt/

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

 •
C

on
du

ct
 fu

rth
er

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
de

si
gn

 
st

ud
ie

s 
of

 th
e 

tw
o 

BA
RT

 a
lig

nm
en

ts
 

an
d 

th
e 

fo
ur

 p
ot

en
tia

l s
ta

tio
n 

lo
ca

tio
n 

fo
r t

hi
s 

co
rri

do
r t

o 
su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 d
efi

ne
 

pr
oj

ec
t f

or
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l r

ev
ie

w

 •
C

on
du

ct
 p

re
lim

in
ar

y 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 o
f 

rig
ht

-o
f-w

ay
 o

f t
he

 tw
o 

al
ig

nm
en

ts

 •
In

iti
at

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
w

ith
 

C
C

TA
, M

TC
, a

nd
 th

e 
Fe

de
ra

l 
Tr

an
si

t A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
to

 a
dv

an
ce

 a
 

ph
as

ed
 fu

nd
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 fo

r f
ut

ur
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 a
 B

AR
T 

pr
oj

ec
t.

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

DR
AF

T

7B-50



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
49

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

1. 
 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 

Tr
an

si
t S

tu
dy

, T
ec

hn
ic

al
 M

em
or

an
du

m
 

#6
, E

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

Fu
tu

re
 L

an
d 

U
se

 
C

on
di

tio
ns

, S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5,

 
W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff 

an
d 

Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Sy
st

em
s.

2.
  

M
TC

, V
ita

l S
ig

ns
, D

ec
em

be
r 

20
15

, h
ttp

://
m

tc
.c

a.
go

v/
w

ha
ts

-
ha

pp
en

in
g/

ne
w

s/
fre

sh
-d

at
a-

ba
y-

ar
ea

s-
vi

ta
l-s

ig
ns

-in
cl

ud
e-

ne
w

-
to

p-
10

-li
st

-fr
ee

w
ay

-c
on

ge
st

io
n

3.
   

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 

Tr
an

si
t S

tu
dy

, T
ec

hn
ic

al
 M

em
or

an
du

m
 

#7
, T

ra
ve

l M
ar

ke
ts

, J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

6,
 

W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff,
 K

im
le

y 
H

or
n,

 a
nd

 K
itt

el
so

n 
& 

As
so

ci
at

es
.

4.
   

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 

Tr
an

si
t S

tu
dy

, T
ec

hn
ic

al
 M

em
or

an
du

m
 

#1
2,

 R
id

er
sh

ip
 M

od
el

in
g,

 J
an

ua
ry

 
20

17
, W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff 

an
d 

Ki
tte

ls
on

 &
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s.

5.
   

BA
RT

 M
et

ro
 V

is
io

n,
 2

01
4.

6.
   

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
St

ud
y, 

Fi
na

l 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l M

em
or

an
du

m
 #

4,
 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
an

d 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 

Pr
ev

io
us

 S
tu

di
es

, S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
15

, P
ar

so
ns

 B
rin

ck
er

ho
ff.

7.
   

 W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 

Tr
an

si
t S

tu
dy

 F
in

al
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 
M

em
or

an
du

m
 #

5,
 E

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
N

et
w

or
k,

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

16
, P

ar
so

ns
 B

rin
ck

er
ho

ff.

8.
    

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 

Tr
an

si
t S

tu
dy

, F
in

al
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 

M
em

or
an

du
m

 #
6,

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
Fu

tu
re

 
La

nd
 U

se
 C

on
di

tio
ns

, S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
15

, P
ar

so
ns

 B
rin

ck
er

ho
ff 

w
ith

 
Ec

on
om

ic
 &

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Sy

st
em

s 
(E

PS
).

9.
   

 W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 

Tr
an

si
t S

tu
dy

, T
ec

hn
ic

al
 M

em
or

an
du

m
 

#7
, T

ra
ve

l M
ar

ke
ts

, J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

6,
 

W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff,
 K

im
le

y 
H

or
n,

 a
nd

 K
itt

el
so

n 
& 

As
so

ci
at

es
.

10
. 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 

Tr
an

si
t S

tu
dy

, T
ec

hn
ic

al
 M

em
or

an
du

m
 

#8
, P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Al

te
rn

at
iv

es
, 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
16

, W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff,
 K

im
le

y 
H

or
n,

 a
nd

 R
L 

Ba
nk

s.
 W

es
t C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 T
ra

ns
it 

St
ud

y, 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l 

M
em

or
an

du
m

 #
10

, P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
Sc

re
en

in
g,

 M
ay

 2
01

6,
 

W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff,
 K

im
le

y 
H

or
n,

 a
nd

 M
Le

e 
C

or
po

ra
tio

n.

11
. 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 

St
ud

y 
Ta

sk
 N

um
be

r 1
3.

1 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

Sc
re

en
in

g 
C

os
t E

st
im

at
es

, D
ec

em
be

r 
8,

 2
01

5,
 M

 L
ee

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff.

12
. 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
St

ud
y, 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l 
M

em
or

an
du

m
 #

5,
 E

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
N

et
w

or
k,

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

16
, W

C
C

TA
C

.

13
. 

Tr
av

el
 d

em
an

d 
da

ta
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 A

irS
ag

e 
fro

m
 c

el
l p

ho
ne

 d
at

a 
co

lle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

Ba
y 

Ar
ea

 a
nd

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 to

 th
e 

no
rth

 in
 fa

ll 
20

15
.

14
. 

To
ta

l u
na

dj
us

te
d 

da
ily

 p
er

so
n 

tri
ps

 

fro
m

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

tra
ve

l 
de

m
an

d 
m

od
el

. P
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 K
itt

el
so

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

6.

15
. 

U
rb

an
 D

en
si

tie
s 

an
d 

Tr
an

si
t: 

A 
M

ul
ti-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 P
er

sp
ec

tiv
e,

 2
01

1, 
C

er
ve

ro
 &

 G
ue

rra
. h

ttp
://

w
w

w
.it

s.
be

rk
el

ey
.e

du
/p

ub
lic

at
io

ns
/U

C
B/

20
11

/
VW

P/
U

C
B-

IT
S-

VW
P-

20
11

-6
.p

df

16
. 

Pu
bl

ic
at

io
ns

 s
uc

h 
as

 T
C

RP
 R

ep
or

t 
16

7, 
M

ak
in

g 
Eff

ec
tiv

e 
Fi

xe
d-

G
ui

de
w

ay
 

Tr
an

si
t I

nv
es

tm
en

ts
: I

nd
ic

at
or

s 
of

 S
uc

ce
ss

 (h
ttp

://
w

w
w

.tr
b.

or
g/

Pu
bl

ic
at

io
ns

/B
lu

rb
s/

17
09

72
.a

sp
x)

 
pr

es
en

t v
ar

io
us

 d
en

si
ty

 th
re

sh
ol

ds
 

us
ed

 b
y 

di
ffe

re
nt

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
ns

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

co
un

try
 th

at
 u

nd
er

lin
e 

th
e 

la
ck

 o
f a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 n
um

be
r o

r r
an

ge
 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
us

ed
 a

s 
an

 a
bs

ol
ut

e 
th

re
sh

ol
d 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
op

tim
al

 
de

ns
ity

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
 s

up
po

rt 
tra

ns
it.

17
. 

Th
e 

Pe
ril

s 
of

 A
ve

ra
ge

 D
en

si
ty

, 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

01
0,

 W
al

ke
r, 

ht
tp

://
hu

m
an

tra
ns

it.
or

g/
20

10
/0

9/
th

e-
pe

ril
s-

of
-a

ve
ra

ge
-d

en
si

ty
.h

tm
l

18
. 

Th
e 

Pe
ril

s 
of

 A
ve

ra
ge

 D
en

si
ty

, 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

01
0,

 W
al

ke
r, 

ht
tp

://
hu

m
an

tra
ns

it.
or

g/
20

10
/0

9/
th

e-
pe

ril
s-

of
-a

ve
ra

ge
-d

en
si

ty
.h

tm
l

19
. 

 W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ts

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 

St
ud

y, 
Fi

na
l D

ra
ft 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l 
M

em
or

an
du

m
 #

8,
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Al

te
rn

at
iv

es
, J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
6,

 
W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff 

w
ith

 
Ki

m
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

RL
 B

an
ks

.

20
. 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ts

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 

St
ud

y, 
Fi

na
l D

ra
ft 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l 
M

em
or

an
du

m
 #

9,
 E

va
lu

at
io

n 
C

rit
er

ia
, 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

5,
 W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff 

w
ith

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n.

21
. 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 

St
ud

y, 
Fi

na
l D

ra
ft 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l 
M

em
or

an
du

m
 #

10
, P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

an
d 

Sc
re

en
in

g,
 M

ay
 19

, 
20

16
, W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff 

w
ith

 
Ki

m
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

M
 L

ee
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n.

22
. 

A 
su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 p

ub
lic

 in
pu

t c
an

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 th
e 

st
ud

y’
s 

Pu
bl

ic
 O

ut
re

ac
h 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
Re

po
rt,

 A
pr

il 
20

16
.

23
. 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
St

ud
y, 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l 
M

em
or

an
du

m
 #

11
, A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 

Re
fin

em
en

t, 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
6,

 
W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff 

w
ith

 
Ki

m
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

W
C

C
TA

C
. 

24
. 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ra
ns

it 
St

ud
y, 

Fi
na

l 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l M

em
or

an
du

m
 #

14
, 

Fu
nd

in
g 

St
ra

te
gy

, M
ar

ch
 2

01
7, 

W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff.

25
. 

W
es

t C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ig

h-
C

ap
ac

ity
 

Tr
an

si
t S

tu
dy

, T
ec

hn
ic

al
 M

em
or

an
du

m
 

#1
4,

 F
un

di
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

, M
ar

ch
 2

01
7, 

W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff.

Re
fe

re
nc

es

DR
AF

T

7B-51



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
50

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

1. 
 

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 T
ra

ns
it 

C
or

rid
or

 
St

ud
y 

Sc
op

e 
of

 W
or

k,
 J

un
e 

1, 
20

15
, P

ar
so

ns
 B

rin
ck

er
ho

ff.

2.
  

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 S
tu

dy
 F

in
al

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

M
em

or
an

du
m

 #
2,

 G
oa

ls
 a

nd
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
, S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

5,
 P

ar
so

ns
 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff 

an
d 

Ki
m

le
y-

H
or

n

3.
  

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 T
ra

ns
it 

St
ud

y 
Fi

na
l 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l M
em

or
an

du
m

 #
4,

 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

an
d 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r S
tu

di
es

, S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
15

, P
ar

so
ns

 B
rin

ck
er

ho
ff

4.
  

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 
Tr

an
si

t S
tu

dy
 F

in
al

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

M
em

or
an

du
m

 #
5,

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

N
et

w
or

k,
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
6,

 
W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff 

w
ith

 
RL

 B
an

ks
 a

nd
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n

5.
  

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 
Tr

an
si

t S
tu

dy
 F

in
al

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

M
em

or
an

du
m

 #
6,

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
Fu

tu
re

 L
an

d 
U

se
 C

on
di

tio
ns

, 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

01
5,

 W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff 
w

ith
 E

co
no

m
ic

 
& 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 S
ys

te
m

s 
(E

PS
)

6.
  

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 
Tr

an
si

t S
tu

dy
 F

in
al

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

M
em

or
an

du
m

 #
7,

 T
ra

ve
l M

ar
ke

ts
, 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
16

, W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff 
w

ith
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

Ki
tte

ls
on

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

7.
  

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 
Tr

an
si

t S
tu

dy
 F

in
al

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

M
em

or
an

du
m

 #
8,

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
es

, J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

6,
 

W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff 
w

ith
 

Ki
m

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
RL

 B
an

ks

8.
  

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 
Tr

an
si

t S
tu

dy
 F

in
al

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

M
em

or
an

du
m

 #
9,

 S
um

m
ar

y 
an

d 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r S

tu
di

es
, J

an
ua

ry
 

20
16

, P
ar

so
ns

 B
rin

ck
er

ho
ff

9.
  

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 
Tr

an
si

t S
tu

dy
 F

in
al

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

M
em

or
an

du
m

 #
10

, P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
Sc

re
en

in
g,

 M
ay

 19
, 

20
16

, W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff 
w

ith
 

Ki
m

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
M

 L
ee

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n

10
. 

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 
Tr

an
si

t S
tu

dy
 F

in
al

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

M
em

or
an

du
m

 #
11

, A
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 
Re

fin
em

en
t, 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

6,
 

W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff 
w

ith
 

Ki
m

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
W

C
C

TA
C

11
. 

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 T
ra

ns
it 

St
ud

y 
Fi

na
l 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l M
em

or
an

du
m

 #
12

, 
Ri

de
rs

hi
p 

Es
tim

at
es

, F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

17
, W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff 

w
ith

 K
itt

el
so

n 
As

so
ci

at
es

12
. 

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 
Tr

an
si

t S
tu

dy
 T

as
k 

N
um

be
r 1

3.
1, 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Sc
re

en
in

g 
C

os
t 

Es
tim

at
e,

 D
ec

em
be

r 1
8,

 2
01

5,
 

W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff 
w

ith
 M

 L
ee

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n

13
. 

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 
Tr

an
si

t S
tu

dy
 T

as
k 

N
um

be
r 1

3.
2,

 
Re

fin
ed

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

Sc
re

en
in

g 
C

os
t E

st
im

at
e,

 M
ar

ch
 2

4,
 2

01
7, 

W
SP

 | 
Pa

rs
on

s 
Br

in
ck

er
ho

ff 
w

ith
 M

 L
ee

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n

14
. 

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 T
ra

ns
it 

St
ud

y 
Fi

na
l 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l M
em

or
an

du
m

 #
14

, 
Fu

nd
in

g 
St

ra
te

gy
, M

ar
ch

 2
01

7, 
W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff

15
. 

W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 
Tr

an
si

t S
tu

dy
 F

in
al

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

M
em

or
an

du
m

 #
15

, F
in

al
 E

va
lu

at
io

n,
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l M
em

or
an

du
m

 #
15

, 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

7, 
W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

Br
in

ck
er

ho
ff 

w
ith

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n

Te
ch

ni
ca

l M
em

or
an

da
 P

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r t

he
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 T
ra

ns
it 

St
ud

y

DR
AF

T

7B-52



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
51

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

W
C

C
TA

C
 B

oa
rd

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
s

C
ity

 o
f E

l C
er

rit
o 

 
 

Ja
ne

t A
be

ls
on

, C
ha

ir
C

ity
 o

f S
an

 P
ab

lo
  

 
C

ec
ili

a 
Va

ld
ez

, V
ic

e 
C

ha
ir

C
ity

 o
f R

ic
hm

on
d 

 
 

To
m

 B
ut

t
C

ity
 o

f R
ic

hm
on

d 
 

 
Ed

ua
rd

o 
M

ar
tin

ez
C

ity
 o

f P
in

ol
e 

 
 

Ro
y 

Sw
ea

rin
ge

n
C

ity
 o

f H
er

cu
le

s 
 

 
C

hr
is

 K
el

ly
AC

 T
ra

ns
it 

 
 

Jo
e 

W
al

la
ce

BA
RT

 
 

 
 

La
te

ef
a 

Si
m

on
W

es
tC

AT
 

 
 

M
au

re
en

 P
ow

er
s

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

 
Jo

hn
 G

io
ia

Fo
rm

er
 B

oa
rd

 M
em

be
rs

C
ity

 o
f H

er
cu

le
s 

 
 

Sh
er

ry
 M

cC
oy

C
ity

 o
f R

ic
hm

on
d 

 
 

V
in

ay
 P

im
pl

e
BA

RT
 

 
 

 
Za

ch
ar

y 
M

al
le

t

W
C

C
TA

C
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

Jo
hn

 N
em

et
h

W
C

C
TA

C
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
Le

ah
 G

re
en

bl
at

W
C

C
TA

C
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
A

ss
is

ta
nt

Va
le

rie
 J

er
ki

ns

A
ck

no
w

le
dg

m
en

ts

DR
AF

T

7B-53



W
ES

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

 H
IG

H
-C

A
PA

C
IT

Y 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

| M
AY

 2
01

7
52

O
U

TR
EA

C
H

TR
A

N
SI

T 
M

A
RK

ET
A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
ES

M
O

V
IN

G
 F

O
RW

A
RD

BA
C

KG
RO

U
N

D
EX

EC
U

TI
V

E 
SU

M
M

A
RY

A
C

RO
N

YM
S

A
C

 T
ra

ns
it

Ji
m

 C
un

ra
di

N
at

ha
n 

La
nd

au

BA
RT

N
ik

ki
 F

ol
et

ta
Ry

an
 G

re
en

e-
Ro

es
el

Sh
an

no
n 

H
ak

e
Je

nn
el

la
 S

am
bo

ur
-W

al
la

ce
A

nd
re

w
 T

an
g

C
al

tr
an

s
W

in
ga

te
 L

ew

C
ap

ito
l C

or
rid

or
/A

m
tr

ak
Sh

irl
ey

 Q
ia

n

C
C

TA
Pe

te
r E

ng
el

M
at

t K
el

ly
Li

ns
ey

 W
ill

is

C
ity

 o
f E

l C
er

rit
o

Yv
et

te
h 

O
rt

iz

C
ity

 o
f H

er
cu

le
s

D
av

id
 B

ig
gs

M
ik

e 
Ro

be
rt

s
H

ol
ly

 S
m

yt
h

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
Ta

m
ar

a 
M

ill
er

W
in

st
on

 R
ho

de
s

C
ity

 o
f R

ic
hm

on
d

Ya
de

r B
er

m
ud

ez
Ri

ch
ar

d 
Le

e
Lo

ri 
Re

es
e-

Br
ow

n

C
ity

 o
f S

an
 P

ab
lo

Ba
rb

ar
a 

H
aw

ki
ns

M
ic

he
le

 R
od

rig
ue

z

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y
Jo

hn
 C

un
ni

ng
ha

m
Ro

be
rt

 S
ar

m
ie

nt
o

W
es

tC
AT

C
ha

rli
e 

A
nd

er
so

n
Ju

lia
 S

ch
ne

ll
Ro

b 
Th

om
ps

on

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

N
T 

ST
U

D
Y 

TE
A

M
W

SP
 | 

Pa
rs

on
s 

B
rin

ck
er

ho
ff 

Re
be

cc
a 

Ko
hl

st
ra

nd
, P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
A

ria
nn

a 
A

lla
hy

ar
D

an
 B

ea
rd

M
ic

he
le

 B
el

lo
w

s 
Ly

ne
-M

ar
ie

 B
ou

ve
t

A
nd

re
a 

G
le

ru
m

Je
ss

ie
 J

on
es

Ya
di

ra
 L

a 
Lu

z
D

or
is

 L
ee

N
at

ha
n 

M
ac

ek
D

ea
n 

M
an

iti
Pa

ul
 M

cC
au

le
y

Pa
t M

cN
am

ee
Pa

t M
er

ril
l

Sa
lv

ad
or

 M
on

te
s

Sh
ar

m
ila

 M
uk

he
rje

e
Ki

t P
ow

is
G

re
go

ry
 S

ch
w

ar
tz

ko
pf

M
ic

ha
el

 S
ta

nw
ic

k
Ta

m
 T

ra
n

M
iri

am
 Z

ak
i

C
irc

le
po

in
t

Tr
ac

y 
C

oo
k

A
m

ie
 H

ol
br

oo
k

A
m

y 
H

ua
ng

Sa
br

in
a 

M
or

al
es

Iv
y 

M
or

ris
on

N
gu

ye
n 

Ph
am

Ec
on

om
ic

 &
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Sy
st

em
s 

Ed
w

ar
d 

Su
lli

va
n

Ki
m

le
y-

H
or

n 
Je

ff 
A

lle
n

Ad
am

 D
an

kb
er

g
A

le
x 

La
ng

e
Za

ch
 M

ill
er

 

Ki
tt

el
so

n 
& 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
s 

M
ik

e 
A

ro
ns

on
D

am
ia

n 
St

ef
an

ak
is

Li
lli

an
 T

sa
ng

M
 L

ee
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n
Fr

an
kl

in
 L

ee
M

ar
tin

 L
ee

 
D

av
in

a 
Ts

ai

R.
L.

 B
an

ks
 &

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s 

To
m

 M
es

se
r

Va
lli

er
 D

es
ig

n 
A

ss
oc

ia
te

s 
N

ic
k 

Bu
rk

e
Yu

tti
 J

ira
ch

ac
ha

va
lw

on
g

M
ar

ci
a 

Va
lli

er

A
ck

no
w

le
dg

m
en

ts
 (c

on
t’d

) DR
AF

T

7B-54



DR
AF

T

7B-55



W
es

t C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ig
h-

C
ap

ac
ity

 T
ra

ns
it 

St
ud

y 
   

  l
   

   
 D

ra
ft

 F
in

al
 R

ep
or

t  
   

 l 
   

   
M

ay
 2

01
7

 h
tt

p:
//w

w
w

.w
cc

ta
c.

or
g

7B-56



  

 

 

TO: 

 

 

WCCTAC Board 

 

 

DATE: 

 

 

April 28, 2017 

FR: John Nemeth, Executive Director 

RE: Measure J TLC - Grant Funding Recommendation Follow-up 

 

REQUESTED ACTION 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the TAC’s recommendation for the allocation of an 
additional $1,000,000 in Measure J TLC funding, and that staff forward the updated TLC 
recommendations to CCTA.   
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION  
At its March meeting, the WCCTAC Board approved a recommendation for the allocation of 
Measure J Transportation for Livable Communities (TLC) funding, as well as Safe Routes to 
Schools funding (SR2S).  The TLC recommendation is shown in Column 2 of Attachment A. 
 
Staff mentioned that additional TLC funding could become available based on the outcome of 
the Measure J Pedestrian, Bike, and Trail Facilities (PBTF) grant funding process, which is being 
reviewed on the same cycle as TLC and SR2S.  Several of the projects in West County that were 
recommended for TLC funding were also pursuing Countywide PBTF funding.  The potential 
success of projects in the countywide PBTF funding process offered the possibility of “freeing-
up” some of West County’s TLC funds.  As a result, the Board approved a list of five projects to 
be considered for additional TLC funding if it became available, shown in Column 3 of 
Attachment A.  
 
Since the March WCCTAC Board meeting, CCTA staff informed us of the draft recommendations 
for PBTF awards.  Altogether, there are five projects in West County that are proposed to 
receive PBTF funds, as shown in Column 4 of Attachment A.  One project, the Plaza San Pablo 
Greenway Trail, that was recommended for TLC funding was also recommended for $1,000,000 
in PBTF funding.  The project has a total cost of $1,280,000 and was recommended for the full 
amount in TLC funding by the WCCTAC Board.  The success with PBTF means that the Plaza San 
Pablo Greenway Trail project can now be fully funded with just $280,000 in TLC funds, thus 
freeing up an additional $1,000,000 in TLC for the WCCTAC Board to re-allocate.  
 
In order to assist the Board, the TAC developed a funding allocation recommendation for this 
additional $1,000,000 at its April meeting, as shown in Column 5 of Attachment A.  WCCTAC 
staff made two suggestions to the TAC: 1) that it focus the allocation on the projects that it, and 
the Board, had previously identified for potential additional funds, and 2) that it fully fund the 



 

13th Street Complete Street project in Richmond, which clearly had the highest score of the 
project identified, regardless of whether average score or median score was used.    
 
The TAC’s recommended allocating the additional $1,000,000 as follows: 
 

Project Sponsor Amount 

13th Street Complete Streets 
 

Richmond $600,000   

El Cerrito del Norte Station Access 
Improvement Project 

BART $200,000 

Citywide Safe Routes to School Master Plan 
 

San Pablo $200,000 

TOTAL  $1,000,000 

 
This recommendation was passed by the TAC on a vote of 7-1-1, with representatives from 
Richmond, the County, Hercules, Pinole, BART, AC Transit, and WestCAT voting in the 
affirmative.  The recommendation was opposed by the representative from El Cerrito, who 
argued that the City’s El Cerrito Del Norte TOD Complete Streets Project should also receive 
funding.  The City of San Pablo’s representative abstained, and argued that the TAC should  
consider additional funding for the Rumrill Blvd. Complete Streets Project.   
 
The Board can accept the TAC’s recommendation or make modifications.  Staff recommends 
the former. 
 
Next Steps  
Once the WCCTAC Board approves a recommended allocation for the additional Measure J TLC 
funds, staff will forward the updated TLC recommendation to CCTA staff.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Draft Funding Recommendation Chart 
 



C
o

lu
m

n
 1

C
o

lu
m

n
 2

C
o

lu
m

n
 3

C
o

lu
m

n
 4

C
o

lu
m

n
 5

C
o

lu
m

n
 6

Fo
ld

er
 ID

Sp
o

n
so

r
P

ro
je

ct
 

R
an

k 
b

y 

A
vg

. 

Sc
o

re

R
an

k 
b

y 

M
ed

ia
n

 

Sc
o

re

TL
C

 A
m

o
u

n
t 

R
e

q
u

es
te

d

TL
C

 F
u

n
d

in
g 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 b
y 

W
C

C
TA

C
 B

o
ar

d
 in

 

M
ar

ch

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 T

LC
 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 b

y 

B
o

ar
d

 (
if

 m
o

re
 

fu
n

d
s 

av
ai

la
b

le
)

D
ra

ft
 P

B
TF

 

R
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

at
io

n
 

TA
C

 

R
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

at
io

n
 

fo
r 

ad
d

it
io

n
al

 $
1

M
 

in
 T

LC
 F

u
n

d
s

P
ro

p
o

se
d

, U
p

d
at

e
d

 

TL
C

 A
w

ar
d

 w
it

h
 

TA
C

 

R
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

at
io

n

C
C

P
-3

2
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

1
3

th
 S

tr
ee

t 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 S

tr
ee

ts
2

1
(t

ie
)

$
3

,6
6

9
,0

0
0

$
3

,0
6

9
,0

0
0

$
6

0
0

,0
0

0
-

$
6

0
0

,0
0

0
$

3
,6

6
9

,0
0

0

C
C

P
-1

8
B

A
R

T
El

 C
er

ri
to

 d
el

 N
o

rt
e 

St
at

io
n

 A
cc

es
s 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

ro
je

ct
4

3
$

3
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
$

2
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
$

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
-

$
2

0
0

,0
0

0
$

2
,4

0
0

,0
0

0

C
C

P
-5

2
El

 C
er

ri
to

El
 C

er
ri

to
 d

el
 N

o
rt

e 
TO

D
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 S

tr
ee

ts
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

3
6

$
2

,8
6

3
,0

0
0

$
2

,1
7

5
,0

0
0

$
5

0
8

,0
0

0
-

-
$

2
,1

7
5

,0
0

0

C
C

P
-6

4
Sa

n
 P

ab
lo

P
la

za
 S

an
 P

ab
lo

 G
re

e
n

w
ay

 T
ra

il
1

0
7

 (
ti

e)
$

1
,2

8
0

,0
0

0
$

1
,2

8
0

,0
0

0
-

$
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

-
$

2
8

0
,0

0
0

C
C

P
-3

1
H

er
cu

le
s

W
ill

o
w

 /
 P

al
m

 P
ed

es
tr

ia
n

 W
al

kw
ay

1
3

9
$

1
,0

5
8

,2
3

7
$

1
,0

5
8

,2
3

7
-

-
-

$
1

,0
5

8
,2

3
7

C
C

P
-5

3
C

o
n

tr
a 

C
o

st
a 

C
o

u
n

ty
Fr

ed
 J

ac
ks

o
n

 W
ay

 F
ir

st
 M

ile
 /

 L
as

t 
M

ile
 C

o
n

n
ec

ti
o

n
s

5
4

$
7

0
0

,0
0

0
$

7
0

0
,0

0
0

-
-

-
$

7
0

0
,0

0
0

C
C

P
-6

6
C

o
n

tr
a 

C
o

st
a 

C
o

u
n

ty
R

o
d

eo
 D

o
w

n
to

w
n

 In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 P
ro

je
ct

9
1

2
 (

ti
e)

$
4

7
0

,0
0

0
$

4
7

0
,0

0
0

-
-

-
$

4
7

0
,0

0
0

C
C

P
-3

3
Sa

n
 P

ab
lo

C
o

n
tr

a 
C

o
st

a 
C

o
lle

ge
 T

ra
n

si
t 

V
ill

ag
e 

M
as

te
r 

P
la

n
1

1
 (

ti
e)

$
2

0
0

,0
0

0
$

2
0

0
,0

0
0

-
-

-
$

2
0

0
,0

0
0

C
C

P
-6

8
P

in
o

le
Sa

n
 P

ab
lo

 A
ve

n
u

e 
P

ed
/B

ik
e 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 o

ve
r 

B
N

SF
1

4
1

4
$

1
,7

3
6

,0
0

0
$

2
0

0
,0

0
0

-
-

$
2

0
0

,0
0

0

C
C

P
-1

9
P

in
o

le
H

ig
h

 In
te

n
si

ty
 A

ct
iv

at
ed

 C
ro

ss
w

al
k 

B
ea

co
n

 (
H

A
W

K
)

1
6

1
6

$
1

2
0

,0
0

0
$

1
2

0
,0

0
0

-
-

$
1

2
0

,0
0

0

C
C

P
-4

6
Sa

n
 P

ab
lo

C
it

yw
id

e 
Sa

fe
 R

o
u

te
s 

2
 S

ch
o

o
l M

as
te

r 
P

la
n

6
5

$
2

0
0

,0
0

0
-

$
2

0
0

,0
0

0
$

2
0

0
,0

0
0

$
2

0
0

,0
0

0

C
C

P
-6

7
Sa

n
 P

ab
lo

R
u

m
ri

ll 
B

lv
d

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 S
tr

ee
ts

 (
P

h
as

e 
II)

7
1

0
$

5
,1

6
4

,2
5

1
-

$
8

0
0

,0
0

0
$

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
-

-

C
C

P
-2

5
EB

R
P

D
SF

 B
ay

 T
ra

il 
- 

P
in

o
le

 S
h

o
re

s 
to

 B
ay

fr
o

n
t 

P
ar

k
8

1
1

$
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

-
-

$
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

-
-

C
C

P
-2

7
H

er
cu

le
s

Sy
ca

m
o

re
 /

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

n
 W

al
kw

ay
1

1
1

5
$

9
0

0
,7

0
0

-
-

-
-

-

C
C

P
-5

5
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

H
ar

b
o

u
r 

W
ay

 a
n

d
 1

6
th

 S
tr

ee
t 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 S
tr

ee
ts

1
2

7
 (

ti
e)

$
5

1
0

,0
0

0
-

-
-

-
-

C
C

P
-4

1
C

o
n

tr
a 

C
o

st
a 

C
o

u
n

ty
A

p
p

ia
n

 W
ay

/V
al

le
y 

V
ie

w
 R

o
ad

 In
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

1
5

1
2

$
3

,6
5

8
,0

0
0

-
-

-
-

-

C
C

P
-0

5
EB

R
P

D
SF

 B
ay

 T
ai

l -
 L

o
n

e 
Tr

ee
 P

o
in

t 
(R

o
d

eo
 t

o
 H

er
cu

le
s)

1
7

1
7

$
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

-
-

$
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

-
-

C
C

P
-2

6
P

in
o

le
Sh

al
e 

H
ill

1
8

1
8

$
5

5
0

,0
0

0
-

-
-

-
-

C
C

P
-0

1
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

N
o

rt
h

 S
h

o
re

 B
ay

 T
ra

il 
G

ap
 C

lo
su

re
N

/A
N

/A
-

-
-

$
9

7
6

,0
0

0
-

-

TO
TA

L
$

2
8

,2
7

9
,1

8
8

$
1

1
,4

7
2

,2
3

7
3

,1
0

8
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

4
,9

7
6

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

1
1

,4
7

2
,2

3
7

$
   

   
   

  

A
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

TL
C

 F
u

n
d

in
g 

A
va

ila
b

le
$

1
1

,1
9

2
,0

0
0

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 P

B
TF

 f
o

r 
W

es
t 

C
o

u
n

ty
 o

n
ly

$
2

8
0

,0
0

0

To
ta

l F
u

n
d

in
g 

A
va

ila
b

le
$

1
1

,4
7

2
,0

0
0

U
p

d
at

e
d

 T
LC

 F
u

n
d

in
g 

R
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

at
io

n

8A-1



 

 

 
 
 
April 3, 2017 
 
 
 
Mr. Randell Iwasaki, Executive Director 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
2999 Oak Road, Suite 100   
Walnut Creek CA 94597 
 
RE:  March WCCTAC Board Meeting Summary  
 
Dear Randy: 
 
The WCCTAC Board, at its meeting on March 24, 2017 took the following actions 
that may be of interest to CCTA: 
 

1. Received an update on the Interstate 80 Street Smart Corridor project.  
 

2. Approved grant funding recommendations for the Measure J TLC and 
OBAG 2 Safe Routes to School programs. 

 
Please let me know if you have any follow-up questions. 

 
Sincerely, 

       
 
 

John Nemeth 
Executive Director 

cc:  Tarienne Grover, CCTA; John Cunningham, TRANSPAC; Jamar Stamps,  
TRANSPLAN; Lisa Bobadilla, SWAT 

 

 

 
El Cerrito 

 

 

 

 

 

Hercules 
 
 
 
 
 

Pinole 
 
 
 
 
 

Richmond 
 
 
 
 
 

San Pablo 
 
 
 
 
 

Contra Costa 
County 

 
 
 
 
 

AC Transit 
 
 
 
 
 

BART 
 
 
 
 
 

WestCAT 

10a-1





  
 
 
 
 

ACRONYM LIST. Below are acronyms frequently utilized in WCCTAC communications.  
 
 
ABAG: Association of Bay Area Governments 
ACTC: Alameda County Transportation Commission  
ADA: Americans with Disabilities Act 
APC: Administration and Projects Committee (CCTA) 
ATP:  Active Transportation Program 
BAAQMD: Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
BATA: Bay Area Toll Authority 
BCDC: Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
Caltrans: California Department of Transportation 
CCTA: Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
CEQA: California Environmental Quality Act 
CMAs: Congestion Management Agencies 
CMAQ: Congestion Management and Air Quality 
CMIA: Corridor Mobility Improvement Account (Prop 1B bond fund) 
CMP: Congestion Management Program 
CTP: Contra Costa Countywide Comprehensive Transportation Plan 
CSMP: Corridor System Management Plan 
CTC: California Transportation Commission 
CTPL: Comprehensive Transportation Project List 
DEIR: Draft Environmental Impact Report 
EBRPD: East Bay Regional Park District 
EIR: Environmental Impact Report 
EIS: Environmental Impact Statement 
EVP: Emergency Vehicle Preemption (traffic signals) 
FHWA: Federal Highway Administration 
FTA: Federal Transit Administration 
FY: Fiscal Year 
HOV: High Occupancy Vehicle Lane 
ICM: Integrated Corridor Mobility 
ITC or RITC: Hercules Intermodal Transit Center 
ITS: Intelligent Transportations System  
LOS: Level of Service (traffic) 
MOU: Memorandum of Understanding 
MPO: Metropolitan Planning Organization 
MTC: Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
MTSO: Multi-Modal Transportation Service Objective 

10b-1



 

NEPA: National Environmental Policy Act 
O&M: Operations and Maintenance 
OBAG: One Bay Area Grant 
PAC: Policy Advisory Committee 
PBTF: Pedestrian, Bicycle and Trail Facilities  
PC: Planning Committee (CCTA) 
PDA: Priority Development Areas 
PSR: Project Study Report (Caltrans) 
RHNA: Regional Housing Needs Allocation (ABAG) 
RPTC: Richmond Parkway Transit Center 
RTIP: Regional Transportation Improvement Program 
RTP: Regional Transportation Plan 
RTPC: Regional Transportation Planning Committee 
SCS: Sustainable Communities Strategy 
SHPO: State Historic and Preservation Officer 
SOV: Single Occupant Vehicle 
STA: State Transit Assistance 
STARS: Sustainable Transportation Analysis & Rating System 
STIP: State Transportation Improvement Program 
SWAT: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for Southwest County 
TAC: Technical Advisory Committee 
TCC: Technical Coordinating Committee (CCTA) 
TDA: Transit Development Act funds 
TDM: Transportation Demand Management 
TFCA: Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
TEP: Transportation Expenditure Plan 
TLC: Transportation for Livable Communities 
TOD: Transit Oriented Development 
TRANSPAC: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for Central County 
TRANSPLAN: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for East County 
TSP: Transit Signal Priority (traffic signals and buses) 
VMT: Vehicle Miles Traveled 
WCCTAC: West County Costa Transportation Advisory Committee 

 
 

10b-2


	wa 4-28-17
	Minutes 3-24-17vj+jn
	ED Report 03-24-17
	WCCTAC P9-17 Budget Report Monthly - Final
	z-Blank Page
	2017-04-28 HCT Staff Rpt -jn
	ATTACHMENTS WITH AGENDA PACKET:
	ATTACHMENTS AVAILABLE ONLINE AT www.WestCountyTransitStudy.com:
	C. Draft April 2017 Council Presentation and Survey #2 Outreach Report Appendix
	D. Technical Memo #12:  Ridership Estimates
	E. Technical Memo #13:  Cost Estimates
	F. Technical Memo #14:  Funding Strategy
	G. Technical Memo #15:  Final Evaluation of Alternatives

	WCCTAC Round 2 Public Outreach DRAFT Summary Report_v5_20170410_Clean
	z-Blank Page
	WCCTAC Report ver7
	Executive Summary
	Background
	2.2 Study Process
	2.1 Study Purpose
	Outreach
	Presentations
	3.5 Council 
	3.4 Public Workshops
	3.3 Telephone Town Hall
	3.2 WCCTAC Board 
	3.1 Advisory Groups
	West County Transit Market
	4.3 Can Trips in West County be Well Served by Transit?
	4.2 What are the Trip Patterns in West County?
	4.1 How Do West County    Residents Get Around?
	Alternatives Development
	5.2 Refined Alternatives 
	5.1 Initial Alternatives 
	Moving Forward
	6.3 Next Steps
	6.2 Funding Strategy
	6.1 What Have We Learned from this Study?

	West County TLC, Safe Route Applications - Follow-up
	z-Blank Page
	Staff Report - OBAG 2, Measure J Funding Recommendation, Part 2
	ws 03-24-17vj
	z-Blank Page
	Acronym 2017 Master



